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FINANCIAL
HIGHLIGHTS

Dollars in thousands, except for per share amounts

Operating Results for the Year Ended Decembler 31

Net income

Net interest income

Non-interest income

Non-interest expense

Financial Condition at December 31

Stockholders’ equity

Total assets

Loans held for investment, net

Mortgage-backed and related securities:
Available for sale, at fair value
Held for investment, at cost

Deposit liabilities

FHLB advanees and other borrowings

Per Share Data at or for the Year Ended December 31

Basic earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share

Stockholders’ equity per share

Performance Ratios for the Year Ended December 31

Average yield on earning assets

Average cost of funds

Average interest rate spread

Average net interest margin

Average equity to average assets

Return on average assets

Return on average equity

'

2001

28,448
63,202
49,527

67,119

192,398
2,717,710
1,851,316

305,980
134,010
2,029,254
467,447

1.52
1.51
9.52

7.32 %
5.20
2.12
2.70
6.65
1.14
17.19

2000

23,144
59,540
35,633
58,250

146,549
2,352,726
1,772,477

331,237
77,299
1,699,252
490,846

1.26
125
7.99

768 %
5.34
2.34
2.83
6.12
1.04
17.01

1999

22,441
54,117
35,178
54,299

127,275
2,084,554
1,538,595

252,165
103,932
1,471,259
469,580

1.27
1.17
6.92

733 %
475
2.58
3.05
6.74
119
1763

i
i
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Envisioning practical strategies. Consistently imblementing them. Creating sustainable growth. Increasing capacitj

CORPORATE
PROFILE

First Federal Capital Corp is the holding company for First Federal Savings Bank La Crosse-Madison,

a federally chartered savings. bank h:eadq‘uarterefd in La Crosse, Wisconsin with 78 office locations in Wisconsin and

northern Ilinois.

The Bank's primary business is community ba:n-l:,(iﬂng‘.The Bank offers deposit products including CDs and

checking accounts; originates loans, including single-family residential loans, commerciatl real estate loans, business
lending and deposit services, consumer loans, aind‘ education loans; and offers investment and insurance products
including mutual funds, brokerage services and4annuut|es The Bank also purchases single-family residential

and commercial real estate loans from third party financial institutions and invests in mortgage-backed and

related securities.

First Federal Capital Corp stock is traded on the iNASDAO under the symbol FTFC.
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Letter to Our Shareholders

With this sixth consecutive year of record earnings, First:
Federal Capital Corp has again proven itself capable
of consistently delivering outstanding results.

In recent years, we saw a wide slice of the economic
spectrum: a boom economy slowing, then stagnating;
interest rates rising, then falling; and consumer
confidence running the gamut. Throughout, First
Federal has confidently implemented a twofold value-
building vision:

+ growing the Bank, and

» broadening our sources of revenue,

BILLION IN
ASSETS

=)

2000 0 R §2.35
1999 IR §2.05

1992 TR $ 1,79

1997 IR 1.5 4

Jack C. Rusch
President and Chief Executive Officor

200 1 | 52, 7 2




| Envisioning practical strategies We tripled the number of First Federal locations from 1993 to
2001, with eight new locations opened during the year.

2001 resuits confirm our success. Strong increases in total

loan originations and fee income set the stage for our

most productive year ever.

This continued expansion has enabled us to leverage skills,
infrastructure and the power of our brand in building a
larger, more visible franchise with increased earning
power. Over the past nine years, we've fine-tuned our
expansion model as we systematically built critical mass
in these markets. We've steadily lowered the incremental
cost of building depaosit and loan volumes. The results
speak for themselves. New supermarket bank locations
have, on average, achieved profitability in 18 months,
with a continuing trend toward faster payback.

Net income rose $5.3 million, nearly 23% over the previous
year's record of $23.1 million.This represents a 17.19%
return on average equity, surpassing our benchmark
range of 15 -17% and again outperforming our
midwestern savings bank peers.

This record profitability was driven by non-interest income.
The largest factor — gain on the sale of residential
mortgage loans - increased to $24.4 million in 2001, a
793% increase over 2000. it eclipses our previous high of
$16.9 million, set in 1998. An equally robust rise in retail
banking fees further fueled our non-interest income
engine, contributing $25.4 million, 13.3% over last year's
performance.

It's a notable accomplishment that over the past five years, as ‘
we delivered steadily increasing earnings and nearly
tripled the cash dividend on First Federal shares, we were
also growing our network locations by 63%.

Creating sustainable growth

Declines in short-term interest rates during 2001 presented Supermarket banking has been key to this effort. Since

both a challenge and an opportunity for managing our

deposit base. Net interest income increased 6.2% during
2001, led by balance sheet growth. Early in the year, we

generated a rise in deposits with a competitive pricing

strategy that took advantage of a lower level of maturing
deposits. But with 28% of our CDs maturing during the
fourth quarter, we were able to replace these higher cost

deposits at lower rates, enhancing net interest margin.

Consistently implementing them

Growth has been a recurring theme for First Federal since we
deployed our office network expansion plan in 1993.The
strategy has been to selectively expand our operations in

the 14 Wisconsin markets with deposits of over $1
billion... those that hold the most potential for

development. We now have a presence in all but one of
these markets, and are firmly established in the Rockford,

Nlinois market, second in size only to Chicago.

Since entering the Fox Valley in 1994, First Federal has
increased its presence to 16 locations, including two
mortgage loan offices. Over those seven years, we've
built a deposit base of over $275 million in this fast-
growing portion of eastern Wisconsin.

opening our first supermarket office in 1993, our reliance
on this economical growth platform has continued to
increase. Supermarket offices offer a much faster return
on investment, with an initial cost of about one-fifth that
of traditional, freestanding offices, along with lower
ongoing operating costs. They also give us tremendous
visibility in a high-traffic environment while providing a
vehicle to offer customers more convenience... helping
them integrate banking with shopping rather than having
to travel to a separate destination.

Supermarkets are the spoke in our developing expansion

strategy, providing a high-profile rollout that quickly
builds our brand and our base of deposits. Later, we
follow with the hubs: full-service offices to round out our
product menu.

First Federal’s internal growth has been accompanied by a

disciplined strategic acquisition strategy which began
with the 1989 First Federal-Madison merger that
accompanied our initial public stock offering. In 1995, the
acquisition of Rock Savings Bank in the Janesville/ Beloit
market accelerated our expahsion with the addition of
four offices. This served as a springboard for our entry
into lllinois, accomplished in 1998 with the acquisition of
three offices in Rockford.

... as we delivered steadily increasing earnings... we were alse growing our network locations by 63%.
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During 2001, we completed the acquisition of American

Community Bankshares, Inc. (ACB), of Wausau,
Wisconsin. With $156 million in assets and an established
presence in the Wausau market, this acquisition
presented an excellent opportunity to further penetrate
central Wisconsin and leverage ACB’s commercial
banking expertise.

In January 2002, we announced the pending acquisition of

three offices of Marquette Bank in Rochester, Minnesota.
This strategically important expansion is key for two
reasons, First, it establishes a First Federal presence in a
third state. Perhaps more importantly, Marquette Bank’s
commercial lending capabilities, when combined with
those of ACB, will help create a platform for launching
these services in other First Federal markets.

We're also extremely successful in building penetration within

existing markets. The Bank ranks first or second in
mortgage lending in its established markets and is
steadily building share in newer ones. On the deposit
side, our statewide market share grew from 1.56% in 1996
to 2.09% in 2001.

High-impact advertising skewed to a younger demographic

drives both retail banking and mortgage lending
awareness to establish the First Federal brand. Our
marketing is results-focused, ranging from proven, highly
effective radio campaigns to the new venues being tested
now. One is the familiar newspaper insert distributed by
supermarkets. Inserts provide total market coverage, pull
in customers who already plan to shop for groceries, and
reinforce the connection between First Federal and its
supermarket location.

Increasing capacity

2001's volume statistics tell an impressive story. We reached a

number of milestones: 10 miliion teller transactions, $1.5
billion in mortgage loan originations and a 14% increase
in consumer loan production over last year.

Our operations group demonstrated remarkable flexibility,

evident as loan volumes grew during 2001. Concurrent
with the launch of our expansion strategy almost a
decade ago, we made a crucial investment in our
information systems, increasing productivity and
leveraging our resources. We have since been able to

accommodate exponential growth as well as short-term
fluctuations in demand. Process enhancements also
contribute to productivity, with streamlined underwriting
and expedited refinancing. The end result is better
service. Recent customer survey results show that 98.3%
of residential loan customers would recommend First
Federal to others.

Totally Free Checking, our mainstay growth catalyst, added a

record number of new accounts, now numbering over
170,000. In 2001, this profitable product contributed $16.9
million in retail fees to the Bank's non-interest income.
Other retail products, including ATM, debit cards,
investment products and annuities, are also thriving. In
fact, annuity sales exceeded $30 million for the year.
Touch-tone banking, which experienced vigorous growth
each year since its introduction in 1994, has begun to
level off slightly as customer interest now shifts to
internet-based banking.

The year’s 1.5 million internet banking sessions validate the

premise that online banking may ultimately supplant a
substantial number of teller transactions. Developing and
expanding this service will undoubtedly provide another
means to leverage our capacity in a growth environment.
Current capabilities include account inquiry, check
ordering, account transfers and First Federal loan
payments. Future services will include a bill pay function
and electronic check copies made possible by digital
check imaging technology.

Managing risk

First Federal has delivered exceptional performance in varied

interest rate environments, and continues to develop
additional means of moderating the effects of interest
rate changes. The first bulwark against this risk is our
consistently high level of non-interest income, which
exceeds 40% of this year’s gross revenues.

The sale of single-family mortgages originated by First Federal

provides a prime source of non-interest income through
gain on the sale of these loans. Also, we retain the
servicing on loans sold in the secondary market,
generating fee income. Most fixed-rate mortgages are
sold, mitigating interest rate exposure.Those retained are
primarily adjustable-rate mortgages, which carry less
interest rate risk than fixed-rate mortgages.

.. we made a.crucial invesiment in our information systems, increasing productivity and leveraging cur resources.
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Our loan portfolio has become more diversified each year.

While single-family mortgages remain the largest loan
category, we have strategically cultivated higher-yielding
and shorter-term consumer loans as an important part of
the asset mix. Student loans, for instance, offer relatively
low credit risk. Home equity lines of credit track market
interest rate changes relatively quickly compared with
repricing of longerterm fixed-rate assets.

Recognizing the next opportunity

2001 was a year of transition for First Federal as we

completed a realignment of responsibilities to position
the Bank for future expansion. Our management
structure is now organized into two major groups —
operations and community banking — which will provide
new focus and efficiency going forward.

Extending our evolution from a traditional thrift to a
community bank, we are now poised to further widen our

scope and diversify the loan portfolio.

Our two newest acquisitions, ACB and the Marquette Bank

branches, will bring valuable expertise to the Bank as we
plan a 2002 expansion in commercial lending. Our loan
offerings will be complemented by a suite of business
services including checking. We expect to fund the
commercial lending operation with commercial deposits.
These loans will further diversify interest-earning assets.
And we expect the lower cost of funds on these deposits
to have a beneficial effect on our net interest margin.

Though First Federal’s customer service orientation has

always centered on responsiveness and accessibility, the
relationship-building nature of business banking
represents, to some extent, a different paradigm. Our
commitment to this new line of business began with two
strategic acquisitions. It now includes building the
infrastructure and recruiting the talent we need to nurture
a base of loyal business customers. We're prepared to
patiently build the same reputation for excellence within
the business community we've earned in our consumer
markets.

We are also committed to maintaining prudent underwriting

standards and impeccable asset quality. Our rate of non-
performing assets to total assets was 0.31% at year’s end.

Loan loss reserves were an ample 120% of non-
performing assets.

In September, 2001, First Federal completed the repurchase of

more than 905,000 shares, or 5% of its stock. We believe
the repurchase is a good long-term investment that will
enhance shareholder value.

It is with regret that we say farewell to First Federal Director

Henry Funk, who retired in April 2001. Mr. Funk
contributed much to the Corporation’s development
during his 25 year tenure. We now welcome a new
director, Edwin J. Zagzebski. Mr. Zagzebski is the current
Chairman of the Board of Wisconsin Housing and
Economic Development Authority and former Chairman
and CEO of American Community Bankshares, Wausau.
We look forward to his insights as we begin another
exciting chapter in the Bank's evolution.

We sadly mark the passing of Don Rundie, who died

unexpectedly in February 2002. Mr. Rundle had served on
the Bank board since 1984 and on the holding company
board since 1989. His guidance and counsel will be
missed.

| am confident of First Federal’s ability to build on the

momentum that has already yielded so many record
achievements. The teamwork, personal commitment and
creativity that distinguishes First Federal employees and
our adherence to proven strategies will undoubtedly
foster continued success.

ch_ wa\

We're prepared to patiently build the same reputation for excellence within the business community...




FIRST FEDERAL
MANAGEMENT

Directors

Thomas W. Schini

Chairman of the Board, retired President and Chief Executive
Officer, First Federal Savings Bank La Crosse - Madison
Marjorie A. Davenport

President, Gordon & Marjorie Davenport, Inc., Madison,
appraisers/dealers in antique American furniture

John F Leinfelder

President, Joseph J. Leinfelder & Sons, Inc., La Crosse,

steel fabricators

RichardT. Lommen

President, Courtesy Corporation, La Crosse,

a McDonald’s restaurant franchisee

Patrick J. Luby

Retired Vice President and Economist, Oscar Mayer Foods Corp.,
Madison, a food processing firm. Currently a private business
consultant

David C. Mebane

Vice Chairman of the Board, Madison Gas & Electric Co., Madison,
a public utility

Dale A. Nordeen

Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors, former Chairman and
President of First Federal Savings Bank of Madison

Phillip J. Quillin

President, Quillin’s, Inc., La Crosse,

a multiple supermarket business

Don P. Rundle*

Retired Executive Vice President, Inland Printing Co., Inc.,

La Crosse, a regional commercial printer

Jack C. Rusch

President and Chief Executive Officer, First Federal Savings Bank
La Crosse - Madison

Edwin J. Zagzebski

Current Chairman of the Board of Wisconsin Housing and Economic
Development Authority; former Chairman and CEO of American
Community Bankshares, Wausau

* Deceased (February 2002)

Corporate Officers
Thomas W. Schini
Chairman of the Board

Jack C. Rusch
President and Chief Executive Officer

Bradford R. Price

Executive Vice President, Secretary and Corporate Administration
and Operations Group Manager

Joseph M. Konradt

Executive Vice President and Community Banking Group Manager
Robert P. Abell

Senior Vice President and Commercial Real Estate Lending Division
Manager

Michael W. Dosland

Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Finance and
Treasury Division Manager

Milne J. Duncan
Senior Vice President and Human Resources Division Manager

Senior Vice Presidents

Jeri V. Sebo

Corporate Projects Manager

Vice Presidents
John J. Berg

Gerald D. Bothun
Gregory S. Condra
Sandra J. Drexler
Lisa L. Grover
Robert J. Heiderscheit
Katherine V. Helke
Jaimes B. Johnson
Jeffrey J. Johnson
James S. Kloosterboer
D. Anthony Koeck
Darin A. McFadden
Timothy P. Medinger
James P, Orlikowski
Kenneth C. Osowski
Richard J. Pendleton
Keith C. Pollnow
David J. Reinke
Chari A. Sheerer
Kevin R. Strangman

Assistant Vice Presidents

Dawn R. Bernamann
Barbara R. Bowman
Jerri L. Cerniglia
Steven M. Daniel
MarkT. Every

Jayne P Flint
Marvin P Fokema
Laura L. Gillies
Kathy R. Gran
Dennis J. Herricks
Joseph A. Kaluzny
Brett A. Kerst

Janine R. Luz
Garland E. McGarvey
Peggy A. Mechtel
Roxane S. Meyers
Robert J. Olinger
Darcy L. Pierson
Deborah A. Preston
Ray E. Rytilahti
Mary C. Schnedecker
Velma L. Strander
Jan E. Verse

Penn R. Vieau
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FIRST FEDERAL CAPITAL CORP

A Federal Savings Bank Holding Company

March 15, 2002

Dear Shareholder:

You are cordially invited to attend our 2002 annual meeting of shareholders, which will be held on
Wednesday, April 17, 2002, at 10:30 a.m., local time, at the Radisson Hotel, 200 Harborview Plaza, La Crosse,
Wisconsin.

The attached notice of annual meeting of shareholders and proxy statement describe the formal business to
be conducted at the annual meeting. Cur Form 10-K annual report for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001 also
is included in our 2001 annual report. Our directors and officers, as well as representatives of Ernst & Young LLP,
our independent auditors, will be present at the annual meeting to respond to any questions that our shareholders
may have.

It is very important that you be represented at the annual meeting regardless of the number of shares you
own or whether you are able to attend the annual meeting in person. We urge you to vote by phone or over the
Internet (if your shares are held in an account at a brokerage firm or bank participating in the ADP Investor
Communication Services program), or mark, sign and date your proxy card today and return it in the envelope
provided, even if you plan to attend the annual meeting. This will not prevent you from voting in person, but will
ensure that your vote is counted if you are unable to attend. '

Your continued support of and interest in us are appreciated.

Sincerely,

mmma.ﬁkwx\

Jack C. Rusch
President and Chief Executive Officer
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FIRST FEDERAL CAPITAL CORP
605 State Street
La Crosse, Wisconsin 54601
{608) 784-3000

NOTICE OF 2002 ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
To Be Held on April 17, 2002

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the 2002 annual meeting of shareholders of First Federal Capital Corp
will be held on Wednesday, April 17, 2002, at 10:30 a.m., local time, at the Radisson Hotel, 200 Harborview Plaza,
La Crosse, Wisconsin, for the following purposes, all of which are described more completely in the accompanying
proxy statement:

1 To elect four directors, each for three-year terms and in each case until their successors are elected
and qualified;
2) To ratify the board of directors’ appointment of Emnst & Young LLP as our independent auditors

for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2002;
3 To approve the First Federal Capital Corp 2002 Directors’ Stock Option Plan; and

4) To transact such other business as may properly come before the annual meeting or any
adjournments or postponements thereof. Our board of directors is not aware of any other such
business.

The board of directors has fixed March 1, 2002 as the voting record date for the determination of
shareholders entitled to notice of and to vote at the annual meeting and at any adjournments or postponements
thereof. Only shareholders of record as of the close of business on that date will be entitled to vote at the annual
meeting or at any adjournments or postponements thereof. In the event there are not sufficient votes for a quorum or
to approve or ratify any of the foregoing proposals at the time of the annual meeting, the annual meeting may be
adjourned in order to permit further solicitation of proxies by us.

By Order of the Board of Directors

Bt 12 R

La Crosse, Wisconsin Bradford R. Price
March 13, 2002 Executive Vice President and Secretary

YOU ARE CORDIALLY INVITED TO ATTEND THE ANNUAL MEETING. IT IS IMPORTANT THAT
YOUR SHARES BE REPRESENTED REGARDLESS OF THE NUMBER YOU OWN. EVEN IF YOU PLAN
TO BE PRESENT, YOU ARE URGED TO PROMPTLY VOTE BY PHONE OR OVER THE INTERNET (IF
YOUR SHARES ARE HELD IN AN ACCOUNT AT A BROKERAGE FIRM OR BANK THAT
PARTICIPATES IN THE ADP INVESTOR COMMUNICATION SERVICES PROGRAM), OR COMPLETE,
SIGN, DATE AND RETURN THE ENCLOSED PROXY FORM IN THE ENVELOPE PROVIDED. PLEASE
SEE “ELECTRONIC VOTING ALTERNATIVES” IN THE PROXY STATEMENT FOR ADDITIONAL
DETAILS. IF YOU ATTEND THE ANNUAL MEETING, YOU MAY VOTE EITHER IN PERSON CR BY
PROXY. YOU MAY REVOKE ANY PROXY GIVEN AT ANY TIME PRIOR TO THE EXERCISE
THERECF.
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FIRST FEDERAL CAPITAL CORP

PROXY STATEMENT

2002 ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
To Be Held on April 17, 2002

We are furnishing this proxy statement to our shareholders in connection with the solicitation of proxies on
behalf of our board of directors to be used at the 2002 annual meeting of shareholders to be held at the Radisson
Hotel, 200 Harborview Plaza, La Crosse, Wisconsin, on Wednesday, April 17, 2002, at 10:30 a.m., local time, and at
any adjournments or postponements thereof for the purposes set forth in the notice of annual meeting of
shareholders.

Our 2001 annual report to shareholders includes our Form 10-K annual report, including our consolidated
financial statements for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001 (which we sometimes refer to as “fiscal 2001”)
accompanies this proxy statement and appointment form of proxy, and are first being mailed to you on or about
March 19, 2002, Generally, when we use the terms “we,” “us,” “our” or “ours,” we mean First Federal Capital Corp
(the “Company”) and its wholly owned subsidiary, First Federal Savings Bank La Crosse-Madison (the “Bank™). If
there is, in our opinion, an important distinction between the two entities, we will refer to the “Company” or the
“Bank,” as appropriate.

Record Date and Qutstanding Shares

Only our shareholders of record at the close of business on March 1, 2002 will be entitled to vote at the
annual meeting. On that date, there were 20,033,558 shares of our common stock outstanding and no other class of
equity securities outstanding. Each share of common stock is entitled to one vote at the annual meeting on all
matters properly presented at the meeting. When we use the terms “you,” “your” or “yours,” we mean our
shareholders of record on March 1, 2002.

Quorum

The presence, in person or by proxy, of the holders of at least a majority of the total number of shares of
common stock entitled to vote is necessary to constitute a quorum at the annual meeting.

Abstentions and Broker Non-Votes

Abstentions (i.e., shares for which authority is withheld to vote for a matter) are included in the
determination of shares present and voting for purposes of whether a quorum exists. For the election of directors,
abstentions will have no effect on the outcome of the vote because directors are elected by a plurality of the votes
cast. For all other matters to be voted on at the annual meeting, abstentions will be included in the number of shares
voting on a matter, and consequently, an abstention will have the same practical effect as a vote againss such matter.

Proxies relating to “street name” shares (i.e, shares held of record by brokers or other third-party
nominees) that are voted by brokers or other third-party nominees on certain matters will be treated as shares present
and voting for purposes of determining the presence or absence of a quorum. “Broker non-votes” (i.e., proxies
submitied by brokers or third-party nominees indicating that such persons have not received instructions from the
beneficial owners or other persons entitled to vote shares as to a matter with respect to which the brokers or third-
party nominees do not have discretionary power te vote under the rules of the New York Stock Exchange) will be
considered present for the purpose of establishing a quorum, but will not be treated as shares entitled to vote on such
matters, '

1




All matters to be considered at the annual meeting are considered “discretionary” propesals for which
brokers and third-party nominees may vote proxies notwithstanding the fact that they have not received voting
instructions from the beneficial owners of shares; consequently, shares held by brokers or third-party nominees will
be counted if and as voted by such brokers and third-party nominees.

Voting
Matter 1: Election of Directors

The proxy being provided by our board of directors enables you to vote for the election of the nominees
proposed by the board, or to withhold authority to vote for the nominees being proposed. OCur articles of
incorporation, as amended, do not provide for cumulative voting by shareholders for the election of the Company’s
directors. Under the Wisconsin Business Corporation Law, directors are elected by a plurality of the votes cast with
a quorum present, meaning that the four nominees receiving the most votes will be elected directors.

Matter 2: Appointment of Ernst & Young LLP

The affirmative vote of a majority of the shares of common stock represented in person or by proxy at the
annual meeting is necessary to ratify the appointment of Ermnst & Young LLP as our auditors for fiscal 2002.

Manter 3: Approval of the First Federal Capital Corp 2002 Directors’ Stock Option Plan

The affirmative vote of a majority of the shares of common stock represented in person or by proxy at the
annual meeting is necessary to approve the First Federal Capital Corp 2002 Directors’ Steck Option Plan (the “2002
Directors’ Option Plan”),

Selicitation and Revocation

You are requested to vote electronically (see “~—Electronic Voting Alternatives™) or by completing the
enclosed proxy and returning it signed and dated in the enclosed postage-paid envelope. The proxy solicited hereby,
if properly executed and not revoked prior to its use, will be voted according to your instructions. If you do not
provide instructions, a properly executed proxy will be voted:

° EOR the election of the nominees for director named in this proxy statement;

o EOR the ratification of the appointment of Emst & Young LLP as ocur independent auditors for
fiscal 2002;

° FOR the approval of the 2002 Directors’ Option Plan; and

° In accordance with the best judgment of the persons appointed as proxies upon the transaction of

such other business as may properly come before the annual meeting or any adjournments or
postponements thereof.

Returning your completed proxy form or voting your proxy electronically will not prevent you from voting in person
at the annual meeting should you be present and wish to do so.

You have the power to revoke your proxy any time before it is exercised by (i) filing with cur Secretary
written notice thereof (Bradford R. Price, Executive Vice President and Secretary, First Federal Capital Corp, 605
State Street, La Crosse, Wisconsin 54601); (ii) submitting a duly-executed proxy bearing a later date or overriding a
previously subsmitted electronic proxy by submitting a subsequent electronic proxy; or (iii) appearing at the annual
meeting and giving our Secretary notice of your intention to vote in person. If your shares are not registered in your
own name, you will need additional documentation from the record holder to vote personally at the annual meeting.
Proxies solicited hereby may be exercised only at the annual meeting and any adjournment or postponement thereof
and will not be used for any other meeting.

We will bear the cost of solicitation of proxies on behalf of our board of directors. We have retained Regan
and Associates, Inc., a professional proxy solicitation firm, to assist in the solicitation of proxies. Regan &
Associates will be paid a fee of $6,500. Pursuant to the retainer agreement with Regan & Associates, all fees to be
paid to Regan & Associates will be waived if the proposals submitted for approval at the annual meeting are not
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approved by shareholders. Proxies may be solicited by personal interview or by telephone, in addition to the use of
the mails by our directors, officers and regular employees, without additional compensation therefor. We have made
arrangements with brokerage firms, banks, nominees and other fiduciaries t¢ forward proxy solicitation materials for
shares of common stock held of record by the beneficial owners of such shares. We will reimburse such brokerage
firms, banks, nominees and other fiduciaries for their reasonable out-of-pocket expenses.

In the event there are not sufficient votes for a quorum or to approve or ratify any proposal at the time of
the annual meeting, the annual meeting may be adjowrned or postponed in order to permit the further solicitation of
proxies. Proxies solicited hereby will be returned to the board of directors, and will be tabulated by inspectors of
election designated by the beard who will not be our directors or employees or directors or employees of any of cur
affiliates.

Electronie Voting Alternatives

You are able to vote your shares by felephone or over the Internet (if your shares are held in an account at a
brokerage firm or bank participating in the ADP Investor Communication Services Program). Submitting your
proxy electrenically will not affect your right to vote in person if you decide to attend the annual meeting.

Shares Registered in Your Name

If your shares are registered directly with Wells Fargo Shareowner Services, you may vote your proxy
telephonically by calling Wells Fargo Shareowner Services at (800) 240-6326. Votes submitied by telephone must
be received by 11:00 a.m., Central Time, on Tuesday, April 16, 2002.

Shares Registered in the Name of a Brokerage Firm or Bank

Numerous brokerage firms and banks are participating in a program provided through ADP Investor
Communication Services that offers electronic voting altemnatives. This program is different from the program
offered by Wells Fargo Shareowner Services for electronic voting of shares registered in the name of the
shareholder. If your shares are held in an account at a brokerage firm or bank participating in the ADP program, you
may vote those shares telephonically by calling the telephone number referenced on your voting form or over the
Internet by going to the website referenced on your voting form. Votes electronically submitted through the ADP
program must be received by the time indicated on the materials enclosed regarding electronic voting through the
ADP program.

MATTERS TO BE VOTED ON AT THE ANNUAL MEETING

MATTER 1: ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to our articles of incorporation, our board of directors is divided into three classes, and the
members of each class are elected for a term of three years and until their successors are elected and qualified. One
class of directors is elected annually. A resolution of the board, adopted pursuant to our bylaws has established the
number of directors at ten in response to Mr. Dale A. Nordeen’s retirement from service as one of our directors after
41 years of service as a director of the Company and the Bank (including predecessor institutions), effective as of
the 2002 annual meeting. On February 10, 2002, Mr. Don P. Rundle passed away. Mr. Rundle served as a director
of the Company and the Bank (including predecessor institutions) since 1984. Mr. Rundle was a member of the
class of directors whose terms expire in 2004. At this time, our board has not appointed a director to fill the seat
vacated by Mr. Rundle. '

The merger agreement pursuant to which American Community Bankshares, Inc. merged with and into us
in October 2001 provided that Mr. Edwin J. Zagzebski of American Community Bankshares would become a
director as soon as practicable after the effective date of the merger. Mr. Zagzebski was appointed to the board
effective November 1, 2001 and also has been nominated by the board for election as a director at the annual
meeting pursuant to such agreement. With the exception of the foregoing agreement relating to the nomination of
Mr. Zagzebski, no person being nominated as a director is being proposed for election pursuant to any agreement or
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understanding between any person and us. There are no family relationships among any of our directors and/or
executive officers.

If any person named as nominee should be unable or unwilling to stand for election at the time of the
annual meeting, the proxies will nominate and vote for any replacement nominee or nominees recommended by the
board of directors., At this time, the board knows of no reason why any of the nominees listed below may not be

—] able to serve as a director if eiected.

The following tables present information concerning the nominees for director and each director whose
term continues, including his or her tenure as a director of the Company and/or the Bank and its predecessor
institutions.

‘ Position with Us Director
Name Age and Prineipal Qccupation Simce

Nominees for Director for Three-Year Terms Expiring in 2005

John F. Leinfelder 70 Director; President of Joseph J. Leinfelder and Soms, Inc., a 1978
steel fabricating business, located in La Crosse, Wisconsin.

David C. Mebane 68 Director; Vice Chairman and director, and from February 1985
2000 to February 2002, Chairman, and from January 1994 to
February 2000, Chairman, President, Chief Executive and
Chief Operating Officer of Madison Gas and Electric Co., a
publicly held utility company, located in Madison,
Wisconsin,

Thomas W, Schini 66 Director; Chairman of the Board since April 1993; Chief 1983
Executive Officer of the Company and the Bank from June
1989 to December 2000; President of the Company and the
Bank from June 1989 to July 2000; President and Chief
Executive Officer of First Federal Savings Bank of La
Crosse from September 1983 to June 1989.

Edwin J. Zagzebski 66 Director; Chairman of the Wisconsin Housing and Economic 1995
Development Authority since 1995; Chairman of the Board
of American Community Bankshares from 1995 to October
2001. |

Information With Respect To Continuing Directors

Directors Whose Terms Expire in 2003

Marjorie A. Davenport 73 Director; President of Gordon & Marjorie Davenport, Inc., a 1976
company that appraises and sells antique American furniture,
located in Madison, Wisconsin.

Richard T. Lommen 57 Director; President of Courtesy Corporation, a McDonald’s 1978
licensee, located in La Crosse, Wisconsin.

Phillip J. Quillin 64 Director; President of Quillin’s Inc., which owns and operates 1984
supermarkets in the La Crosse, Wisconsin area.




Pesition with Us Director
Name Age and Principal Qccupation Simee

Directors Whose Terms Expire in 2004

Patrick J. Luby 71 Director; Retired; Until February 1992, Vice President and 1979
Economist for Oscar Mayer Foods Corp., a food processing
and manufacturing firm that is an indirect subsidiary of Philip
Morris Cos., Inc., located in Madison, Wisconsin.

Jack C. Rusch 55 Director; Chief Executive Officer of the Company and the 2000
Bank since January 2001; President and Chief Operating
Officer of the Company and the Bank since August 2000;
Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer of the Company and the
Bank from March 1992 until January 2001; Executive Vice
President of the Company and the Bank (Finance and
Administration Division Manager) from March 1992 until
August 2000; Senior Vice President, Treasurer and Chief
Financial Officer of the Company and the Bank from June
1989 until March 1992; Senior Vice President of First Federal
Savings Bank of La Crosse from 1986 until June 1989 and
prior thereto Vice President-Finance of First Federal Savings
Bank of La Crosse.

The affirmative vote of a plurality of the votes cast at the annual meeting is required for the election
of directors. Unless otherwise specified, the shares of common stock represented by the proxies solicited
hereby will be voted FOR the election of the above-deseribed nominees. Qur board of directors recommends
that you vote FOR the election of the above-described nominees for director.

Shareholder Nominations

Section 4.14 of our bylaws governs nominations for election to the board of directors and requires all such
nominations, other than those made by the board, to be made at a meeting of shareholders called for the election of
directors, and only by a shareholder who has complied with the notice provisions cutlined in our bylaws.
Shareholder nominations must be made pursuant to timely notice in writing to our Secretary. To be timely, a
shareholder’s notice must be delivered to, or mailed and received at, our principal executive offices not later than
(i) with respect to an election to be held at an annual meeting of shareholders, 60 days prior to the anniversary date
of the mailing of proxy materials in connection with the immediately preceding annual meeting, and (ii) with respect
to an election to be held at a special meeting of shareholders for the election of directors, the close of business on the
tenth day following the date on which notice of such meeting is first given to shareholders. We did not receive any
director nominations from shareholders in connection with the annual meeting.

Each written notice of a shareholder nomination shali set forth: (a) the name and address of the shareholder
who intends to make the nomination and of the person or persons to be nominated; (b) a representation that the
shareholder is a holder of record of our common stock entitled to vote at such meeting and intends to appear in
person or by proxy at the meeting to nominate the person or persons specified in the notice; (c) a description of ali
arrangements or understandings between the shareholder and each nominee and any other person or persons (naming
such person or persons) pursueant to which the nomination or nominations are to be made by the shareholder;
(d) such other information regarding each nominee proposed by such shareholder as would be required to be
included in a proxy statement filed pursuant to the proxy rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission (the
“SEC™); and (e) the consent of each nominee to serve as a director of the Company if so elected. The presiding
officer of the meeting may refuse to acknowledge the nomination of any persen not made in compliance with the
foregoing procedures.




MATTER 2: RATIFICATION OF APPOINTMENT OF AUDITORS

Our board of directors has appointed Emst & Young LLP, independent certified public accountants, to
perform the audit of our financial statements for fiscal 2002, and further directed that the selection of auditors be
submitted for ratification by the shareholders at the annual meeting. We have been advised by Ernst & Young that
neither that firm nor any of its associates has any relationship with us other than the usual relationship that exists
between independent certified public accountants and clients. Emst & Young will have one or more representatives
at the annual meeting who will have an opportunity to make a statement, if they so desire, and will be available to
respond to appropriate questions.

Fees Billed to Us by Ernst & Young in Fiscal 2001

. The following is a summary of the fees billed to us by Emst & Young for certain audit and non-audit
services during fiscal 2001,

Auwdit Fees

The aggregate fees bilied by Emst & Young for professicnal services rendered for the audit of our annual
financial statements for fiscal 2001 and for the reviews of the financial statements included in our quarterly reports
on Form 10-Q for fiscal 2001 were $132,500.

Financial Information Systems Design and Implementation Fees

The aggregate fees billed by Emst & Young for professional services rendered to us for the information
technology services relating to financial information systems design and implementation for fiscal 2001 were $0.

Al Other Fees

The aggregate fees billed by Emst & Young for services rendered to us, other than the services described
above under “Audit Fees” and “Financial Information Systems Design and Implementation Fees,” for fiscal 2001
were $22,575.

The affirmative vote of a majority of the votes cast at the arnual meeting is required for the
ratification of the appointment of Ernst & Youmg as our independent anditors for fiscal 2002. Unless
otherwise specified, the shares of common stock represented by your proxy will be voted FOR ratification of
the appointment of Ernst & Young as our independent auditors for fiscal 2002, Our board of directors
recommends that you vote FOR the ratification of the appeintment of Ernst & Young as our independent
auditors for fiscal 2002,

MATTER 3: APPROVAL OF THE FIRST FEDERAL CAPITAL CORP
2002 DIRECTORS’ STOCK OPTION PLAN

We are proposing for your consideration and approval the First Federal Capital Corp 2002 Directors’ Stock
Option Plan (the “2002 Directors’ Option Plan”) for directors of the Company and the Bank who are not also our
employees (which we refer to as “outside directors™). Pursuant to the 2002 Directors’ Option Plan, eligible outside
directors will receive option grants to purchase the shares of common stock in consideration for their services as our
directors. Under the By-laws of the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc., shareholder approval of
director and officer stock option plans is a listing requirement applicable to all issuers whose shares are listed on the
Nasdag National Market System, including us. Therefore, shareholder approval of the 2002 Directors’ Option Plan
is required in order for our shares of common stock to continue to be listed on the Nasdaq National Market System.
Absent shareholder approval, the 2002 Directors’ Opticn Plan will not be effective and no grants of options to
purchase shares will be made thereunder.
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Purpese of the 2002 Directors’ Option Plan

Our 1992 Directors’ Stock Option Plan expired on January 25, 2002, We believe that having a stock-based
component of total director compensation serves to further align the interests of our directors and our shareholdes.
Therefore, the board of directors has adopted, subject to sharehclder approval, the 2002 Directors” Option Plan in
order to provide an adequate reserve of options to compensate and retain existing directors, recruit future directors
and for issuances in connection with potential strategic acquisitions.

Shares Subject to the 2002 Directors® Option Plan

If approved by shareholders, a total of 398,000 shares of common stock, or approximately 2.0% of the
shares outstanding on the voting record date, will be available for granting to eligible outside directors under the
proposed 2002 Directors’ Option Plan. At the time of expiration in January 2002, the 1992 Directors’ Stock Option
Plan had 144,946 option shares ungranted, all of which expired when the plan expired. Unless terminated sooner
due to lack of shareholder approval or as otherwise permitted thereunder, the proposed 2002 Directors’ Option Plan
will be in effect until January 22, 2022.

The shares of common stock to be issued upon the exercise of options granted under the proposed 2002
Directors’ Option Plan may be authorized but unissued shares, treasury shares or shares purchased by us on the cpen
market or from private sources. If authorized but unissued shares of common stock are issued under the 2002
Directors’ Option Plan, the interests of existing shareholders will be diluted.

Administration

The proposed 2002 Directors” Option Plan will be administered by the entire board of directors of the
Company. The board will make determinations with respect to option grants to eligible direciors, including, but not
limited to, determining the persons to whom discretionary option grants are to be made, the number of shares of
common stock to be covered by such options and the vesting schedule and the expiration date of such option grants.

Eligibility, Timing of Grants, Type of Option Grants and Vesting of Options

With the exception of Ms. Davenport, who serves only as a director of the Company, all of our directors
currently serve on both the board of directors of the Company and the board of the Bank. There currently are no
directors of the Bank who are not also directors of the Company. Of the nine directors of the Company, seven of
them currently are outside directors and as such are eligible to receive option grants under the proposed 2002
Directors’ Option Plan. None of our employees or executive officers are eligible to receive option grants under the
2002 Directors’ Option Plan.

Under the proposed 2002 Directors’ Option Plan, outside directors of the Company and the Bank will be
granted options to purchase a fixed number of shares (cuitently, 8,800) at the time of election or reelection to the
board of directors (“non-discretionary grants”), which are fully vested and exercisable on the date of grant. The
Company’s board is staggered, and directors are generally elected to serve three-year terms. Therefore, our outside
directors generally receive non-discretionary grants every three years. While the Bank currently does not have any
directors who ate not also directors of the Company, outside directors of the Bank who are not also directors of
Company would be eligible to receive a non-discretionary option grant every three years (notwithstanding the fact
that they would be elected to the Bank board on an annual basis by the Company as the sole shareholder of the
Bank).

In addition to the aforementioned non-discretionary option grants, the board of directors has the authority
to make discretionary option grants. Discretionary option grants become vested and exercisable as determined by
the board at the time of grant.



Pursuant ic the 2002 Directors’ Option Plan, Mr. Zagzebski will not receive options under the 2002
Directors’ Option Plan if he is reelected to the board of directors at the 2002 annual meeting, since he received 8,800
options upon being appointed to the board in November 2001, which options will vest upon his reelection. The
following table summarizes the option grants that will be awarded under the proposed 2002 Directors’ Option Plan
to eligible outside directors on April 17, 2002, the date of the annual meeting, asswming the 2002 Directors’ Option
Plan is approved by our sharehoiders and ali of the nominees are elected to the board at the annual meeting:

2002 Directors’ Option Plan Benefits

Dollar Number of Shares

Name gnd Position Value® Subject to Options
John F. Leinfelder, Director ..c...coocvcreceeieninneennnnnne $ 0 8,800
David C. Mebane, DIrector .......cceveevveeeervreeerenevene 0 8,800
Non-Executive Director Group

(SEVEN PETSOMS) ...veevrrrieirieniereereirvisessesenssessssesones 0 17,600
Executive Group®..........cc.vevvevvveecresisenseeneseneons N/A N/A
Non-Executive Officer Employee Group™®............. N/A N/A
M The dollar value at the time of grant is the difference between the exercise price and the “fair market value” (defined by the 2002

Directors’” Option Plan as our per share closing price) on the date of grant. Under the 2002 Directors’ Option Plan, the option exercise
price must be the greater of (i) the par value of a share of common stock (30.10 per share), or (ii) the fair market value of a share of
common stock as of the date of grant. Therefore, on the date the option grants are made to the named directors the exercise price will
be equal to the fair market value and, as such, the dollar value of an option grant will be $0. The dollar value of the options will
increase or decrease in the future depending on the difference between the exercise price and the fair market value of our common
stock. On March 1, 2002, the fair market value of a share of our common stock was $16.25.

) Pursuant to the terms of the 2002 Directors’ Option Plan, our executive officers and employees are not eligible to participate.
Terms and Conditions of Option Grants

Options granted under the proposed 2002 Directors’ Option Plan are subject to cerfain terms and
conditions. Each option recipient will execute an option agreement, setting forth the total number of shares of
common stock to which it pertains, the exercise price, the procedures for exercise and any other applicable terms,
conditions and provisions. The option exercise price may be paid in cash or shares of common stock and will be the
greater of (i) the par value of a share of common stock ($0.10 per share), or (ii) the fair market value of a share of
common stock as of the date of grant. Options may be exercised in part or in whole and at one time or from time to
time.

Options received pursuant to non-discretionary grants become exercisable on the date of the grant and
remain exercisable until the earlier of (i) ten years after the date of grant, or (ii) three years after the option recipient
ceases to be an outside director. If an option recipient dies while serving as an outside director or during the three
years following the date on which he or she ceased to be an outside director without having fully exercised his or her
options, his or her estate administrators, legatees or distributees have the right to exercise the unexercised options
during the twelve months following his or her death. In no event can an option be exercised more than ten years
from the date of grant.

Options received pursuant to discretionary grants become and remain exercisable as determined by the
board of directors and as set forth in the option agreement. The provisions for exercise that apply in a case of an
option recipient’s death are those specified in the option agreement, but if no such provisions are made in the option
agreement, the exercise period is the same as described above for the non-discretionary grants.




Options held by outside directers terminated for cause pursuant to the Company’s or the Bank’s respective
articles of incorporation and bylaws will expire on the date of termination. Temmination “for cause” includes
termination (pursuant to the requisite terminating vote by our shareholders or the board of directors) due to a felony
conviction no longer subject to a direct appeal or a court having found 2 director liable for gross negligence or
misconduct in the performance of such director’s duty to us and the court’s findings are no longer subject to a direct
appeal.

Options may be transferred by option recipients pursuant to the laws of descent and distribution, and during
an option recipient’s lifetime, by option recipients to members of their “immediate family” (as defined in the 2002
Directors’ Option Plan), trusts for the benefit of members of their immediate family and charitable institutions
(collectively, “permissible transferees”) to the extent permitted under Section 16 of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended, and subject to federal and state securities laws. During the option recipient’s lifetime, options
granted pursuant to the 2002 Directors’ Option Plan may only be exercised by the recipient, the recipient’s guardian
or legal representative or by a permissible transferee.

Upon any “change-in-control” event, such as a merger, consolidation, reorganization, liquidation,
recapitalization or a similar event, each option recipient is entitled, subject to the conditions of the 2002 Directors’
Option Plan, to purchase or acquire such number of securities as were exchangeable for the number of shares of our
common stock that such option recipient would have been entitled to purchase or acquire except for such change-in-
control, and appropriate adjustments will be made to the per-share exercise price of outstanding options.

Federal Income Tax Consequences of Issuance and Exercise of Options

The options granted under the proposed 2002 Directors’ Option Plan will not qualify as incentive stock
options under Section 422 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. An optionee will be deemed to have
received ordinary income upon the exercise of opiions granted under the 2002 Directors’ Option Plan in an amount
equal to the amount by which the fair market value of the common stock on the exercise date exceeds the exercise
price. The amount of any ordinary income upon the exercise of such options will be a deductible expense for tax
purposes by the Company. At this time, generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) do not require
compensation expense to be recorded for any options granted for which the exercise price equals the market value
on-the date of grant. When the options are exercised, the net proceeds received by us will be recorded as an increase
in common stock and paid-in capital.

Adjustment in the Event of Capital Changes

In the event the total number of cutstanding shares of common stock is increased or decreased subseguent
to the effective date of the proposed 2002 Directors’ Option Plan by reason of any split, subdivision or conselidation
of shares or any other capital adjustment, the payment of a stock dividend, or other increase or decrease in such
shares effected without receipt or payment of consideration by us (collectively, “capital changes”), proportional
adjustments will be made to (i) the aggregate number of shares of common stock available for issuance under the
2002 Directors’ Option Plan, (ii) the number of shares to which an outstanding option relates, and (iii) the exercise
price per share of common stock under an option. The board may, in its discretion, adjust the number of shares
granted upen election or reelection to the board (currently, 8,800 shares) in the event of a capital change, but the
non-discretionary 8,800-share grant will not be automatically adjusted as a result of a capital change.




Amendment of the 2002 Directors’ Option Plan

The board of directers may, by resolution and at any time, terminate, amend or revise the proposed 2002
Directors’ Option Plan with respect to any shares of common stock as to which options have not been granted, but
the board may not alter or impair any options previously granted under the 2002 Directors’ Option Plan unless the
option recipient consents. In addition, the board may determine that shareholder approval of any amendment to the
2002 Directors” Option Plan may be advisable for any reason, including but not limited to, for the purpose of
cbtaining or retaining any statutory or regulatory benefits under tax, securities or other laws or satisfying applicable
stock exchange listing requirements.

The affirmative vote of a majority of the votes cast at the annual meeting is reguired for approval of
the 2602 Directors’ Option Plan. Unless otherwise specified, the shares of common stock represented by your
proxy will be voted FOR approval of the 2002 Directors’ Option Plan. Our beard of directors recommends
that you vote FOR approval of the 2002 Directors’ Option Plam.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND ITS COMMITTEES

Regular meetings of our board of directors are held on a quarterly basis. Our board held a total of four
regular meetings and one special meeting during fiscal 2001. No incumbent director attended fewer than 75% of the
total number of meetings of the board and the total number of committee meetings on which such director served
during fiscal 2001.

The audit committee of the board of directors reviews our records and affairs to determine our financial
condition, reviews with management and our independent auditors the systems of internal controf, and monitors our
adherence in accounting and financial reporting to generally accepted accounting principles. In fiscal 2001, the
members of the audit committee, which met two times during the year, were Messrs. Leinfelder (Chairman), Funk,
Nordeen, Quillin and Zagzebski. Mr. Funk participated in the first of the two meetings, which was held prior to his
retirement from service as one of our directors in April 2001. In November 2001, the board appointed M.
Zagzebski to the audit committee to fill the vacancy left by Mr. Funk. Mr. Zagzebski was not a member of the audit
committee when either of the twe 2001 meetings were held, but has participated in all subseguent audit committee
meetings.

The stock option committee of the board of directors reviews and approves the granting of options and
restricted stock under our stock incentive plans and administers such plans. In fiscal 2001, the stock option
committee consisted of Messrs. Luby (Chairman), Lommen, Rundle and Ms. Davenport. The stock option
committee met six times during fiscal 2001.

Our entire board of directors acted as a nominating committee for the selection of nominees for director to
stand for election at the annual meeting. The board met once during fiscal 2001 to consider director nominees for
the 2001 annual meeting. In January 2002, the board, acting as the nominating committee, considered nominations
for directors to be elected at the 2002 annual meeting. Qur bylaws allow for shareholder nominations of directors
and require such nominations to be made in accordance with specific procedures. See “Matter 1: Election of
Directors—Shareholder Nominations.”
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EXECUTIVE OFFICERS WHO ARE NOT DIRECTORS

The following table sets forth certain information with respect to our executive officers who are not
directors.

Name Age Principal Occupation

Joseph M. Konradt ........... 45 Executive Vice President of the Bank (Community Banking Group Manager)
since March 2001; Senior Vice President of the Bank (Retail Banking Division
Manager) from March 1992 until March 2001; Vice President of the Bank from
June 1989 until March 1992; Vice President of First Federal Savings Bank of La
Crosse from 1986 until June 1989 and prior thereto Director of Marketing of
First Federal Savings Bank of La Crosse.

Bradford R. Price.............. 48 Executive Vice President and Secretary of the Company and the Bank
(Corporate Administration and Operations Group Manager) since March 2001;
Executive Vice President and Secretary of the Company and the Bank
(Residential Lending Division Manager) from March 1992 until March 2001;
Senior Vice President and Secretary of the Company and the Bank from June
1989 until March 1992; Senior Vice President and Secretary of First Federal
Savings Bank of La Crosse from 1986 until June 1989 and prior thereto
Secretary and Vice President-Lending of First Federal Savings Bank of La
Crosse.

Robert P. Abell................. 53 Senior Vice President of the Bank (Commercial Real Estate Lending Division
Manager) since March 1992; Vice President of the Bank from June 1989 until
March 1992; Vice President-Commercial Real Estate Lending of First Federal
Savings Bank of La Crosse from December 1987 until June 1989.

- Michael W. Dosland......... 42 Senior Vice President, Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer of the Company
and the Bank (Finance and Treasury Division Manager) since February 2001;
Vice President and Controller of the Company and the Bank from March 1992
until February 2001; Controller of the Company and the Bank since June 1989
and prior thereto, Controller of First Federal Savings Bank of La Crosse from
1987 until June 1989.

Milne J. Duncan ............... 53 Senior Vice President of the Bank (Human Resources Division Manager) since
March 1992; Vice President of the Bank from June 1989 until March 1992; Vice
President of First Federal Savings Bank of La Crosse from 1986 until June 1989.
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BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP OF COMMON STOCK
BY CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The following table sets forth the beneficial ownership of shares of cur common stock as of March 1, 2002
(except as otherwise noted below) by (i) each sharcholder known to us to beneficially own more than 5% of the
shares of our cutstanding common stock, as disclosed in certain reports regarding such ownership filed with the SEC
in accordance with Sections 13(d) or 13(g) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, (ii) each of our
directors and director nominees, (iif) each of our executive officers appearing in the summary compensation table
below, and (iv) all of our directors and executive officers as a group.

Shares of
Common Stock

Beneficially Owned®

Percent of
Name Number Class
Geil K. Cleary and related persons and entities® 1,253,175 6.3%
c/oc Cleary Management Corporation
301 Sky Harbour Drive
La Crosse, Wisconsin 54603
Directors:
Marjorie A. Davenport™ ... sessesssessssss s esases s essseeas 29,200 “
John F. Leinfelder' .........ccooooioviveenrriissseesisnssssesssssssss s ssssssssessssessssssssones 113,192 %
Richard T. Lommen™ ...........coooc.orivivmmseresinnssssnsssssssssssssssssssesssssssssssssssenssssenss 276,700 1.4
Patrick J. LUDY™ ..ot ssssssssess et saese s s eseeses e senenenns 129,356 kS
David C. Mebane® ............ 49,383 %
Dale A. Nordeen®........... 125,984 ®
Phillip J. Quillin® ........... 157,438 %
Jack C. Rusch® ®»®»©® 421,605 2.1
Thomas W. Schini®» @ 6»©® 749,331 3.7
Edwin J. Zagzebski®™ ..ottt ese s en s enneesene 53,028 %
Executive officers who are not Directors;
Bradford R. Price® @ Gr O et 374,561 1.9
Joseph M. Konradt®» ¢ ©»©® ’ 158,078 * 4
Robert P. Abell® @@ 100,495 *
All directors and executive officers as a group
(16 persans) P OB O et st 2,892,652 14.1%
®  Represents less than 1% of the total number of shares of common stock outstanding.
m For purposes of this table, pursuant to rules promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act, an individual is considered to beneficially

own shares of common stock if he or she, directly or indirectly, has or shares (1) voting power, which includes the power to vote or to
direct the voting of the shares; or (2) investment power, which includes the power to dispose or direct the disposition of the shares.
Unless otherwise indicated, includes shares of common stock held directly by the individual as well as by members of such
individual’s immediate family who share the same household, shares held in trust and other indirect forms of ownership over which
shares the individual effectively exercises sole or shared voting and/or investment power. Fractional shares of common stock held by
certain executive officers under the First Federal Capital Corp Employee Stock Ownership Plan (the “ESOP”) and the First Federal
Savings Bank La Crosse-Madison Savings Investment Plan (the “401(k) Plan”) have been rounded to the nearest whole share.

(Footnotes Continued on Following Page)
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Gail K. Cleary possesses sole or shared voting and dispositive power individually or by trust with respect to the indicated shares.
Beneficial ownership of the shares of common stock is as follows: Gail K. Cleary (IRA) — 82,498 shares; the Gail K. Cleary Trust —
697,939 shares; the Russell G. Cleary Marital Trust — 200,000 shares; the Cleary-Kumm Foundation, Inc., a charitable foundation —
219,938 shares; and the Roy E. Kumm Family Trust — 52,800 shares.

Includes shares of common stock that the named individuals and certain executive officers have the right to acquire within 60 days of
the voting record date pursuant to the exercise of stock options as follows: Ms. Davenport — 22,200; Mr. Leinfelder - 26,400;
Mr. Lommen - 8,800; Mr. Luby — 17,600; Mr. Mebane - 8,800; Mr. Nordeen — 0; Mr. Quillin —~ 26,396, Mr. Rundle — 17,600; Mr.
Rusch — 73,700; Mr. Schini - 80,250; Mr. Zagzebski — 8,800; Mr. Price — 51,067; Mr. Konradt ~ 46,400 and Mr. Abell — 27,000.
Does not include options for shares of common stock that do not vest within 60 days of the voting record date that have been awarded
to executive officers and directors under our stock option plans.

Does not include shares of common stock that the named individuals will have the right to acquire within 60 days of the voting record
date if the 2002 Directors’ Option Plan is approved and the nominees for director are elected or reelected by the shareholders at the
annual meeting (due to immediate vesting of all non-discretionary optionis granted to the directors upon election or reelection). Mr.
Leinfelder - 8,800; Mr. Mebane — 8,800.

Includes shares of common stock awarded under our stock incentive plans, which are subject to vesting requirements. Recipients of
restricted stock awards may direct voting prior to vesting.

Includes shares of common stock allocated to the accounts of executive officers pursuant to the 401(k) Plan, for which such
individuals possess shared investment power and shared voting power over the shares of common stock allocated to their own
account, of which approximately 1,438 shares are allocated to accounts of the executive officers named in the summary compensation
table as follows: Mr. Rusch — 0; Mr. Schini — O; Mr. Price — 0; Mr. Konradt — 8; and Mr. Abell - 1,430.

Includes shares of common stock allocated to certain executive officers under the ESOP, for which such individuals possess shared
voting power, of which approximately 124,776 shares were allocated to executive officers named in the summary compensation table
as follows: Mr. Rusch - 24,443; Mr. Schini — 40,732; Mr. Price - 23,982; Mr. Konradt — 18,001; and Mr. Abell - 17,618.

SECTICON 16(a) BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLIANCE

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, requires our officers and directors, and

persons who own more than ten percent of the shares of our common stock outstanding, to file reports of ownership
and changes in ownership with the SEC and the NASD by certain dates. Officers, directors and greater than ten
percent shareholders are required by regulation to furnish us with copies of all Section 16(a) forms they file. Based
upon review of the information provided to us, we believe that during fiscal 2001, our officers, directors and greater
than ten percent sharehoiders complied with all Section 16(a) filing requirements, except for one inadverient failure
by Mi. Reinke to timely report on a Form 4 one acquisition of our common stock as the result of his exercise of
stock options, which acquisition and exercise of stock options were subsequently reported on a Form 4.
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COMPENSATION OF EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS |

Executive Compensation

During fiscal 2001, the Company did"not pay separate compensation to our executive officers. The
following table summarizes the total compensation paid by the Bank to our Chief Executive Officer and our next
four highest paid executive officers whese compensation, based on salary and bonus, exceeded $100,000 during
fiscal years 2001, 2000 and 1999.

Summaeary Compensation Table

Long-Term
Compensation Awards
Value of Number
Restricted of Shares

Annual Compensation®™ Stock Subject to All Other

Name and Principal Position Year _ Salary'® Bonus® Awards¥® Options® C®m@emaﬂﬂ®mm
Jack C. Rusch...ocoovvioniiiiiiinen 2001  $ 306,250 $ 142,750 $ 138,424 67,500 $ 10,474
President and 2000 219,392 112,244 165,000 60,000 10,451
Chief Executive Officer 1999 169,433 67,940 -- -- 10,009
Thomas W. Schini.............co........ 2001  $ 300,000 $ 76,829 $ 359,936 10,350 $ 21,494
Chairman of the Board and 2000 367,500 179,286 -- -- 21,494
Senior Executive Officer 1999 350,000 175,224 - -- 21,134
Bradford R. Price......ccoevvvvennenn. 2001  $ 215,083 $ 81,785 $ 138,424 39,600 $ 9,589
Executive Vice President 2000 198,439 80,444 -- 20,000 9,576
1999 169,433 67,940 -- - 9,097
Joseph M. Konradi ..................... 2001  $ 204,110 $ 78,204 $ 127,776 37,800 $ 9,129
Executive Vice President 2000 185,628 72,400 -- 15,000 9,111
1999 158,333 63,500 -- -- 8,667
Robert P. Abell......ccooceveveeeennnn 2001 $ 141,500 $ 39,484 $ 87,846 21,600 ' $ 9,355
Senior Vice President 2000 133,288 38,921 - - 9,337
1999 125,800 37,800 -- -- 8,763

(Footnotes Continued on Following Page)
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Includes compensation earned and deferred by the named executive officers pursuant to the 401(k) Plan.

Our executive officers receive cash bonus compensation under the First Federal Savings Bank La Crosse-Madison Annual Incentive
Bonus Plan (the “Annual Bonus Plan”), which is based upon the Bank’s performance. See “Compensation Committee Report.” For
fiscal 2001, 2000 and 1999, all bonus compensation paid to the named executive officers was made pursuant to the Annual Bonus Plan.

Perquisites provided to the named executive officers by us did not exceed the lesser of $50,000 or 10% of each named executive officer’s
total annual salary and bonus during the fiscal years indicated, and accordingly, are not included.

Amounts shown in this column represent the value of shares of common stock awarded to the named executive officers based upon the
closing market price of our common stock on the date of grant. No shares of restricted stock were awarded during fiscal year 1999. The
amounts indicated for fiscal 2000 and fiscal 2001 represent:

. The aggregate value of 15,000 shares of restricted stock awarded to Mr. Rusch in connection with his appointment as
President of the Company and the Bank in fiscal 2000 that is subject to the following vesting schedule: (i) 5,000 - 8/1/01;
(i1) 5,000 — 8/1/02; and (iii) 5,000 — 8/1/03; :

e The aggregate value of restricted stock awarded pursuant to the 2001-2003 long-term incentive plan in April 2001: (i) Mr.
Rusch - 10,400 shares; (it) Mr. Schini — 25,600 shares; (iii) Mr. Price - 10,400 shares; (iv) Mr. Konradt - 9,600 shares; and
(v) Mr. Abell - 6,600 shares. Restricted stock grants vest 50% each year commencing on the first anniversary of the award
date.

At December 31, 2001, the aggregate value of restricted (unvested) stock holdings by Messrs. Rusch, Schini, Price, Konradt and Abell
was $483,560, $401,920, $326,560, $301,440 and $207,240, respectively, based on a total of 30,800, 25,600, 20,800, 19,200 and 13,200
shares awarded in fiscal 2001 and 2000, respectively, which were unvested on December 31, 2001, and the closing market price of our
common stock on that date ($15.70 per share). Recipients of restricted stock awards are entitled to vote and receive payment of any
dividends on unvested shares of common stock. For a further discussion of the Company’s long-term incentive plans, see
“Compensation Committee Report.”

Amounts shown in this column represent the total number of shares of common stock subject to options granted to the named executive
officers under our long-term stock incentive plans during the fiscal years 2000 and 2001. No options were granted to the named
individuals in fiscal 1999.

Amounts shown in this column represent the Bank’s contributions on behalf of the named executive officers under the 401(k) Plan, the
ESOP, the Executive Life Bonus Plan (“Life Bonus Plan™), and disability insurance premiums paid by the Bank for fiscal 2001, 2000 and
1999. The amounts shown for each individual for fiscal 2001 are derived from the following figures: (i) Mr. Rusch - $5,100 - matching
contribution under the 401(k) Plan, $2,550 - ESOP contribution, $1,838 - Life Bonus Plan payment, and $986 - disability premium;
(i1) Mr. Schini - $5,100 matching contribution under the 401(k) Plan, $2,550 - ESOP contribution, $12,980 - Life Bonus Plan payment,
and $864 - disability premium; (iii) Mr. Price - $5,100 matching contribution under the 401(k) Plan, $2,550 - ESOP contribution,
$1,270 - Life Bonus Pian payment, and $669 - disability premium; (iv) Mr. Konradt - $5,100 - matching contribution under the 401(k)
Plan, $2,550 - ESOP contribution, $1,100 - Life Bonus Plan payment, and $379 - disability premium; and (v) Mr. Abell - $5,100 -
matching contribution under the 401(k) Plan, $2,550 - ESOP contribution, $956 - Life Bonus Plan payment, and $749 - disability
premium.
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Stack Options

As of December 31, 2001, we had 1,171 officers and employees eligible to participate in our current stock
option and incentive plans, which include the First Federal Capital Corp 1989 Stock Incentive Plan, the First Federal
Capital Corp 1952 Stock Incentive Plan, the First Federal Capital Corp 1992 Stock Option and Incentive Plan (fk/a
the Rock Financial Corp. 1992 Stock Option and Incentive Plan) and the First Federal Capital Corp 1997 Stock
Option and Incentive Plan (collectively, the “Stock Option and Incentive Plans™). As of December 31, 2001,
3,746,854 shares of common stock had been granted under the Stock Option and Incentive Plans (either in the form
of option grants or restricted stock awards) and a total of 729,104 shares of common stock were available for
granting.

The following table sets forth certain information conceming individual grants of stock opticns to certain of
the executive officers named in the summary compensation table during fiscal 2001.

Option Grants In Last Fiscal Year

Individual Grants

% of Total
Options Per Share
Granted to Exercise .
Options Employees in Price Expiration Grant Date
Nzme Granted” Fiscal Year® (/S ‘Date Present Value®

Jack C. Rusch.....coocevvvviiirnenne 67,500 17.7% $14.06 04/24/11 $284,850
Thomas W. Schini................... 10,350 2.7 $14.06 04/24/11 43,677
Bradford R. Price........c.coovenne. 39,600 10.4 $14.06 04/24/11 167,112
Joseph M. Konradt .................. 37,800 9.9 $14.06 04/24/11 159,516
Robert P. Abell......coovvevens 21,600 5.7 $14.06 04/24/11 91,152
) The options granted are subject to a vesting schedule under the stock option plans and are exercisable as follows: (i) Mr. Rusch:

22,500 — 04/24/02, 22,500 - 04/24/03, 22,500 - 04/24/04; (i) Mr. Schini: 3,450 — 04/24/02, 3,450 — 04/24/03, 3,450 - 04/24/04;
(iii) Mr. Price: 13,200 ~ 04/24/02, 13,200 — 04/24/03, 13,200 — 04/24/04; (iv) Mr. Konradt: 12,600 ~ 04/24/02, 12,600 — 04/24/03,
12,600 - 04/24/04; and (v) Mr. Abell: 7,200 — 04/24/02, 7,200 - 04/24/03, 7,200 — 04/24/04.

2) Options to purchase 380,550 shares of common stock were granted to eligible participants under the Stock Option and Incentive Plans
during fiscal 2001.
3) Based upon the Black-Scholes option pricing model, adopted for use in valuing stock options, based upon the following variable

assumptions: (i) a seven year expected life; (ii) a volatility statistic of 35%; (iii) a dividend yield of 3.0%; and (iv) a 6.0% risk-free
interest rate. The actual value, if any, an executive may realize will depend upon the excess of the stock price over the exercise price
on the date the option is exercised. There is no assurance the value realized will be at or near the value estimated by the Black-
Scholes model.
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The following table sets forth certain information concerning the value of unexercised stock options (at
December 31, 2001) granted under the Stock Option and Incentive Plans to the executive officers named in the
surnmary compensation table.

Aggregated Option Exercises In Last Fiscal Year
And Fiscal Year-End Option Values

Value of
Number of Unexercised
Unexercised In-the-Money
Options Optiens
At Fiscal Year-End At Fiseal Year-End®
Name Exercisable Unexercisable Exercisable Unexerecisable
Jack C. Rusch................ 51,200 107,500 $123,640 $298,700
Thomas W. Schini..... 76,800 10,350 72,960 16,974
Bradford R. Price....... 37,866 52,434 60,975 127,609
Joseph M. Konradt.... 33,800 47,800 50,860 108,992
Robert P. Abell ......... 19,800 | 21,600 18,810 35,424
) The value of unexércised in-the-money options is based upon the difference between the fair market value of the stock options

($15.70, which was the closing price on December 31, 2001) and the exercise price of the options at December 31, 2001.

Pension Plan

The Bank maintains the First Federal Savings Bank La Crosse-Madison Pension Plan (the “Pension Plan”)
for the benefit of our employees. The Pension Plan is a non-contributory defined benefit pension plan. All
employees who are at least age 20 and who have completed twelve months of at least 1,000 hours of service with us
are eligible to participate in the Pension Plan.

Benefits are generally payable under the Pension Plan upon retirement at age 65 based upon an average of
an employee’s five highest consecutive annual amounts of compensation during the last ten years -of employment.
Compensation is defined to include salary, bonuses, overtime, commissions, vacation and 401(k) and cafeteria (125)
plan deferrals, and does not include expense reimbursement, non-cash or stock compensation. Benefits are
calculated based on a formula that is coordinated with Social Security covered compensation. Such amounts are
within 10% of the total compensation and bonus reported for the named individuals in the Summary Compensation
Table above.

The meximum annual compensation which may be taken intc account under the Internal Revenue Code of
1986, as amended (the “Internal Revenue Code”) (as adjusted from time to time by the Internal Revenue Service) for
calculating contributions under qualified defined benefit plans is $200,000 for 2002 and the maximum annual
benefit permitted under such plans is $160,000 for 2002. At December 31, 2001, Messrs. Rusch, Schini, Price,
Konradt and Abell had 17.7, 42.5, 21.8, 20.6 and 14.1 years of credited service, respectively, under the Pension
Plan.
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The Bank’s board of directors also has authorized a supplemental non-qualified retirement plan
(“Supplemental Plan”) to provide certain additional retirement benefits to Messrs. Rusch, Schini, Price, Konradt and
Abell. The Supplemental Plan provides that Messrs. Rusch, Schini, Price, Konradt and Abell will receive a
supplemental pension benefit commencing on the first day of the calendar month following their retirement equal to
the dollar amount of the retirement benefit that would have been paid under the Pension Plan, 401(k) Plan and ESOP
without regard to the maximum annual benefit limitation of Section 415 of the Internal Revenue Code (which is
$160,000 for 2002) and the maximum annual compensation limitation in Section 401{a){(17) of the Internal Revenue
Code ($200,000 for 2002). The Supplemental Plan provides that the Bank will establish a supplemental defined
contribution account which shall include the amount of contributions which were not zllocated to their accounts
under the 401(k) Plan and ESOP because of the limitations imposed by the Internal Revenue Code. In addition to
the amounts payable in the table below, the additional projected benefits under the Supplemental Plan payable to
Messrs. Rusch, Schini, Price, Konradt and Abell amounted to an annual benefit at age 65 of $115,163, $115,109,
$48,172, $38,070 and 30, respectively, with respect to the Pension Plan and a lump sum benefit of $28,825,
$268,736, $19,923, $14,531 and $967, respectively, with respect to the 401(k) Plan and the ESOP at December 31,
2001.

The following table sets forth the estimated annual benefits payable upon retirement at age 65 in fiscal
2001 to the named executive officers under the Pension Plan and Supplemental Plan, expressed in the form of a ten
year “single life” annuity benefit, based on average annual compensation and years of service classifications
specified. The table does not set forth the amount of minimum annual benefits accrued by certain Pension Plan
participants under the benefit plan formula previously in effect before the Pension Plan was amended.

PENSION PLAN TABLE
Average
Amnmual Creditable Years of Service at Age 65
Compensation 10 i5 20 25 30
§ 20,000 .o, $ 2,500 $ 3,800 $ 5,000 $ 6,300 $ 6,300
40,000 ..o 5,200 7,800 10,300 12,900 12,900
60,000 ..o 8,900 13,300 17,700 22,200 22,200
80,000 ..o 12,600 18,900 25,100 31,400 31,400
100,000, 16,300 24,400 32,500 40,700 40,700
125,000 oo 20,900 31,300 41,800 52,200 52,200
150,000 ..ot 25,500 38,300 51,000 63,800 63,800
200,000 ... 34,800 52,200 69,500 86,900 86,900
250,000 ..o 44,000 66,000 88,000 110,000 110,000
300,000 ..o 53,300 79,900 106,500 133,200 133,200
350,000 ..ot e 62,500 93,800 125,000 156,300 156,300
400,000 ..., 71,800 107,700 143,500 179,400 179,400
450,000 .o 81,000 121,500 162,000 202,500 202,500
500,000 ... 90,300 135,400 180,500 225,700 225,700
S50,000 .ot 99,500 149,300 199,000 248,800 248,800

Employment Agreements

In fiscal 2001, the Company and the Bank amended its employment agreements with Messrs. Rusch,
Schini, Price, Konradt and Abell (collectively, the “Employment Agreements”). Under the Employment
Agreements in effect for fiscal 2001, the base salaries for Messrs. Rusch, Schini, Price, Konradt and Abell were
$315,000, $300,000, $221,500, $212,000 and $143,000, respectively. In addition to base salary, the Employment
Agreemenis provide for payments from other incentive compensation plans, and provide for other benefits,
including participation in any stock-based incentive programs of the Company and the Bank.

Messrs. Rusch, Price and Konradt’s Employment Agreements with the Bank and the Company are for three
years, while Mr. Abell’s Employment Agreement is for two years, and Mr. Schini’s expires on June 30, 2002. Each
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of the agreements may be extended on an annual basis for successive additional one-year periods upon the
expiration of each year of the term upon review and approval by the boards of directors of the Company and the
Bank.

Under the Employment Agreements, the Bank may, without further liability, terminate such employment
for “cause,” which includes, generally, conviction of a felony or any crime involving falsehood, fraud or moral
turpitude, willful failure to perform his duties and responsibilities in accordance with written instructions approved
by at least two-thirds of the board, a willful act of misconduct or violation of any law, regulation or cease and desist
order which is injurious to the Bank, a willful breach of fiduciary duty involving personal profit and incompetence,
personal dishonesty or material breach of the Employment Agreement by the executive. The Employment
Agreements with the Company terminate on the effective date of termination of the Employment Agreements with
the Bank. The Employment Agreements also provide for termination or suspension of rights granted if the
executives are terminated, susperded or permanently removed for certain violations of federal laws, or if regulatory
authorities were to determine that the Bank is operating in an unsafe financial condition. The Employment
Agreements also contain covenant-not-to-compete provisions that prohibit the executives from competing with a
significant competitor (as defined therein) of the Company or the Bank for a period of twelve months following
termination.

In the event cof a termination due to death or retirement, the executive is entitled tc receive only that
compensation and those benefits in which he was vested as of the date of termination. In the event of termination
due to disability, the executive is entitled to receipt of his base salary for the remainder of the term of the
Employment Agreement, offset by the total of any disability payments received by the executive during such pericd
under any employer disability, governmental social security, or worker’s compensation program.

In the event of a termination for cause, the Company and the Bank’s obligations under the Employment
Agreements to Messrs, Rusch, Schini, Price, Konradt and Abell cease. In the event of termination of employment
under certain circumstances, including termination without cause or other breach of the Employment Agreements by
the Bank or the Company, the executive would be entitled to receive, for the remainder of the employment term
(restored as of the date of termination), severance payments based on the highest rate of base salary within the three
years preceding termination and the cash bonus paid in the most recently completed calendar year of employment.
In addition, the executives shall be entitled to participate in all group health, dental and life insurance and certain
other employee benefii plans, at no cost to the executives, for the remainder of the employment term, and to receive
all other benefits in which the executive was vested as of the termination date. If the termination follows a “Change
in Control,” as defined in the Employment Agreements and described below, the executive may elect to receive the
severance payment in a lump sum or over a period of three years from the date of Change in Control. Under the
Employment Agreements with the Bank, the payments are limited, however, not to exceed such amounts that would
be deemed tc constitute “excess parachute payments” within the meaning of Section 280G of the Internal Revenue
Code, and by any amounis paid by a subsequent employer. In addition, the executives would receive additional
benefits under the Pension Plan in an amount determined as if the executive were fully vested under the Pension
Plan and had accumulated the additicnal years of credited service under the Pension Plan that he would have
received had he continued employment with the Bank for the entire employment term at the highest annual rate of
base salary in effect during the twelve months immediately preceding the termination date. Assuming that average
annual compensation was at each executive’s existing salary level for fiscal 2001 and utilizing the bonus amounts
for fiscal 2001, severance pay in the event of a Change in Control would amount to $1,373,250, $188,415,
$909,855, $870,612 and $364,968 for Messrs. Rusch, Schini, Price, Konradt and Abell, respectively.

The Employment Agreements define a “Change in Control” to include a change in control under certain
federal laws regardless of whether approval of the Change in Control is required under such laws and whether
resulting from merger, consolidation, reorganization, acquisition of the Bank or its assets, or any other event. The
following other circumstances involving a Change in Control of the Bank which, if they occur, also provide the
executives with termination benefits under the Employment Agreements: (i) termination of an executive officer’s
employment other than for cause after a Change in Control; (ii) resignation by an executive officer following a
significant change in the nature or scope of his authorities or duties; (iii) a reassignment to duties in a location more
than 25 miles from the location of the executive officer’s principal office immediately before such Change in
Control; and (iv) a determination by an executive officer that, as a result of such Change in Control and subsequent
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changes in the circumstances of his employment, he is unable to exercise effectively his prior authority or
responsibility.

If the severance benefits payable following a Change in Control would constitute “parachute payments”
within the meaning of Section 280G of the Internal Revenue Code, and the present value of such “parachute
payments” equals or exceeds three times the executives’ average annual compensation for the five calendar years
preceding the year in which the Change in Control occurred, the severance benefits shall be reduced to an amount
equal to the present value of 2.99 times the average annual compensation paid to the executive during the five years
immediately preceding such Change in Control. The Employment Agreements with the Company provide that the
Company will pay to the executives the entire amount of any unpaid severance that is not paid to them as a result of
the Change in Control restrictions under their Employment Agreements with the Bank. In addition, under applicable
law, a 20% excise tax would be triggered by change-in-control related payments that equal or exceed three times the
executives’ annual compensation over the five years preceding the Change in Control. The Employment
Agreements with the Company provide that to the extent payments related to a Change in Contro] are subject to the
excise tax, the Company will provide the executives with an additional amount sufficient to enable them to retain the
full value of the Change in Control benefits as if the excise tax had not applied.

Effective January 1, 2001, Mr. Schini retired from his position as our Chief Executive Officer. Mr. Schini
continues to serve as our Chairman of the Board of Directors and as a Senior Executive Officer pursuant to the terms
of employment agreements entered into with the Company and the Bank effective January 1, 2001. The agreements
provide that from January 1, 2001 until June 30, 2002, Mr. Schini will serve as Chairman of the Board of Directors
of the Company (subject to re-election as a director in April 2002) and Chairman of the Board of Directors of the
Bank and will further serve the Company and the Bank in a consultative role and on special projects. Through
June 30, 2002, Mr. Schini will be compensated at 2 base salary of $300,000 per year, which will not be reduced
during the initial term of the agreement. After June 30, 2002, the agreements may be renewed for one-year terms by
action of the board of directors of the Company and the Bank. In addition to base salary, the agreements provide for
other benefits generally made avzilable to other of our executive officers, including benefits under any bonus or
stock-based incentive plans. If Mr. Schini retires, dies or becomes disabled, he or his estate will be entitled to any
compensation and benefits to which he was entitled through his termination date. If Mr. Schini is terminated for
cause, he will not be entitled to any severance payment; however, he will be entitled to any benefits in which he was
vested as of the termination date. Mr. Schini also will be entitled to change-in-control benefits equal to the
- compensation due him for the remainder of his employment contract term at the time of any change-in-control.

Life Imsurance Policies

The Bank’s policy is to maintain a split-doliar life insurance plan for its Chief Executive Officer. In 2001,
the Bank purchased a $350,000 split-dollar life insurance policy on the life of Jack Rusch, in accordance with the
Bank’s policy after he became CEQO.

Annually, the participant recognizes taxable income to the extent of the assumed term cost of the coverage.
At the earlier of the 15th anniversary of the policy or death of the participant, the Bank’s share of the death benefit
will be sufficient to recover all premium costs associated with the plan, with the participant’s beneficiary receiving
any excess of the death benefit amount. For 2001, the amount of income attributable for a split-dollar insurance pian
was $385 for Mr. Rusch. This amount is included in the “All Other Compensation” column in the Summary
Compensation Table above.

The Bank also made a life insurance benefit previously maintained for Mr. Schini permanent in connection
with his relinquishment of the CEQO position. The existing benefit was converted into a $500,000 split-dollar pelicy
on the joint lives of Mr. Schini and his spouse. At the earlier of the 15th anniversary of the policy or second-to-die
of Mr. Schini or his spouse, the Bank’s share of the death benefit will be sufficient to recover all premium costs
associated with the plan, with the participant’s beneficiary receiving any excess of the death benefit amount.

In addition, the Bank waived Mr. Schini’s right to a portion of his SERP benefit in consideration for receipt
of a life insurance policy on the joint lives of Mr. Schini and his spouse. The benefit amount of the SERP-
conversion policy will depend upon the amount of coverage that can be purchased based on the final value of Mr.
Schini’s SERP benefit account determined as of June 30, 2002. The account will be valued at market value as of
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that date. The Bank will not be responsible for any premium obligation with respect to the policy so obtained,
except for payment of premiums equal to the present value amount of said SERP value.

Compensation of Directors
Board Fees

Each member of the board of directors of the Company who is not a full-time employee is paid an annual
retainer of $10,000. In addition, each non-employee director of the Company who also is a member of the board of
the Bank is paid an annual retainer of $10,000 for services rendered to the Bank. The Bank also contributes towards
health insurance premiums on behalf of certain directors who previously have so elected, which are taxable to the
directors. Participation in the Bank’s health insurance plans is no longer offered to existing or new directors who
have not previously elected to participate in such plans.

Directors’ Deferved Compensation Program

We maintain plans under which members of the boards of directors may elect to defer receipt of all or a
portion of their directors’ fees. Under the plans, we are obligated to repay the deferred fees, in the manner elected
by the participating director, together with interest at a stated rate. The repayments generally will commence upon
the participating director’s resignation from the board, althcugh the participating director may elect to receive
repayments at an earlier time. During fiscal 2001, no director deferred funds pursuant to these deferred
compensation plans.

Stock Option Plans

The Company adopted the 1989 Directors’ Stock Option Plan and the 1992 Directors’ Stock Option Plan
(collectively, the “Directors’ Plans”), which provide for the grant of compensatory stock options tc non-empioyee
directors of the Company and the Bank. The 1992 Directors’ Stock Option Plan expired on January 25, 2002, The
proposed 2002 Directors’ Option Plan has been adopted by the board of directors and is being submitted for
shareholder approval at the annual meeting. Pursuant to the Directors’ Plans and the 2002 Directors’ Option Plan,
each director of the Company or the Bank who is not also an employee of ours is granted a compensatory stock
option to purchase 8,800 shares of common stock upon election or reelection to the boards of directors. The 2002
Directors’ Option Plan also authorizes discretionary grants of options to purchase shares of common stock.

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE REPORT

The Compensation Committee Report will not be deemed incorporated by reference by any general
statement into any filing under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended, except to the extent we specifically incorporate such information by reference, and will not otherwise be
deemed filed under the Securities Act or the Securities Exchange Act.

Compensation Committee

The Bank’s Personnel and Compensation Committee (the “Committee”) is responsible for recommending
to the Board of Directors of the Bank the levels of compensation and benefits (excluding stock option grants and
restricted stock awards) for executive officers of the Bank. The Stock Option Commiitee of the Company reviews
and approves the grant of options and restricted stock awards pursuant to the Company’s stock incentive plans.

Under rules established by the SEC, the Company is required to provide certain data and information
regarding the compensation and benefits provided to the Company’s Chief Executive Officer (“CEQO™) and certain
other executive officers of the Company. The rules require compensation disclosure in the form of tables and a
report by the Compensation Committee of the Company which explains the rationale and considerations that led to
fundamental decisions affecting such individuals. The Committee has prepared the following report, at the direction
and approval of the Beard of Directors of the Company, for inclusion in this Proxy Statement.
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Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001, the Committee consisted of the same independent directors
who are neither officers nor employees of the Company or the Bank (“Outside Directors™) and who serve on the
Company’s Stock Option Committee (Directors Davenport, Lommen, Luby and Rundle). Mr. Rundle served as
Chairman of the Committee and Mr. Luby served as Chairman of the Company’s Stock Option Commitiece. There
are no interlocks, as defined under the rules and regulations of the SEC, between the Committee, the Company’s
Stock Option Committee and corporate affiliates of members of such committees.

Executive Compensation Policies and Plans

The Committee uses the concept of total compensation in structuring a combination of base salary,
incentive bonus, long-term compensation and perquisites for executive officers. It is the intent of the Committee to
recommend a base salary for executive officers that is comparable to the median pay level of executives of similarly
sized financial institutions based upon available competitive market data. The Committee uses outside consultants
and published compensation survey data to review competitive rates of pay, to establish salary ranges and to
recomimend base salary and bonus pay levels. Based upen such review, for fiscal 2001, the average increase in base
salary for the three highest paid executive officers (other than Messrs. Rusch or Schini) was 8.0%. The Company’s
executives, in general, will receive a level of compensation (base salary plus cash incentive bonus) at or above the
median annual compensation paid by financial competitors of the Company only when the Company meets or
exceeds the median return on assets (“ROA”) and return on equity (“ROE”) levels of its peer group.

The Committee also recognizes that “compensation” (as that term is defined in Section 162(m) of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Internal Revenue Code™)) in excess of $1,000,000 per year to an
executive officer is not deductible by the Company unless such compensation is performance-based compensation
approved by the shareholders of the Company and thus, is not “compensation” for purposes of complying with the
limit on deductibility. The Committee has been advised that no executive officer of the Company received
compensation in fiscal 2001 that will result in the loss of a corporate federal income tax deduction under Section
162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code.

Both short-term and long-term incentive plans are used to reward executive officers for the Company’s
performance relative te identified peer groups. Short-term incentive compensation, paid in the form of annual cash
bonuses, is determined pursuant to factors outlined in the First Federal Savings Bank La Crosse-Madison Annual
Incentive Bonus Plan (the “Annual Bonus Plan”). Long-term incentive compensation, paid in the form of restricted
stock awards and stock option grants, is determined pursuant tc factors ocutlined in the Company’s long-term
performance award plans. The Board of Directors of the Company reviews and approves of the terms of the Annual
Bonus Plan on an annual basis and the terms of the long-term award plans every three years.

Annual Bonus Plan

The factors used in measuring the Company’s performance under the Annual Bonus Plan are a weighted
combination of ROA and ROE. In general, a payment pursuant to the terms of the Annual Bonus Plan is made only
after the Company’s financial performance equals or exceeds median peer group financial performance. The peer
group includes a group of simiiarly sized publicly traded thrifts. The Board of Directors reviews the terms of the
Annual Bonus Plan each year and establishes the threshold, target and maximum ROA and ROE leveis, and
percentage of incentive award te be based upon ROA and ROE, respectively, after evaluation of the Company’s
strategic business plan and other factors the Board deems appropriate. Cash bonus payments are made to
participants at the end of the fiscal year based upon the Company’s projected performance levels relative to the peer
group and, if necessary, additional payments are made at the beginning of the following fiscal year to reflect actual
performance.

For fiscal 2001, ROA accounted for 25% and ROE accounted for 75% of the total cash incentive award
opportunity. Executive officers are eligible to eamn incentive compensation based on the Company achieving
threshold, target and maximum ROA and ROE performance at the 50th percentile, 65th percentile and 80th
percentile, respectively, of the peer group. In general, if financial performance is below the threshold level, no
incentive compensation will be eamed. Individual award targets vary by executive group (CEO, Executive Vice
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Presidents, Senior Vice Presidents and Department Managers) and are established as a percentage of base salary.
However, even if the Company’s performance exceeds the target ratics of the peer group, the Board of Directors of
the Company and the Bank can elect to reduce or cancel incentive payments if the Company’s RCE does not equal
or exceed a “risk-free rate of return” defined to be 110% of the average one-year treasury bill rate for the plan year.
In addition, the performance measures may be adjusted in any fiscal year if the Board of Directors approves
management strategic proposals or directs management to implement strategic proposals designed tc enhance the
long-term performance of the Company but which would materiaily impact payments under the Annual Bonus Plan.

For fiscal 2001, the Company is projected to achieve financial performance objectives that exceed the 65th
percentile for ROA and the 80th percentile for ROE relative to the Annual Bonus Plan peer group. Based on the
Company’s projected financial performance, cash bonuses were paid to Annual Bonus Plan participants in fiscal
2001 representing part of the ROA and ROE components of their 2001 bonus award. The balance of the 2001
incentive cash bonus will be paid in fiscal 2002 when final peer data is available. In April 2001, the balance of cash
bonus payments were made to participants in the Annual Bonus Plan representing the Company’s performance for
fiscal 2000, which was at the 71st percentile for ROA (1.09%) and 95th percentile for ROE (17.01%). The
aggregate pay-out to all participants under the Annual Bonus Plan in fiscal 2001 was $669,959, which represented
aggregate bonus compensation of $627,400 attributable to performance in fiscal 2001 and $42,559 attributable to
performance in fiscal 2000. The average bonus earned under the Annual Bonus Plan in fiscal 2001 by the four
highest paid executive officers at year-end (other than Mr. Rusch) was 36.7% of their base salaries compared to
39.0% in fiscal 2000.

Long-Term Award Plan: 2001-2003 Plan Period

In fiscal 2001, the Board of Directors of the Company reviewed and approved the terms of the First Federal
Capital Corp Long-Term Performance Award Plan (2001-2003) (the “Long-Term Award Plan”) which provides for
the grant of stock options and awards of restricted stock. The purpose of the Long-Term Award Plan is to
strengthen the link between executive compensation and long-term organization performance. In determining
appropriate stock option grants and stock awards, the Stock Option Committee considers the executives’
contribution toward institutional performance and the executives’ expected contribution toward meeting the
organization’s long-term strategic goals as well as industry practice. Any value received by the executive from an
option grant and any increase in the value of a stock award is a function of any increase in the price of the Common
Stock. As a result, the value of the long-term compensation is directly aligned with increased stockholder value.
The total of targeted or projected values of long-term awards at the date of the grant is set considering observed
market practices for similar institutions in the financial industry.

Pursuant to the Long-Term Award Plan, the Company’s financial performance is measured by comparing
the Company’s average ROE over a three-year performance period to the average ROE of all publicly traded thrifts
(as defined by the SNL Securities database of publicly traded thrifis) over the same period. Executive officers are
granted stock options and awarded restricted stock based upon the Company achieving threshold, target and
maximum ROE performance at the 50th percentile, 75th percentile and 90th percentile, respectively, of all publicly
traded thrifts. Individual award targeis vary by executive group (CEQ, Executive Vice Presidents and Senicr Vice
Presidents) and are established as a percentage of base salary. Department Managers also are eligible to participate
and may be awarded stock options and restricted stock at the discretion of the Stock Option Commitiee.

Under the Long-Term Award Plan, stock options are granted at the beginning of the performance period,
with no additional awards or award adjustment made during the performance cycle or at the end of the performance
period. The options vest at the rate of 33% over a three-year period from the date of grant. The exercise price of the
options is established at the fair market value of the Company’s Common Stock on the date of grant. Restricted
stock is awarded on an annual basis at the end of each “annual performance period” within the three-year plan
period after the Company’s annual ROE performance is assessed relative to the peer group annual ROE. The
number of restricted shares granted annually will depend upen the Company’s performance relative to the thrift peer
group, with participants eligible to receive a number of shares depending upon the Company’s performance relative
to the threshold, target or maximum levels noted above. Restricted stock grants will vest 50% each year
commencing on the first anniversary of the award date. The Stock Option Commiitee may elect to not award
restricted stock in any year if the Company’s average one-year ROE is below a “risk-free rate of return” defined to
be 110% of the average three-year treasury bill over the performance period.
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In fiscal 2001, pursuant to the Long-Term Award Plan (2001-2003), options to acquire 215,550 shares of
Common Stock were granted to executive officers of the Company (including the CEG). No shares of restricted
stock were granted in fiscal 2001 under the Long-Term Award Plan for the 2001-2003 plan pericd. Shares of
restricted stock will be granted to executive officers in April 2002 under the 2001-2003 plan, based upon the
Company’s ROE for fiscal 2001 relative to the thrift peer group.

Long-Term Award Plan: 1998 - 2000 Plan Period

In fiscal 1998, pursuant to the Long-Term Performance Award Plan (1998-2000), options to acquire
204,000 shares of Common Stock (adjusted for the June 1998 2-for-1 stock split) were granted to executive officers
of the Company (including the CEO and Chairman of the Board), and 68,000 shares of restricted stock (adjusted for
the June 1998 2-for-1 stock split) were contingently awarded to such executive officers, subject to the Company
achieving ROE during the 1598-2000 plan period that equals or exceeds the 75" percentile of the Company’s
publicly traded thrifts peer group.

For the 1998-2000 plan period, relative to the peer group of publicly traded thrifts, the Company achieved
an average ROE percentile ranking of 94.33%, exceeding the 75™ percentile. Therefore, in fiscal 2001, additional
restricted stock awards for 68,000 shares of Common Stock were made to executive officers of the Company (other
than the CEQ) as final payment under the Company’s long-term performance award plan for the 1998-2000 plan
period. With the exception of the grants to Mr. Schini, all restricted stock awards for the 1998-2000 plan period are
subject to a two-year vesting period with 50% of the award vesting on January 1 of each year in 2002 and 2003. Of
the 51,200 shares of restricted stock awarded to Mr. Schini for the 1998-2000 pericd (25,600 shares awarded in
fiscal 1998 and 25,600 shares awarded in fiscal 2001), 25,600 shares vested 100% on April 24, 2001 and 25,600
vested 100% on January 1, 2002. The modifications to Mr. Schini’s vesting schedule were approved by the Board
of Directors due to his proposed retirement in June 2002 (which would result in his unvested restricted stock grants
becoming 100% vested as of the effective date of his retirement). If all of Mr. Schini’s unvested restricted stock
award vested in 2002, the Company may have exceeded established IRS limits on deductibility of compensation for
that year (depending upon the value of the restricted stock as of the date of his retirement) and in such event, the
Company would lose the corresponding compensation deduction for 2002. Therefore, the Board approved the
foregoing modification to Mr. Schini’s vesting schedule to avoid the preblem of lost compensation deductions.

Shares of restricted stock and stock options granted pursuant to the Company’s Long-Term Award Plans
are made from shares of Common Stock reserved for issuance under the First Federal Capital Corp. 1992 Stock
Incentive Plan, the Rock Financial Corp. 1992 Stock Option and Incentive Plan (which was assumed by the
Company ir connection with the Rock Merger) and the First Federal Capital Corp. 1997 Stock Option and Incentive
Plan (collectively, the “Stock Option and Incentive Plans”). Under the Stock Option and Incentive Plans, the Stock
Option Comemnittee also may authorize discretionary awards irrespective of whether the performance criteria set forth
in the Long-Term Award Plan are met and may authorize discretionary awards for such other incentive/reward
purposes as it may deem advisable from time to time.

President and CEQ Compensation

Mr. Jack C. Rusch was elected by the Board of Directors of the Company and the Bank to serve as
President and Chief Operating Officer effective August 1, 2000 and as Chief Executive Officer effective January 1,
2001. Mr. Rusch’s cash compensation (salary and bonus) for fiscal 2001 consisted of competitively determined
base salary as well as the payment of cash incentive bonus based upon the Company’s fiscal 2001 financial
performance. Mr. Rusch’s base salary was increased from $275,000 (from August through December 31, 2000) to
$300,000 in Januwary 2001, and was increased to $315,000 in August 2001. The base salary adjustments reflected
the Committee’s recommendation to pay him a base salary that was representative of comparable financial
institutions of similar asset size and performance. The adjustment in base salary also was made due to Mr. Rusch
assuming the role of both President and CEQ on January 1, 2001.

During fiscal 2001, cash incentive bonus of $142,750 was paid to Mr. Rusch. This payment represented his
fiscal 2001 bonus ($135,400) as well as the balance of his fiscal 2000 bonus (§7,350) under the Company’s Annual
Bonus Plan. As noted above, the 2000 cash bonus component of the payment reflected the Company’s financial
performance relative to its peer group which data was at the 71st percentile for ROA (1.09%) and 95th percentile for
ROCE (17.01%). The Company is projected to achieve financial performance objectives for fiscal 2001 that exceed
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the 65th percentile for ROA and the 80th percentile for ROE relative to the Annual Bonus Plan peer group.
Incentive cash compensation paid to Mr. Rusch in 2001 was 46% of base compensation compared to 42.0% of base
compensation in 2000.

In fiscal 2001, Mr. Rusch alsc was awarded 10,400 shares of Common Stock as final payment under the
Company’s long-term performance award plan for the 1998-2000 plan pericd. As noted above, relative to a peer
group of publicly traded thrift institutions, the Company achieved an average ROE percentile ranking of 94.33% for
the 1998-2000 plan period, exceeding the target 75" percentile performance. The award is subject to a two-year
vesting pericd with 50% of the award vesting on January 1 of each year in 2002 and 2003.

During fiscal 2001, Mr. Rusch was granted options to purchase 67,500 shares of Common Stock pursuant
to the Company’s Long-Term Award Plan (2001-2003). The options vest at the rate of 33%% over a three-year
period from the date of grant.

March 2002

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE
Marjorie A, Davenport

Richard T. Lommen

Patrick J. Luby

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

The Audit Committee Report will not be deemed incorporated by reference by any general statement into
any filing under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, except
to the extent we specifically incorporate such information by reference, and will not otherwise be deemed filed
under the Securities Act or the Securities Exchange Act.

Audit Committee Composition and Function

The members of the Audit Committee are appointed by the Chairman of the Board and are approved by the
board of directors. At December 31, 2001, the Audit Committee was composed of four independent directors of the
Company, Messrs. John F. Leinfelder (Chairman), Dale A. Nordeen, Phillip J. Quillin and Edwin J. Zagzebski.
Mr. Henry C. Funk was 2 member of the Audit Committee until April 2001 when he retired from the board. Each of
the current members of the Audit Committee is “independent” as defined by The Nasdaq Stock Market, Inc.
(“Nasdaq”) listing standards. These listing standards include qualitative and quantitative requirements regarding the
independence and qualifications of Audit Committee members and the size of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee zcts pursuant to a written charter adopted and approved by the board of directors on
February 20, 2001. The Audit Commitiee is responsible for assisting the board in its oversight responsibilities
regarding our auditing, accounting and financial reporting process. Consistent with this function, the Audit
Committee encourages continuous improvement of, and adherence to, cur policies, procedures and practices at all
levels related to the financial comtrol and reporting process. The Audit Committee’s primary duties and
responsibilities are outlined in the charter.

Our management team is responsible for our financial reporting process including our system of internal
control, and for the preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. Our independent auditors, Emnst & Young, are responsible for auditing our financial
statements and expressing an opinion as to their conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. [t is not
the Audit Committee’s duty or responsibility to conduct auditing or accounting reviews or procedures. The
members of the Audit Committee are not employees of the Company or the Bank, and are not professionally
engaged in the practice of auditing or accounting and are not experts in the fields of accounting or auditing,
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including the area of auditor independence. Therefore, the Audit Committee has relied, without independent
verification, on management’s representation that the financial statements have been prepared with integrity and
objectivity and in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and on
the representations of Ernst & Young included in their report on our financial statements. The Audit Committee’s
oversight does not provide an independent basis to determine that management has maintained appropriate
accounting and financial reporting principles or appropriate internal controls and procedures designed to assure
compliance with accounting standards and applicable laws and regulations. Furthermore, the Audit Committee’s
considerations and discussions with management and Ernst & Young do not assure that our financial statements are
presented in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, that the audit of our financial statements has
been carried cut in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards or that Emst & Young is in fact
“independent.”

Audit Committee Actions in Fiscal 2001

In fiscal 2001, in connecticn with its oversight function, the Audit Committee met with Emst & Young,
Pursuant to Statement on Auditing Standards (“SAS”) No. 90 (Audit Committee Communications), Ernst & Young
discussed various matters relating to our financial results for fiscal 2001 and discussed matters required to be
discussed by SAS No. 61 {(Communication with Audit Committees). Ernst & Young alse provided the Audit
Committee with the written disclosures required by Independence Standards Board Standard No. 1 (Independence
Discussions with Audit Committees), disclosing any relationships between Emst & Young and us and stating that in
its professiona! judgment Ernst & Young believes that it is “independent” with respect t¢ us within the meaning of
the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

The Audit Committee also has reviewed written confirmations from management that there were no
information technology consulting services relating to financial information systems design and implementation and
internal audit services (“non-zudit services”) provided by Emnst & Young in fiscal 2001. The Audit Committee has
considered whether the provision of such non-audit services by Ernst & Young to us is compatible with maintaining
Ernst & Young’s independence and has discussed with them their independence.

Each year the Audit Committee is responsible for providing the board of directors with a recommendation
as to whether our annual financial statements should be included in our annual report on Form 10-K filed with the
SEC. Based on the Audit Committee’s discussions with cur management and Emst & Young conceming the fiscal
2001 audit, the financial statements and related review process and other matters deemed relevant and appropriate
by the Audit Committee, and subject to the limitations on the role and responsibilities of the Audit Committee
referred to above and in the charter, the Audit Committee met in February 2002 to issue this Audit Committee
Report and recommended to the board that fiscal 2001 financial statements be included in the 2001 annual report on
Form 10-K filed with the SEC.

February 2002

AUDIT COMMITTEERE
John F. Leinfelder
Dale A. Nordeen
Phillip J. Quillin

Edwin J. Zagzebski
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STOCK PERFORMANCE GRAPH

The following graph compares the yearly cumulative total retwrn on our common stock over a five-year
measurement period with (i) the yearly cumulative total return on the stocks included in the Nasdaq Stock Market
Index (for United States companies), and (ii) the yearly cumulative total return on the stocks included in the Nasdaq
Bank Stock Index. The cumulative returns set forth in each graph assume the reinvestment of dividends inte
additional shares of the same class of equity securities at the frequency with which dividends were paid on such
securities during the applicable comparison period.

Comparison of Five-Year Cumulative Total Returns
First Federal Capital Corp
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12/31/96 12/31/97 12/31/98 12/31/99 12/31/0¢ 12/31/01
Company common stock.......... $100.00 $219.53 $215.96 $197.36 $203.18 $227.23
Nasdaq Composite Index.......... 100.00 122.15 171.24 318.72 193.85 153.53
Nasdaq Bank Stocks................. 100.00 166.60 149.51 140.84 165.76 186.78

Notes to the Stock Performance Graph:

i) The lines in the graph represent monthly index levels derived from compounded daily returns that include
dividends.

2) The indexes are reweighted daily using the market capitalization on the previous trading day.

3) In the monthly interval, based on the fiscal year end, is not a trading day, the preceding day is used.

4) The Index level for all series was set to $100 on December 31, 1996.
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INDEBTEDNESS OF MANAGEMENT AND CERTAIN TRANSACTIONS

Prior to the enactment of the Financial Institutions Reform, Recovery, and Enforcement Act of 1989, as
amended, First Federal Savings Bank of Lz Crosse and First Federal Savings Bank of Madison, F.S.B. followed the
policy of making loans to their directors, officers and employees at preferred interest rates and fees. In accordance
with current federal law, ail loans to officers and directors are now made on the same terms, including interest rates,
loan fees, and collzteral as those prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with the general public and do
not involve more than the normal risk of repayment or present other unfavorable features. During 2001, no director
or executive officer had loans outstanding at preferred interest rates from us that aggregated $560,000 or more.

We intend that all transactions in the future between us and our executive officers, directors, holders of
10% or more of the outstanding shares of common stock and affiliates thereof, will contain terms ne less favorable
to us than could have been obtained by us in arms’ length negotiations with unaffiliated persons and will be
approved by a majority of cutside directors not having any interest in the transaction.

SHAREHOLDER PROPOSALS FOR THE FISCAL 2003 ANNUAL MEE'E‘ENG
Deadiine for Submission of Shareholder Proposals for Inclusion in Fiscal 2003 Proxy Materials

To be considered for inclusion in the proxy statement relating to the annual meeting to be held in April
2003, shareholder proposals must be received at our principal executive offices at 605 State Street, La Crosse,
Wisconsin 54601, Attention: Bradford R. Price, Executive Vice President and Secretary, no later than
November 15, 2002. If such proposal is in compliance with all of the requirements of Rule 142-8 under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, it will be included in the proxy statement and set forth on the
appointment form of proxy issued for the 2003 annual meeting. It is urged that any such proposals be sent certified
mail, return receipt requested. Nothing in this section shall be deemed to require us to include in our proxy
statement and proxy relating to the 2003 annual meeting any shareholder proposal which does not meet all of the
requirements for inclusicn established by the SEC in effect at the time such proposal is received.

Advance Notice Requirement for Any Proposal or Nemination to be Raised by a Shareholder

Shareholder proposals that are not submitted for inclusion in our proxy materials pursnant to Rule 14a-8
under the Securities Exchange Act may be brought before an annual meeting pursuant to Section 2.17 of cur bylaws,
which provides that business at an annual meeting of shareholders must be (a) specified in the notice of meeting (or
any supplement thereto) given by or at the direction of the board of directors, (b) otherwise properly brought before
the meeting by or at the direction of the board, or (c) otherwise properly brought before the meeting by a
shareholder. For business to be properly brought before an annual meeting by a shareholder, the shareholder must
have given timely notice thereof in writing to our Secretary. To be timely, a shareholder’s notice must be delivered
to or mailed and received at our principal executive offices not less than 60 days prior to the anniversary date of the
mailing of our proxy materials for the immediately preceding annual meeting. A shareholder’s notice must set forth
as to each matter the shareholder proposes to bring before an annual meeting (a) a brief description of the business
desired to be brought before the annual meeting, (b) the name and address, as they appear on our books, of the
shareholder proposing such business, (c) the class and number of shares of common stock that are beneficially
owned by the shareholder, and (d) any material interest of the shareholder in such business.
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Discretionary Voting of 2003 Proxies
Pursnant to Rule 14a-4(c) under the Securities Exchange Act and Section 2.17 of our bylaws, if a
shareholder fails to notify us of such proposal by January 14, 2003, then the management proxies named in the form

of proxy distributed in connection with cur proxy statement may use their discretionary voting authority to address
the proposal submitted by the shareholder, without discussion of the propesal in the proxy statement.

OTHER MATTERS
Management is not aware of any business to come before the annual meeting other than the matters
described above in this proxy statement. However, if any other matters should properly come before the annual
meeting or any adjournments or postponements thereof, it is intended that the proxies solicited hereby will be voted
with respect to those other matters in accordance with the judgment of the persons voting the proxies.

By Order of the Board of Directors

La Crosse, Wisconsin Bradford R. Price
March 15, 2002 Executive Vice President and Secretary
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Forward-Leooking Statements

This report includes certain forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Such statements include words and phrases such as "will likely resuit", "are
expected to", "will continue”, “is enticipated”, "is estimated”, "is projected”, "intends to", or similar expressions.
Forward-looking statements are based on management's current expectations. Examples of factors which could
cause future results to differ from management’s expectations include, but are not limited to, the following: general
economic and competitive conditions; legislative and regulatory initiatives; monetary and fiscal policies of the
federal government; general market rates of inferest; interest rates on competing investments; interest rates on
funding sources; consumer and business demand for deposit and loan products and services; consumer and business
demand for other financial services; changes in accounting policies or guidelines; and changes in the quality or
composition of the Corporation's loan and investment portfolios. Readers are cautioned that forward-locking
statements are not guarantees of future performance and that actual results may differ materially from management’s
current expectations.

Management of the Corporation does not undertake and specifically disclaims any cbligation to update any
forward-looking statements to reflect the occurrence of anticipated or unanticipated events or circumstances afier the
date of such statements.

PART I
Item [~Business

This section of the report conmtains gemeral information about First Federal Capital Corp (the
"Corporation”), its wholly-owned subsidiary First Federal Saving Bank of La Crosse-Madison (the "Bank"), and the
Bank’s wholly-owned subsidiaries (collectively “the reporting group”). Included in this section is information
regarding the reporting group's markets and business environments, significant operating and accounting policies,
practices, and procedures, as well as its competitive and regulatory environments. Information regarding the
reporting group's current financial condition and results of operations is included in Part II, Item 7, "Management's
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations®, Part II, Item 7A, "Quantitative and
Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk”, and Part II, Item 8, "Financial Statermments and Supplementary Data”.
This section should be read in conjunction with those sections. '

First Federal Capital Corp

The Corporation was incorporated under the laws of the State of Wisconsin in 1989. In that year the
Corporation also became the savings and loan holding company for the Bank upon its conversion from mutual to
stock form. The Corporation currently owns all of the cutstanding capital stock of the Bank, which is the principal
asset of the Corporation. The Corporation's principal office is located at 605 State Street, La Crosse, Wisconsin,
54601, and its telephone number is (608) 784-80C9.

First Federal Savings Bami La Crosse-Madison
The Bank was founded in 1934 and is a federally-chartered, federally-insured, savings bank headquartered

in La Crosse, Wiscomsin. The Bank's primary business is community banking, which includes attracting deposits
from anc¢ making loans to the general public, businesses, government, and professional customers. In addition to

deposits, the Banl obtains funds through borrowings from the Federal Home Loan Bank of Chicago ("FHLB"), as -

well as through other sources such as securities sold under agreements to repurchase and purchases of federal funds.
These funding sources are principally used to originate loans, including single-family residential loans, commercial
real estate loans, business lozns and lines of credit, consumer loans, and education loans. The Banlk also purchases
single-family residential and commercizl real estate loans from third-party financial institutions and invests in
mortgage-backed and related securities. The Bank is also an active seller of residential loans in the secondary
market.

The Bank's primary market areas for conducting its activities consist of communities located in the western,
south-central, and eastern portions of Wisconsin and the northern portion of [llinois, as well as contiguous counties
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in Jowa and Minnesota. The Bank maintains 78 banking offices in its market areas. Twenty of these offices are
located in the Madison metropolitan area, six in the La Crosse metropolitan area, five in the city of Eau Claire, four
in the Appletor and Wausau areas, three in the Beloit, Hudson, and Green Bay areas, and two each in the cities of
Kenosha, Janesville, Neenah, Oshkosh, and Racine, Wisconsin. The Bank also maintains one banking facility in
thirteen other cities located throughout its market area in Wisconsin, as well as five offices in the Rockford, Iilinois,
area. The Bank also has two separate residential loan production offices in Appleton, Wisconsin,

The Bank is subject to regulation and examination by the Office of Thrift Supervision ("OTS"), its
chartering authority and primary regulator, and by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation ("FDIC"), which
administers the Savings Association Insurance Fund ("SAIF"), which insures the Bank's deposits to the maximum
extent permitted by law.

The Bank's principal executive offices are located at 605 State Street, La Crosse, Wisconsin, 54601, and its
telephone number is (608) 784-8000. The Bank’s internet site is www. firstfed.com.

Organizational Structure and Segment Reporting

In 2001, the Corporation completed a reorganization along functional lines rather than product lines. The
principal components of the Corporation’s organization now consist of a Community Banking Group, which has
primary responsibility for the sale and delivery of all the Corporation’s products and services, and a2 Cerporate
Administration and Cperations Group, which has primary responsibility for product support, data and technology
management, and property management. The Corporation alse has a Commercial Real Estate Lending Division,
which is responsible for the origination and servicing of commercial real estate loans, 2 Finance and Treasury
Division, and 2 Human Resources Division. Each group or division is led by an executive officer that reports
directly to the president of the Corporation.

Despite its recrganization along functional rather than product lines, the Corporation continues to account
for its operations along product lines. The Corporation tracks profitability in four major areas: (i) residential
lending, (ii) commercial real estate lending, (iii) consumer lending, and (iv) investment and mortgage-related
securities. Residential lending is divided into two profit centers for segment reporting purposes: (i) a mortgage
banking profit center that is responsible for ioan origination, sales of loans in the secondary market, and servicing of
residential loans, and (ii) a residential loan portfolic that consists of loans held by the Corporation for investment
purposes (loans held for sale are included in the mortgage banking profit center). This profit center also includes
mortgage-backed securities that are collateralized by loans that were originated by the Corporation. Commercial
real estate lending consists of the Corporation's porifolio of multi-family and non-residential mortgage loans, as well
as functions related to the origination and servicing of such loans. Consumer lending is divided into two profit
centers for segment reporting purposes: (i) a consumer lending portfolio, which consists of the Corporation's second
mortgage, automobile, and other consumer installment loans, as well as functions related to the origination and
servicing of such loans, and (i) an education loan portfolio, which also includes functions related to the origination
and servicing of the loans. Finally, the Corporation's investment and morigage-related securities portfolio is
considered a profit center for segment reporting purposes. However, mortgage-backed securities cotlateralized by
loans originated by the Corporation are included in the residential loan profit center, rather than the investment and
mortgage-related securities portfolio.

The Corporation's extensive branch network, which delivers checking, savings, certificates of deposit and
other financial products and services to customers, is considered a support department for segment reporting
purposes.

In October 2001, the Corporation completed the acquisition of American Community Bankshares, Inc.
("ACB"). In addition, in January 2002 the Corporation announced an agreement to purchase three branch offices in
Rochester, Minnesota, from another financial institution. This purchase includes the customer loans and deposits at
those branches. In addition to offering products and services similar to the Corporation’s existing product lines,
these institutions also deliver commercial loan and deposit products and services to business customers. This
represents a new line of business for the Corporation and a new reportable segment. The financial results of this
new line of business have not been separately reported in 2001 due to continuing efforts to design these products on
the Corporation’s systems, as well as efforts to complete the integration of the operations of ACB and the three




Rochester branches. For additional discussion, refer to Notes 14 and 15 of the Corporation’s Audited Consolidated
Financial Statements, included herein under Part [I, Item 8, "Financial Statements and Supplementary Data".

For additional discussion regarding the Corporation's reportable segments, refer to Note 13 of the
Corporation's Audited Consolidated Financial Statements, included herein under Part II, Item 8, “Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data”, as well as Part I, Item 7, "Management's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations".

Lending Activities

Gemerg! The principal categories of loans in the Corporation's porifolio are conventicnal real estate loans
secured by single-family residences, commercial real estate loans secured by multi-family residential and non-
residential real estate, consumer loans secured primarily by second mortgages on single-family residences and
automobiles, government-guaranteed education loans, and commercial loans to businesses secured by varied
collateral or consideration. Although the Corporation also originates single-family residential loans that are insured
or partiaily guaranteed by federal and state agencies, the Corporation dees not generally retain such loans in its
residential loan portfolio. As of December 31, 2001, approximately 68% of the Corporation's total assets consisted
of loans held for investment purposes.

Residential Lending Single-family residential loans accounted for approximately 36% of the Corporation's
gross loans as of December 31, 2001. Applications for single-family residential and construction loans are accepted
by commission-based employees of the Corporation at a number of locations (most of which are located with
deposit-taking offices) and by salaried employees at a few sther deposit-taking offices that are able to handle such
applications.

In general, the Corporation retains in its portfolio only single-family residential mortgage loans that provide
for periodic adjustments of the interest rate ("adjustable-rate mortgage loans”). These loans generally have terms of
up to 30 years and interest rates which adjust every one to two years in accordance with an index based on the yield
on certain U.S. government securities. A portion of these loans may guarantee borrowers a fixed rate of interest for
the first three to five years of the loan's term. Furthermore, most of these loans have annual interest rate change
limits ranging from [% to 2%, maximum lifetime interest rates ranging from 11% to 17%, and minimum lifetime
rates of approximately 6%. It is the Corporation's practice from time-to-time to discount the interest rate it charges
on its adjustable-rate mortgage loans during the first one to five years of the loan, which has the effect of reducing a
borrower's payment during such years. In addition, most of the Corporation's adjustable-rate mortgage loan
agreements permit borrowers to convert their adjustable-rate loans to fixed-rate loans under certain circumstances in
exchange for a fee. Upon conversion, the Corporation generally sells such loans in the secondary market.

Adjustable-rate mortgage loans decrease the Corporation’s exposure to risks associated with changes in
interest rates, but involve other risks because as interest rates increase, sorrowers' monthly payments increase, thus
increasing the potential for default. This risk has not had any adverse effect on the Corporation to date, although no
assurances can be made with respect to future periods.

The Corporation occasionally purchases adjustable-rate single-family residential loans from third-party
financial institutions. In general, such loans are subject to the same underwriting standards as loans originated
directly by the Corporation. However, such loans are usually secured by properties located outside of the
Corporation's primary market areas. The seller generally retains servicing of the loans.

Although the Corporation generally retains only adjustable-rate mortgage loans in its portfolio, it continues
to originate fixed-rate morigage loans in order to.provide & full range of products to its customers. In general, such
loans are originated only under terms, conditions, and documentation standards that make such loans eligible for
sale to the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation ("FHLMC"), the Federal National Mortgage Association
("FNMA"™), the FHLB, and other institutional investors. The Corporation generally sells these loans at the time they
are criginated. In addition, the Corporation generally sells any adjustable-rate mortgage loans that convert to fixed-
rate loans inm accordance with options granted to such borrowers in the original lcan documents, as previously
described. Sales of mortgage loans provide additicnal funds for lending and other business purposes.




Sales or securitizations of mortgage loans through FHLMC and FNMA have generally been under terms
that do not provide for any recourse ageinst the Corporation by the investor. In the case of sales to the FHLB,
however, the Corporation retains the credit risk on the underlying loans in exchange for a credit enhancement fee.
Furthermore, the Corporation on occasion has also retained the credit risk on certain securitizations of its own loans
into mortgage-backed securities ("MBSs") through FHLMC or FNMA.

The Corporation's general policy is to lend up to 80% of the independently appraised value of the property
securing a first mortgage loan (referred to as the "loan-to-value ratio”). The Corporation will occasionally lend in
excess of an 80% loan-to-value rztic on a first morigage loan, but will generally require the borrower to obtain
morigage impairment insurance on the portion of the loan that exceeds 80%. The Corporation receives commission
revenue from the independent insurance providers that sell such policies to the Corporation's loan customers.
Beginning in 2001, premium revenue on the sale of such policies is also received through a wholly-owned, second-
tier subsidiary of the Bank. This revenue is received in exchange for the subsidiary's reinsurance of a portion of the
mortgage impairment risk. Refer to "Subsidiaries”, below, for additional discussion.

In 2001, the Corporation began to offer loan programs to qualifying borrowers with good credit standing
which will enable them to obtain a second mortgage loan from the Corporation in conjunction with their first
mortgage loan. Under these programs, the combined principal balance of the loans will not exceed 100% of the
property's value and the Corporation will waive the requirement for mortgage impairment insurance.

The Corporation also originates loans to individuals to construct single-family residences. Such loans
accounted for approximately 3% of the Corporation's gross loans as of December 31, 2001. Construction loans may
be made without commitments to purchase the property being constructed and the borrower may not have take-out
commitments for permanent financing on hand at the time of origination. Construction loans generally have a
maturity of 6 to 12 months and a fixed rate of interest, with payments being made monthly on an interest-only basis.
Construction loans are otherwise underwritien and approved in the same manner as other single-family residential
loans. Construction loans, however, are generally considered to involve a higher degree of risk than conventional
residential mortgage loans. This is because the risk of loss is largely dependent on the accuracy of the initial
estimate of the property's value at completion of construction, the estimated cost of construction, and the borrower's
ability to advance additional construction funds, if necessary.

In addition to servicing the loans in its own portfolio, the Corporation continues to service most of the loans
that it sells to third-party investors (comunonly referred to as "loans serviced for others"). Servicing mortgage loans,
whether for its own portfolic or for others, includes such functions as collecting monthly principal and interest
payments from borrowers, maintaining escrow accounts for real estate taxes and imsurance, and making such
payments on behalf of borrowers when they are due. When necessary, servicing of mortgage loans also includes
functions related to the collection of delinguent principal and interest payments, loan foreclosure proceedings, and
disposition of foreclosed real estate.

When the Corporation services loans for others, it is compensated for these services through the retention
of a servicing fee from borrowers’ monthly payments. The Corporation pays the third-party investors an agreed-
upon yield on the loans, which is generally less than the interest agreed to be paid by the borrowers. The difference,
typically 25 basis points or more, is retained by the Corporation and recognized as servicing fee income over the
lives of the loans, net of amortization of capitalized mortgage servicing rights. The Corporation also receives fees
and interest income from ancillary sources such as delinquency charges and float on escrow and other funds. The
Corporation also purchases morigage servicing rights from third parties for which it retains an agreed-upon fee from
borrowers' monthly payments, as previously described. The Corporation performs substantiaily the same services
for these loans as it does on its own originations.

Management believes that servicing mortgage loans for third parties provides a natural hedge against other
risks inherent in the Corporation’s mortgage banking operations. That is, fluctuations in volumes of mortgage loan
originations and resulting gains on sales of such loans caused by changes in market interest rates will generally be
offset in part by an opposite change in loan servicing fee income. These fluctuations are usually the result of actual
loan prepayment activity that is different from that which was anticipated when the related servicing rights were
originally recorded. However, fluctuations in the value of morigage servicing rights may also be caused by mark-to-
market adjustments under generaily accepted accounting principles ("GAAP"). That is, the value of servicing rights




may fluctuate because of changes in the discount rates or future prepayment assumptions used to periodically value
servicing rights. Although management believes that most of the Corporation’s loans that prepay are replaced by a
new lcan to the same customer or even a different customer (thus preserving the future servicing cash flow), GAAP
requires mark-to-market losses resulting from a change in future prepayment assumptions to be recorded in the
period in which the change occurs. However, the offsetting gain on the sale of the new loan, if any, cannot be
recorded under GAAP until the customer actually prepays the old loan and the new loan is sold in the secondary
market. Mortgage servicing rights are particularly susceptible to unfavorable mark-tc-market adjustments during
periods of declining interest rates during which prepayment activity typically accelerates to levels above that which
had been anticipated when the servicing rights were originally recorded. For additional discussion, refer to Notes 1
and 4 of the Corporation's Audited Consclidated Financial Statements, included herein under Part I, Item 8,
"Financial Statements and Supplementary Data”, as well as Part [1, Item 7, "Management’s Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations”.

Commercial Real Estote Lending Multi-family residential loans and non-residential real estate loans
(together "commercial real estate loans") accounted for approximately 28% of the Corporation's gross loans as of
December 31, 2001. Applications for commercial real estate loans are accepted at the Corporation's main office in
La Crosse, as well as offices in Madison, Appleton, Milwaukee, and Wausau, Wisconsin. All underwriting and
approval of such loans, however, is performed at the Corporation’s main office in La Crosse, as is the servicing of
such loans on an on-going basis. It is the Corporation’s general policy to restrict its commercial real estate lending
to loans secured by properties located within a 300-mile radius of La Crosse, which includes all or a portion of the
states of Wisconsin, Nebraska, [llincis, lowa, and Minnesata.

The Corporation's emphasis in commercial real estate lending is in loans secured by collateral classified as
Type A properties, which are to comprise not less than 80% of the Corporation’s total corumercial real estate loan
portfolio. Examples of such properties include multi-family residential properties, retail shopping establishments,
office buildings, and multi-tenant industrial buildings. Not more than 20% of the Corporation's commercial real
estate loan portfolio is to include loans secured by coliateral classified as Type B properties, examples of which
include nursing homes, single-tenant industrial buildings, hotels and motels, and churches. The Corporation's
current pelicy is to not make any new loans secured by collateral classified as Type C properties, examples of which
include restaurants, recreation facilities, and other special purpose facilities, although the Corporation has made
loans secured by such properties in the past. The properties securing the Corporation’s commercial real estate loans
are generally "non-owner occupied”. That is, the borrower is not 2 major tenant in the property.

Applications for commercial real estate loans are generally obtained from existing borrowers, direct
contacts by loan officers, and referrals. In general, these loans have amortization periods ranging from 20 to 30
years, mature in ten years or less, and have interest rates which are fixed for one to five years--thereafter adjusting in
accordance with a designated index that is generally subject to a floor and a ceiling. Loan-to-value ratios on the
Corporation's commercial real estate loans may be as high as 80% for loans secured by Type A properties and 75%
or lower for commercial real estate loans secured by Type B properties. In addition, as part of the criteria for
underwriting commercial real estate loams, the Corporation generally imposes on potential borrowers a "debt
coverage ratio” (the ratic of net cash from operations before payment of debt service to debt service). This ratio
ranges from 115% to 120% for loans secured by Type A properties and 120% to 150% for loans secured by Type B
properties. It is also the Corporation's general policy to obtain personal guarantees on its comumercial real estate
loans and, when such guarantees canmot be obtained, to impose more stringent loan-to-value ratios, debt service
ratios, and other underwriting requirements.

The Corporation occasionally purchases comumnercial real estate loans from third-party financial institutions.
In general, such loans are subject to the same geographic restrictions and underwriting standards as loans originated
directly by the Corporation. The Corporation, however, does not generally service such loans after their acquisition.

From time-to-time the Corporation originates loans to construct muiti-family residential and non-residential
real estate properties. Such loans accoumted for approximately 1% of the Corporation's gross loans as of
December 31, 2001. Construction loans are generally considered to involve a higher degree of risk than mortgage
loans on completed properties. The Corporation's risk of loss on a construction loan is dependent targely upon the
accuracy of the initial estimate of the property's value at completion of construction, the estimated cost of
construction, and the borrower’s ability to advance additional construction funds if such should become necessary.




The Corporation's construction lending activities are generally limited to an area within a 150-mile radius of each of
Madison, La Crosse, Appleton, Milwaukee, and Wausau, Wisconsin.

Commercial real estate lending is generally considered to involve 2 higher level of risk than single-family
residential lending. This is due to the concentration of principal in a limited number of loans and borrowers, the
effects of general economic conditions on real estate developers and managers and on income producing properties,
and the increased difficulty of evaluating and monitoring these types of lcans. Moreover, a construction loan can
involve additional risks because of the inherent difficulty in estimating both a property's value at completion of the
project and the estimated cost of the project. In addition, lcans secured by properties located outside of the
Corporation's immediate market area may involve 3 higher degree of risk. This is because the Corporation may not
be as familiar with market conditions and other relevant factors as it would be in the case of loans secured by
properties located within its market areas. The Corporation does not have a material concentration of commercial
real estate loans outside of its immediate market area.

The Corporation has attempted to minimize the foregoing risks by adopting what management believes are
conservative underwriting guidelines that impose more stringent loan-to-value ratios, debt service ratios, and other
requirements on loans, which are believed tc involve higher elements of risk. The Corporation also requires
independent appraisals on all loans, requires personal guarantees where appropriate, limits the geographic area in
which the Corporation will make construction loans, and limits the types of loans in its portfolio, as previously
described.

Consumer Lending The Corporation offers consumer loans in order to provide a full range of financial
services to its customers. Such loans accounted for approximately 19% of the Corporation's gross loans as of
December 31, 2001. Applications for consumer loans are taken at the Corporation's banking offices, as well as over
the phone at the Corporation's headquarters in La Crosse. The majority of such loans, however, are underwritten,
approved, and serviced on'an on-going basis at the Cerporation's headquarters. Most of the Corporation's consumer
loan portfolio consists of second mertgage loans, but also includes automobile loans, home equity lines of credit,
recreational vehicle and mobile home loams, deposit account secured loans, and unsecured lines of credit or
signature loans. The Corporation services all of its own consumer loans,

Consumer loans generally have shorter terms and higher rates of interest than conventional mortgage loans,
but typically involve more credit risk than such loans because of the nature of the collateral and, in some instances,
the absence of collateral. In gemeral, consumer loans are more dependent upon the borrower's continuing financial
stability, are more likely to be affected by adverse persomal circumstances, and are often secured by rapidly
depreciating personal property such as automobiles. In addition, various laws, including bankruptcy and inselvency
laws, may limit the amount that may be recovered from a borrower. However, such risks are mitigated to some
extent in the case of second mortgage loans and home-equity lines of credit. These types of loans are secured by a
second mortgage on the borrower's residence for which the total principal balance outstanding (including the first
mortgage) does not generally exceed 100% of the property's value. Second mortgage loans are generally fixed-rate
and have terms of up to ten years.

The Corporation believes that the higher yields eamed on consumer loans compensate for the increased risk
associated with such loans and that consumer loans are important to the Corporation's efforts to increase the interest
rate sensitivity and shorten the average maturity of its loan portfolic. Furthermore, the Corporaticn’s net charge-offs
on consumer foans as a percentage of gross loans have not been significant in recent years, despite the risks inherent
in consumer lending.

In comjunction with its consumer lending activities, the Corporation also offers customers credit life and
disability insurance products underwritten and administered by an independent insurance provider. The Corporation
receives commission revenue related to the sales of these products. In addition, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Bank receives premium revenue in exchange for the portion of the insurance risk it has reinsured on these sales.
Refer to "Subsidiaries” below, for additional discussion.

Edycation Lending The Corporation offers education loans through programs sponsored by the federal
government. As such, the federal government guarantees most of the principal and interest on such loans. A third




party services the loans for the Corporation after they are originated. Education loans accounted for approximately
11% of the Corporation's gross loans as of December 31, 2001.

Education loans generally carry a floating-rate of interest and have terms of up to 15 years. Legislation
enacted in late 1999 changed the interest rate eammed by lenders on education loans from the three-month U.S.
Treasury bill plus 220 basis points (280 basis points for borrowers no longer in scheol) to a commercial paper rate
plus 174 basis points (234 basis points for bomrowers no longer in school). This change was effective for loans
originated after January 1, 2000.

Commercial Business Lending As of December 31, 2001, commercial loans accounted for approximately .
2% of the Corporaticn’s gross loans. The Corporation completed the acgquisition of ACB, a state-chartered
commercial bank in Wausau, Wisconsin, in October 2001. As a result of this acquisition, the Corporation began to
offer loans to commercial businesses and agricultural entities in the Wausau area. These loans may take the form of
lines of credit, single payment loans, or term payment loans, and may be secured or unsecured depending on the
creditworthiness of the borrower. The Corperation is currently operating under the commercial lending policies in
place at ACB at the time of its acquisition. However, a new comprehensive commercial lending policy is being
developed and is expected to be in place during the first quarter of 2002. Applications for commercial business
ioans are cumrently accepted only at the Corporation’s downtown Wausau office. Underwriting and approval of
comumercial loans is performed in Wausau and at the Corporation’s main office in La Crosse. The servicing of such
loans on an on-going basis will be performned in La Crosse once the operations of ACB are fully integrated into the
Corporation.

Upon completion of the recently announced purchase of three banking offices in Rochester, Minnesota,
from another financial institution (along with the related customer loans and deposits), the Corporation will also
begin offering commercial loan products in that market area. Ip addition, the Corporation anticipates that it will
begin extending loans to small and middle market business customers in other selected market areas in 2002.
However, there can be no assurances.

For additional discussion relating to the acquisition of ACB and the three banking offices in Rochester,
Minnesota, refer to Notes 14 and 15 of the Corporation’s Audited Consolidated Financial Statements, included
herein under Part I, Item 8, "Financial Statements and Supplementary Data".

Non-Performing and Other Classified Asseis Loans are generally placed on non-accrual status and
considered "non-performing"” when, in the judgment of management, the probability of collection of principal or
interest is deemed to be insufficient to warrant further accrual of interest. When a loan is placed on nom-accrual
and/or non-performing status, previously accrued but unpaid interest is deducted from interest income. In general,
the Corporation does not record accrued interest on loans 90 or more days past due. Refer to Notes | and 3 of the
Corporation's Audited Consolidated Financial Statements, included herein under Part II, Item 8, "Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data”.

When a loan is placed on non-accrual and/or non-performing status, the Corporation generally institutes
foreclosure or other collection proceedings. Real estate property acquired by the Corporation as a result of
foreclosure or deed-in-lieu of foreclosure is classified as "real estate” and is considered "non-performing” until it is
sold. Other property acquired through adverse judgement, such as sutomobiles and other depreciable assets, are
generally classified as an “other asset”. The amount of foreclosed real estate and other repossessed property has not
been material to the Corporation in recent years.

Federal regulations require thrift institutions to classify their assets on a regular basis. In addition, in
connection with examinations of thrift institutions, federal examiners have authority to classify problem assets as
"Substandard”, "Doubtful”, or "Loss". An asset is classified as "Substandard” if it is determined to involve a distinct
possibility that the Corporation could sustain some loss if deficiencies associated with the loan are not corrected. An
asset is classified as "Doubtful” if full collection is highly questionable or improbable. An asset is classified as
"Loss" if it is considered uncollectible, even if a partial recovery could be expected in the future. The regulations
also provide for a "Special Mention" designation, described as assets which do not currently expose the Corporation
to a sufficient degree of risk to warrant adverse classification, but which possess credit deficiencies or potential
weaknesses deserving management's close attention. [f an asset or pertion thereof is classified as "Loss", the




Corporation must either establish a specific allowance for the portion of the asset classified as "Loss", or charge off
such amount. Refer to Part II, ltem 7, "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results
of Operations"”, for additional discussion.

Allowances for Losses on Loans and Real Estate The Corporation's policy is to establish allowances for
estimated Iosses on specific ioans and real estate when it determines that losses are expected to be incurred. In
addition, the Corporation maintains a general loss allowance against its loan and real estate portfolios that is based
on its own loss experience, management's ongoing assessment of current economic conditions, the credit risk
inherent in the portfolios, and the experience of the financial services industry. For additional information, refer to
Part II, Item 7, "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and
Notes 1 and 3 of the Corporation's Audited Consolidated Financial Statements, included herein under Part I, Item 8,
"Financial Statements and Supplementary Data".

Management of the Corporation believes that the current allowances established by the Corporation are
adequate to cover any potential losses in the Corporation's loan and real estate pertfolios. However, future
adjustments to these allowances may be necessary and the Corporation's results of operations could be adversely
affected if circumstances differ substantially from the assumptions used by management in making its
determinations in this regard.

Investment and Mortgage-Related Securities

The Corporation periodically invests in collateralized mortgage cbligations ("CMOs") and MBSs
(collectively "mortgage-backed and related securities”). As of December 31, 2001, such investments accounted for
approximately 16% of the Corporation’s total assets.

Management believes CMOs represent attractive investment alternatives relative to other investment
vehicles, due to the variety of maturity and repayment options available through such investments and due to the
limited credit risk associated with such securities. CMOs purchased by the Corporation represent a participation
interest in a pool of single-family residential mortgage loans and are generally rated "AAA" by independent credit-
rating agencies. In addition, such investments are secured by credit enhancements and/or subordinated tranches or
are collateralized by U.S. government agency MBSs. The Corporation generally invests only in sequential-pay,
planned amortization class ("PAC"), and targeted amortizaticn class ("TAC") tranches that, at the time of their
purchase, are not considered to be high-risk derivative securities, as defined in applicable regulations. The
Corporation does not invest in support-, companion-, or residual-type tranches. Furthermore, the Corporation does
not invest in interest-only, principal-only, inverse-floating-rate CMO tranches, or similar complex securities.

The Corperation also invests in MBSs that are guaranteed by FHLMC, FNMA, or the Government
National Mortgage Association ("GNMA™). In addition, the Corporation periodically securitizes or "swaps"
mortgage loans in its own portfolio into FHLMC or FNMA MBSs and continues to hold such securities. MBSs
enhance the quality of the Corporation's assets by virtue of the guarantees that back them, although the Corporation
at times has relinquished such guarantee on loans it has swapped intc MBSs (for additional discussion, refer to
Note 2 of the Corporation's Audited Consolidated Financial Statements, included herein under Part II, [tem 8§,
"Financial Statements and Supplementary Data"). In addition, MBSs are more liquid than individual mortgage loans
and receive treatment that is more favorable when used to collateralize certain borrowings of the Corporation.

In addition to MBSs and CMOs, federally-chartered savings institutions such as the Bank have authority to
invest in various other types of investment securities, including U.S. and state government obligations, securities of
various federal agencies, certificates of deposit issued by insured banks and savings institutions, and federal funds.
Subject to various restrictions, federally-chartered savings institutions may also invest a porticn of their assets in
commercial paper, corporate debt securities, and mutua! funds whose assets conform to the investments that 2
federally-chartered savings institution is authorized to make directly. In general, investments in these types of
securities are limited to the four highest credit categories as established by the major independent credit-rating
agencies. Excluding U.S. government and federal agency securities and mutual funds that invest exclusively in such
securities, the Corporation does not invest in individual securities that exceed 10% of its stockholder's equity. As of
December 31, 2001, such investrnents were approximately 1% of the Corporation’s total assets.




The Corporation classifies its mortgage-backed and related securities and its other investment securities as
either available for sale or held for investment. For additional discussion, refer to Note 1 of the Corporation’s
Audited Consolidated Financial Statements, included herein under Part II, Item 8, "Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data".

Sources of Funds

Deposit Liabilities The Corporation's current deposit products include regular savings accounts, checking
accounts, money market deposit accounts, individual retirement accounts, and certificates of deposit ranging in
terms from three months to five years. Substantially 2ll of the Corporation's deposits are cbtained from individuals
and businesses located in Wisconsin and the northern portion of Illinois. As of December 31, 2001, deposit
liabilities accounted for approximately 75% of the Corporation's total liabilities and equity.

In addition to serving as the Corporation's primary source of funds, deposit liabilities {especiaily checking
accounts) are a substantial source of non-interest income. This income is generally received in the form of overdraft
fees, periodic service charges, automated teller machine ("ATM") and debit card fees, and other wansaction charges.
The Corporation's extensive branch network also creates opportunities for sales of non-deposit products such as tax-
deferred anmnuities, mutual funds, and other investment products. In exchange for these sales, the Corporation
receives commission revenue from the third-party providers of the financial products and/er services.

The principal methods used by the Corporation to attract deposit accounts include offering a variety of
products and services, competitive interest rates, and convenient office locaticns and hours. Most of the
Corporation’s free-standing banking offices have drive-up facilities and 41 of the Corporation's banking facilities are
located in supermarkets. The Corporation also owns over 100 ATM machines, all of which are located in Wisconsin
and the northern portion of Illinsis. Depositors may also obtain a2 VISA "debit card” from the Corporation, which
allows them to purchase goods and services directly from any merchant that accepts VISA credit cards. The same
debit card also provides access to the ATM network.

From time-to-time, the Corporation has alse used certificates of deposit sold through third-party brokers
("brokered deposits") as an alternative to borrowings from the FHLB. FDIC regulations govem the acceptance of
brokered deposits by insured depository imstitutions such as the Corporation. At December 31, 2001, the
Corporation had $22.3 million in brokered deposits cutstanding.

Federal Home Loor Bamk Advences The Corporation obtains advances from the FHLB secured by
certzin of its home mortgage loans and mortgage-related securities, as well as stock in the FHLB that the
Corporation is required to own. Such advances may be made pursuant to several different credit programs, each
with its own interest rate and range of maturity dates. As of December 31, 2001, FHLB advances accounted for
approximately 17% of the Corporation's total liabilities and equity.

Securities Sold Under Agreemenis to Repurchase The Corporation cccasionally enters into sales of
securities under agreements to repurchase (commonly referred to as "reverse-repurchase agreements"). In form,
these transactions are an arrangement in which the sale of securities is accompanied by a simultaneous agreement to
repurchase the identical securities (or substantially the same securities) at a future date. In substance, however,
these arrangements are borrowings secured by high-quality, highly-liquid securities such as FNMA or FHLMC
MBSs. Accordingly, these arrangements are accounted for as borrowings in the Corporation's financial statements.

Securities sold under repurchase agreements are physically delivered to the broker-dealers that arrange the
transactions. The broker-dealers may sell, loan, or otherwise dispose of such securities to other parties in the normal
course of their operations. The Corporation is exposed to risk in these types of transactions in that changes in
market prices, economic losses, or other factors could prevent or delay the counter-parties in the transaction from
returning the securities at the maturity of the agreement. The Corporation limits its exposure to such risk by
utilizing standard industry agreemnents, limiting transactions to large, reputable broker-dealers, limiting the amount
that can be borrowed from an individual broker-dealer, and limiting the duration of such agreements (typically one
to six months). There were no securities sold under agreements to repurchase as of December 31, 2001.
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Federal Funds Purchased and Other Borrowings The Corporation has lines of credit with three financial
institutions. These lines, which amount to $60.0 million in the aggregate, permit the overnight purchase of federal
funds. The Corporation also has a $5.0 million line of credit with a fourth financial institution. The interest rate on
borrowings under this line is determined on a periodic basis using an index based on the London Inter-Bank Offered
Rate ("LIBOR"). As of December 31, 2001, there was no balance outstanding under these lines of credit.

Subsidiaries

The Bank has a number of subsidiaries that engage in certain activities that management believes are more
appropriately conducted by a subsidiary of the Bank. Following is a brief description of each subsidiary.

First Cap Holdings, Inc. The Bank formed a wholly-owned subsidiary in the State of Nevada in 1593.
The subsidiary, First Cap Holdings, Inc. ("FCHI"), was formed to consolidate and improve the efficiency,
management, safekeeping, and operations of the Bank's investment securities portfolio and certain other holdings.
In addition, the formation of FCHI has resulted in a lower effective income tax rate for the Bank because the State of
Nevada does not currently impose a corporate income tax. As of December 31, 2001, FCHI was managing $475.0
million in investments and morigage-related securities and $234.4 million in purchased single-family residential
toans for the Bank. FCHI's net income was $26.4 million $27.7 million, and $24.6 million during the years ended
December 31, 2001, 2000, and 1999, respectively. The Bank's net investment in FCHI as of December 31, 2001,
was §$793.5 million, which was eliminated in consolidation in accordance with GAAP.

First Reinsurance, Inc. The Bank formed a wholly-owned subsidiary in the State of Arizona in 1998. The
subsidiary, First Reinsurance, Inc. ("FRI"), was formed to reinsure or "underwrite” credit life and disability
insurance policies scld to the Bank's consumer loan customers. FRI assumes the first leve! of risk on these policies
and a third-party insurer assumes the remaining risk. The third-party insurer is alse responsible for performing most
of the administrative functions of the subsidiary on a contract basis. FRI's net income was $227,000, $163,000, and
$140,000 during the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000, and 1999, respectively. At December 31, 2001, the
Bank's net investrnent in FRI was $1.0 million, which was elisninated in consolidation in accordance with GAAP.

Turde Creek Corporetion The Bank acquired Turtle Creek Corporation ("Turtle Creek”) in 1995 as a
result of its acquisition of another financial institution. Turtle Creek, a Wisconsin corporation, holds a 40% limited
partmership interest in an apartment complex providing housing for low-to-moderate income and elderly persons.
Turtle Creek's aggregate investment in this project was $78,000 at December 31, 2001. Turtle Creek had net income
(loss) of ($18,000), ($10,000), and $66,000 during the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000, and 1999,
respectively. Results for 1999 included a $107,000 gain on the sale of Turtle Creek's remaining interest in a land
development project. The Bank’s net investment in Turtle Creek as of December 31, 2001, was $95,000, which was
eliminated in consclidation in accordance with GAAP.

First Emterprises, Inc. The Bank's wholly-owned subsidiary, First Enterprises, Inc. ("FEI"), was
incorporated in 1971 in the State of Wisconsin. During the pericd from the late-1970s to the mid-1980s, FEI was
primarily involved in the acquisition and development of hotels. Except for the maintenance of its two remaining
hotel investments, however, FEI is no longer involved in these types of activities. The principal asset of FEI is its
investment in FFMR, described in the next paragraph. FEI had net income of $113,000, $30,000, and $84,000
during the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000, and 1999, respectively. At December 31, 2001, the Bank's net
investment in FE[ was $659,000, which was eliminated in consolidation in accordance with GAAP.

FF Mortage Reinsurance, Inc. In 2000, the Bank completed the formation of FF Mortgage Reinsurance,
Inc. ("FFMR"™), a Vermont corporation, as a wholly-owned subsidiary of FEIL. FFMR was formed to reinsure or
"underwrite” a portion of the mortgage impairment insurance policies purchased by the Banlk’s loan customers (refer
to "Lending Activities--Residential Lending”). FFMR assumes a second level of risk on these policies, which is
capped at a certain level. Third-party insurers assume the first level of risk, as well as any risk above the capped
amount. A third-party management company is responsible for performing most of the administrative functions of
the subsidiary on a contract basis. FFMR had net income of $42,000 during its first year of operations in 2001,
FEI’s net investment in FFMR as of December 31, 2001, was $614,000 which was eliminated in consolidation in
accordance with GAAP.
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Competition

The Corporation faces significant competition in attracting deposits through its branch network. [ts most
direct competition has historically come from commercial banks, credit unions, and other savings institutions
located in its market area. In addition, the Corporation faces significant competition from mutual fund and
insurance companies, as well as primary financial markets such as the stock and bond markets. The Corporation
competes for deposits principally by offering customers & variety of deposit products, convenient branch locations,
operating hours, and other services. The Corporation does not rely upon any individual group or entity for a
material portion of its deposits.

The Corperation’s competition for loans comes principally from mortgage banking companies, other
savings institutions, commercial banks, finance companies, and credit unions. The Corporation competes for loan
criginations primarily through the interest rates and loan fees it charges, the efficiency and quality of services it
provides borrowers, the variety of its products, and on referrals from real estate brokers, builders, and business
Customers.

Regulation and Supervision

References in this section to applicable laws and regulations are brief summaries only. All such summaries
are qualified in their entirety by the applicable laws and regulations, which you should consult to understand their
details and operation,

Regulation of the Corporation The Corporation is 2 savings and loan holding company within the
meaning of Section 10 of the Home Owners’ Loan Act ("HOLA"). As such, the Corporation is registered with and
subject to OTS examination and supervision as well as to certain OTS reporting requirements. The Corporation is
also required to file certain reporis and otherwise comply with the rules and regulations of the Securities and
Exchange Commission ("SEC"). Furthermore, the Corporation is limited with respect to the transactions it can
execute with jts affiliates (including the Bank), and its ability to acquire contro! of another insured financial
institution, &s specified more fully in the applicable regulations. There generally are no restrictions as to activities of
a unitary savings and loan holding company such as the Corporation as long as its sole insured subsidiary, the Bank,
continues to meet certain regulatory requirements, which management believes it did as of December 31, 2001.

Regulation of the Bonk The Bank, as a federally-chartered savings banl, is subject to federal regulation
and oversight by the OTS extending to all aspects of its operations, The Bank also is subject to regulation and
examination by the FDIC, which insures the deposits of the Bank to the maximum extent permitted by law, and ic
certain requirements established by the Federal Reserve Board. The laws and regulations governing the Bank
generally have been promulgated to protect depositors and not for the purpose of protecting stockholders of financial
institutions or their holding companies.

The investment and lending suthority of a federally-chartered savings bank is prescribed by federal laws
and regulations. The Bank is also subject to regulatory provisions affecting a wide variety of matters including, but
not limited to, branching, loans to ome borrower, investment restrictions, activities of subsidiaries, loans to
"insiders,” and transactioms with affiliates. Certain of the regulatory requirements applicable to the Bank are
described in more detail in the following paragraphs.

Imsuramee of Deposits The Bank’s savings deposits are insured by SAIF, which is administered
by the FDIC, up to the maximum extent provided by law, currently $100,000 for each depositor. The Bank is
subject to a risk-based insurance assessment system under which higher insurance assessment rates are charged to
those thrift institutions that are deemed to pose greater risk to the deposit insurance fund. Under this systern,
insurance assessments range from 0% of deposits for the healthiest financial institutions to 0.27% of deposits for the
weakest. This risk-based assessment schedule is identical to that for institutions insured by the Bank Insurance Fund
("BIF”), which is also administered by the FDIC. Under both funds, the insurance assessment paid by a particular
institution wili deperd on the "supervisory rating" it receives from the FDIC ("A,” "B," or "C") and on its regulatory
capital level ("well capitalized,” "adequately capitalized,” or "undercapitalized”). Based upon its current supervisory
rating and regulatory capital level, and assuming no change in the Bank's risk classification or in overall premium
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assessment levels, the Bank anticipates that its insurance assessment for 2002 will be zero, which is the same as the -
Bank’s 2001 rate.

Capital Standards The Bank is subject to minimum regulatory capital requirements as specified
by OTS regulations. As more fully described in such regulations, the Bank is subject to a leverage limit of at least
3% of total assets, a tangible capital limit of at least 1.5% of total assets and a risk-based capital limit of at least 8%
of risk-weighted assets. As of December 31, 2001, the Bank exceeded all minimum regulatory capital requirernents
as specified by the OTS.

The Bank is also subject to minimum regulatory capital requirements as specified by FDIC
regulations. As more fully described in such regulations, the Bank must meet the following capital standards to be
classified as "adequately capitalized” under FDIC guidelines: (1) Tier I capital in an amount not less than 4% of
adjusted total assets, (ii) Tier | capital in an arnount not less than 4% of risk-weighted assets, and (iii) total capital in
an amount not less than 8% of risk-weighted assets. As of December 31, 2001, the Bank exceeded all minimum
regulatory capital requirements as specified by the FDIC. For additicnal discussien, refer to Note 11 of the
Corporation’s Audited Consolidated Fimancial Statements, included herein under Part II, Item 8, "Financial
Statemnents and Supplementary Data.”

Classification of Assets As previously described, the Bank’s problem assets are subject to
classification according to one of three categories: "Substandard”, "Doubtful” and "Loss". An institution is required
to develop its own program to classify its assets on a regular basis and to set aside appropriate loss reserves on the
basis of such classification. The Bank believes that it is in compliance with the foregoing requirements.

Qualified Theift Lender Test A savings association that does not meet the Qualified Thrift
Lender Test ("QTL Test"}, as set forth in the HOLA and OTS regulations, may lose access to FHLB advances and
must either convert to a bank charter or comply with certain restrictions on its operations. Under the QTL Test, a

.savings association is required to maintain a certain percentage of its assets in qualifying investments, as defined by

regulations. In general, qualifying investrnents consist of housing-related assets. At December 31, 2601, the
Bank’s assets invested in qualifying investments exceeded the percentage required to qualify the Bank under the
QTL Test. ‘ '

Federzl Home Loan Bank System The Bank is 2 member of the FHLB System, which consists
of 12 regicnal FHLBs, subject to supervision and regulation by the Federal Housing Finance Board. The FHLBs
provide a central credit facility primarily for member financiel institutions. The Bank, as 2 member of the FHLB of
Chicago, is required to purchase and hold shares of capital stock in the FHLB of Chicago. The requirement is equal
to the greater of 1% of the Bank’s aggregate unpaid residential mortgage loans, home purchase contracts and similar
obligations at the beginning of each year or 5% of its outstanding advances from the FHLB of Chicago. At
December 31, 2001, the Bank had a $28.1 million investment in the stock of the FHLB of Chicago and was in
compliance with this requirement,

The Bank'’s investment in FHLB stocl, its single-family mortgage loans and certain other assets
(consisting principally of CMOs and MBSs) are used to secure advances from the FHLB of Chicago. The interest
rates charged on advances vary with the maturity of the advance and the FHLB’s own cost of funds.

Federal Reserve System Regulation D, as promulgated by the Federal Reserve Board, requires
savings institutions to maintain non-interest-eaming reserves against certain transaction deposit accounts and other
liabilities. At December 31, 2001, the Bank’s minimum required reserve level was $37.3 million and it was in
compliance with the regulation.

Dividend Restrictions The payment of dividends by the Bank is subject to various limitations set
forth in federal regulations and as briefly described in Note 11 of the Corporation’s Audited Consolidated Financial
Statements, included hereim under Part I, Item 8, "Financial Statements and Supplementary Data." The Bank bas
not paid any dividends in violation of these regulations.

Community Reinvestment Act Under the Community Reinvestment Act of 1977, as amended
{the "CRA"), and as implemented by OTS regulations, a savings institution has a continuing and affirmative
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obligation, consistent with its safe and sound operation, to help meet the credit needs of its entire comrnunity,
including low and moderate income neighborhoods. The CRA does not establish specific lending requirements or
programs for financial institutions nor does it limit an institution’s discreticn to develop the types of products and
services that it believes are best suited to its particular community, consistent with the CRA. The CRA requires the
OTS, in connection with its examination of a savings institution, to assess the institution’s record of meeting the
credit needs of its community and to take such record into account in its evaluation of certain applications by such
institution. The CRA also requires all institutions to make public disclosure of their CRA ratings. The Bank’s latest
CRA rating, received in 2000, was “"Outstanding."

Finencial Services Modernization Act The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act of 1999 (the "Financial Services
Modemization Act” or "Act”) is intended to increase competition in the financial services ares, including repealing
sections of the 1933 Glass-Steagall Act so that financial firms, such as banks and securities and insurance firms can
affiliate with each other through the formation of financial holding companies. The Act appoints the Federal
Reserve as the "umbrella” regulator for such entities. The Act also restricts the chartering and transferring of unitary
thrift holding companies, although it does not restrict the operations of unitary holding companies which were in
existence prior to May 4, 1999, and which continue to meet the test and control only a single savings institution.
Since the Corporation was treated as a unitary holding company prior to May 4, 1999, and since the Bank is in
compliance with the QTL test, the Act will not prohibit the Corporation from engaging in nonfinancial activities or
acquiring nonfinancial subsidiaries; however, the Act would restrict any nonfinancial entity from acquiring the
Corporation, unless that entity was, or had submitted an application to become, a unitary savings and loan holding
company prior to May 4, 1999.

The Act provides a number of consumer protections, including provisions aimed at protecting the privacy
of consumer information. Many of the Act’s provisions, including those pertaining to consumer privacy, require
regulatory action, including the promulgation of regulations, to become effective. The Act’s consumer privacy
requirements require among other things that the Bank (i) provide new customers with a notice explaining their
privacy rights at the time they become customers, (ii) provide an initial privacy rights notice to existing customers,
(iii) provide an annual privacy rights notice to all continuing customers, (iv) implement intemal privacy safeguards,
and (v) not disclose protected information to any unaffiliated third party (except as required to affect, administer or
enforce a transaction requested by the customer or certain other limited exceptions) without first giving the customer
the option to elect not to allow such disclosure. The Bank does not believe that compliance with the new consumer
privacy provisions has had a significant irnpact on its business. [t is too early to assess the eventual impact of the
Act or other implementing regulations on the financial services industry in general or on the specific operations of
the Bank and the Corporation.

Taxation

Federal Toscation The Corporation is subject to those rules of federal income taxation generally applicable
to corporaticns under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "IRC"). The Corporation, the Bank, and
the Bank's wholly-owned subsidiaries (excluding FRI) file consolidated federal income tax returns, which has the
effect of eliminating or deferring the tax consequences of intercompany distributions, including dividends, in the
computation of consolidated taxable income. The consolidated entity pays taxes at the federal statutory rate of 35%
of its taxable income, as defined in the IRC. Refer to Notes | and 8 of the Corporation’s Audited Consolidated
Financial Statements, included herein under Part 11, Item, 8, "Financial Statements and Supplemental Data,” for
additional discussion. As of December 31, 2001, the Corporation had no material disputes cutstanding with Internal
Revenue Service.

State Taxation The states of Wisconsin, [ilinois and Minnesota impose a tax on their apportioned shares of
the Corporation’s taxable income at the rate of 7.9%, 7.3% and 9.8%, respectively (all state income taxes are
deductible on the Corporation’s federal income tax return). These states’ definitions of taxable income are generally
sirnilar to the federal definition, except that interest from state and municipal obligations is taxable, no deduction is
allowed for state income taxes (except for Illinois, which allows a deduction for taxes paid to other states), and, in
Wisconsin and Minnesota, net opemﬁmg losses may be carried forward but not back. Minnesota and Illinois require
the If’n]lmg of consolidated state income tax returns, whereas Wisconsin currently requires separate returns for each
entity in the consolidated group.
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FCHI and FRI are subject to taxation in the states of Nevada and Arizona, respectively. The State of
Nevada does not currently impose & corporate income tax and the State of Arizona imposes a tax on the premium
revenues of insurance companies rather than taxable income. Although the taxable income of these subsidiaries is
not currently subject to taxation in the State of Wisconsin, from time-to-time the government of the State of
Wisconsin proposes legisiation that would require consolidated income tax returns for entities headquartered in the
state. To date, none of these legislative proposals have been passed into law. However, if such legisiation were to
ever be passed into law, it could result in the taxable income of FCHI, and possibly FRI, being subject to taxation in
the State of Wisconsin, If the Corporation had been required to file a consclidated state income tax return in
Wisconsin for the year ended December 31, 2001, the Corporation’s income tax cxpense would have been
approximately $2.2 million higher than that which has been reported. This would have reduced diluted and basic
eamnings per share by approximately $0.12 per share. At this time, management of the Corporation is not aware of
any legislative proposals that would result in the filing of 2 consclidated state income tax return in the State of
Wisconsin, However, there can be no assurances that such legislation will not be introduced and passed into law in
the future. .

Item 2—-Properties

As of December 31, 2001, the Corporation conducted its business from its corporate offices in La Crosse,
Wiscensin, 75 other banking facilities located throughout Wisconsin, as previously described, and two separate loan
production offices, also located in Wisconsin. At such date, the Corporation owned the building and/or land for 27
of its offices and leased the building and/or the land for its remaining 51 properties, including 41 located in
supermarkets. The Corporation also owns or leases cernain other properties t¢ meet various business needs. For
additional information, refer to Note 5 of the Corporation's Audited Consolidated Financial Statements, included
berein under Part II, Item 8, "Financial Statements and Supplementary Data".
tem 3~Legal Proceedings

The information required herein is included in Note 10 of the Corporation’s Audited Consolidated Financial
Statements, included herein under Part IT, Item 8, "Financial Statements and Supplementary Data”.

Item 4—-Submissien of Matters to 2 Yote of Security Holders

Ne matters were submitted to security holders for vote during the fourth quarter of 2001.
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PART I
Item 5--Market for Registrant’'s Commen Equity and Related Stockholder Matters

The Corporation's common stock is traded on the National Association of Securities Dealers Automated
Quotation ("NASDAQ") National Market Systemn under the symbol FTFC. As of February 15, 2002, the
Corporation had 20,163,241 common shares outstanding (net of 52,692 shares of treasury stock), 1,520 stockholders
of record, 3,145 estimated beneficial stockholders, and 4,665 estimated total stockholders.

Dividend and stock price information required by this item, as well as information relating to the
Corporation's steck repurchase plans, is included under the following sections of this report:

(1) “Liquidity and Capital Resources”, included herein under Item 7, "Management's Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations”.

(2) "Note 11--Stockholder's Equity", included herein under Item 8, "Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data--Audited Consolidated Financial Statements”

(3) “"Quarterly Financial Information", included herein under Item 8, "Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data--Supplementary Data".
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Ttem 6—Selected Finamelial Data

The information in the following table contains selected comnsolidated financial and other data. This
information has been derived in part from the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements included herein under
Item 8, “Financial Statements and Supplementary Dzta". Accordingly, the table should be read in conjunction with
such consolidated statements.

Dollars in thousands, except for per share amounts

Selected balonce sheet data as of December 31 2631 2000 1999 1998 1997
Total assets $2,717,710 $2,352,726  $2,084,554 $1,786,504 $1,544,294
Investment securities available for sale, at fair value - 35,462 817 873 - 21,377
Mortgage-backed and related securities:
Available for sale, at fair value 305,980 331,237 252,165 204,109 47,895
Held for investment, at cost 134,010 77,299 103,932 102,500 124,336
Loans held for investment, net 1,851,316 1,772,477 1,538,595 1,177,526 1,193,893
Allowance for loan losses 9,962 8,028 7,624 7,624 7,638
iMortgage servicing rights, net 29,909 23,280 21,728 21,103 16,291
Intangible assets 24,946 11,490 12,463 13,485 5,921
Deposit liabilities 2,029,254 1,699,252 1,471,259 1,460,136 1,146,534
FHLB advances and other borrowings 467,447 490,846 469,580 189,778 275,779
‘Stockholders' equity 192,398 146,549 127,275 122,685 109,361
Selected operating data for year ended December 31 20901 2000 1999 1998 1997
Interest income $171,533 $161,436 $130,071 $118,668 $114,976
Interest expense 108,330 101,896 75,953 71,457 70,265
Net interest income 63,202 59,540 54,117 47,211 44711
Provision for loan losses 1,763 1,009 387 293 539
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 61,439 58,531 53,730 46,918 44,172
Gains from sales of loans 24,423 2,736 7,226 16,929 6,374
Cains (losses) from sales of real estate and investrents 13 1,189 - 343 (725)
Other non-interest income 25,091 31,708 27,952 14,088 18,645
Total non-interest income 49,527 35,633 35,178 31,360 24,294
Non-interest expense 67,119 58,250 54,299 47,597 40,197
Income before income tax expense 43,847 35,914 34,609 30,681 28,269
Income tax expense 15,398 12,770 12,167 11,257 10,879
Net income $28,448 323,144 $22,441 $19,424 $17,390
Selected other data at or for the year ended December 31 (1) 2001 2000 1939 1998 1997
Return on average assets 1.14% 1.06% 1.19% 1.15% 1.13%
Retumn on average equity 17.19 17.01 17.63 16.59 17.20
Average equity to average assets 6.65 6.12 6.74 7.16 6.57
Average tangible equity to average asseis 6.15 5.61 6.10 6.77 6.21
Average interest rate spread 2.12 2.34 2.58 2.51 2.63
Average net interest margin 2.70 2.83 3.05 3.07 3.07
Ratio of allowance for loan losses to total loans held
for investment at end of period 0.54 0.45 0.50 0.65 0.64
Ratic of non-performing assets to total assets at end of pericd 0.3t 0.19 010 0.13 0.32
Ratio of non-interest income to total revenue (2) 43.93 3744 39,40 3991 . 3521
Ratio of non-interest expense to average assets- - 2790 2.62 2.88 291 2.61
Earnings per share: ’
Diluted eamings per share 51.51 $1.25 $1.17 $0.98 30.88
Basic earnings per share . 1.52 1.26 1.21 1.05 0.95
Dividends paid per shere 0.470 0.420 0.340 0.270 0.233
Stock price 2t end of pericd 15.70 14.50 14.63 16.38 16.94
Book value per share at end of peried 9.52 7.92 6.92 6.68 5.95
Banking facilitics at end of period 78 72 64 61 50
Full-time equivalent employees at end of peried 1,033 897 831 808 690

(1) Per share data and historical stock prices have been adjusted for a 2-for-1 stock splis on June 11, 1998.
(2) Total revenue is defined as the sum of net interest income and non-interest income.
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Item 7-Management’s Discussion and Anslysts of Financial Condition and Resaults of Operations

This section should be read in conjunction with Item 8, "Financial Statements and Supplementary Data”, as
well as [tem 7A, "Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk", and Part I, Item 1, "Business".

Results of Operations

Overview The Corporation's earnings for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000, and 1999, were $28.4
million, $23.1 million, and $22.4 million, respectively. These amounts represented returns on average assets of
1.14%, 1.04%, and 1.19%, respectively, and returns om average equity of 17.19%, 17.01%, and 17.63%,
respectively. Diluted earnings per share during these periods were $1.51, $1.25, and $1.17, respectively.

The increase in net income from 2000 to 2001 was principally due to increases in gain on sales of loans, net
interest income, retail banking fees, and premiums and commissions. These developments were partially offset by a
decrease in loan servicing fees, an increase in non-interest expense (particularly compensation and employee
benefits), an increase in provision for loan losses, and an increase in income tax expense (the latter due to higher
pre-tax earnings).

The increase in net income from 1999 to 2080 was principally due to increases in net interest income, retail
banking fees, and loan servicing fees. Also contributing to the increase in net income was a $1.2 million gain on the
sale of a real estate property. These developments were largely offset by a substantial decline in gain on sales of
loams, an increase in non-interest expense (most notably compensation and employee benefits), and an increase in
provision for loan losses.

The following paragraphs discuss the aforementicned changes in greater detail along with other changes in
the components of net income during the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000, and 1999.

Ner Interest Income WNet interest income increased by $3.7 million or 6.2% and $5.4 million or 10.0%
during the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively. The improvement in both of these periods was
primarily volume related as the Corporation’s average interest-earning assets grew by $241.0 million or 11.5% in
2001 and by $327.7 million or 18.4% in 2000. The principal source of growth in both periods occurred in the
Corporation's commercial real estate, consumer, and single-family residential losn portfolios. The growth in 2001
was also supported by a substantial increase in overnight investments. The growth in carning assets in both years
was principally funded by an increase in deposit liabilities. Furthermore, an increase in borrowings from the FHLB
and other wholesale sources during 2000 contributed to that years® increase.

Also contributing to the increase in met interest income during 2001 was an increase im average mon-
interest-bearing deposit liabilities, which was the principal reason the Corporation’s ratio of average interest-earning
assets 10 average interest-bearing liabilities improved from 110% in 2000, to 112% in 2001. This improvement was
due in part to an increase in custodial deposit accounts. The Corporation maintains borrowers’ principal and interest
payments in these accounts on a temporary basis pending their remittance to the third-party owners of the loans.
Balances in these accounts increzsed significantly because of increased loan prepayment activity, which was brought
about by a lower interest rate environment in 2001.

The Corporation's interest rate spread has declined in recent years from 2.58% in 1999 to 2.34% in 2000
and 2.12% in 2001. These declines particlly offset the increases in net interest income caused by the favorable
developments described im the preceding paragraphs. Beginning in 1999 and continuing inte 2000, market interest
rates increased significantly, led generally by short-term interest rates. The yield cugve also flattened substantially,
and was even inverted at times during 2000. Although higher interest rates resulted in an increase in the average
yield on the Corporation’s earning assets in 2000, the cost of the Corporation’s interest-bearing liabilities increased
by a greater amount, which resulted in an overall decline in the Corporation’s average interest rate spread in that
year. In 2001, market interest rates reversed trend and declined dramatically, particularly on the short end of the
yield curve. However, the Corporation’s interest rate spread did not improve because only a relatively small portion
of its funding sources repriced or matured during the year. In general, declines in the Corporation’s overall cost of
interest-bearing liabilities in 2001 were eclipsed by declining yields on its interest-earming assets, particularly
education loans, which declined in yield by 162 basis points in 2001. Education loans carry floating rates of interest
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that adjust quarterly. As such, the yield on these loans declined sharply in 2001 as market interest rates declined.
Also declining in 2001 were the yields the Corporation eamed on its single-family mortgage loans and its mortgage-
backed and related securities. These declines were principally caused by increased prepayments of higher-yielding
loans, due to the declining interest rate environment, and the replacement of such loans with lower-yielding assets.
During 2001, the Corporation purchased $178.1 million in adjustable-rate mortgage locans at an average expected
yield of 6.32% and $268.1 million in CMOs at an average expected yield of 5.55%. The yields on these assets were
substantially lower than the yields on the assets they replaced.

Management expects the Corporation’s interest rate spread to improve in the near term, although there can
be no assurances. During the first quarter of 2002, 39% of the Corporation’s time deposits will mature.
Management expects to replace these depesits at interest rates that are 200 to 250 basis points below their current
cost.

The following table sets forth information regarding the average balances of the Corporation’s assets,
liabilities, and equity, as well as the interest earned or paid and the average yield or cost of each. The information is
based on daily average balances for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000, and 1999.

Dollars in thousands . 2001 2000 1999
Average Yield/ Average Yield/ Average Yield/
Bolance  Inmterest Cost Balance  Imgerest Cost Balance  Imterest Cost
Interest-eaming assets:
Single-family mortgage loans $817,647 $58,799  7.19%  $769,755 356,637 7.36%  $588,928 341,592 7.06%
Commercial real estate loans 498,796 39,973 8.01 433,512 34,479 7.95 352,919 28,008 7.94
Consumer loans 355,504 30,530 8.59 306,650 26,202 8.54 240,260 19,981 8.32
Education loans 202,504 14,300 7.06 197,415 17,130 8.68 184,896 14,289 7.73
Commercial business loans 6,459 405 6.27 68 6 8.82 121 10 8.26
Total loans 1,880,910 144,007 7.66 1,707,400 134,454 7.87 1,367,124 103,880 7.60
Mortgage-backed and
related securities 378,413 24,060 6.36 360,087 24,516 6.81 362,418 23,728 6.55
Investment securities 6,482 209 315 799 40 5.03 1,019 44 4.37
Interest-bearing deposits
with banks 52,11 1,585 3.04 10,530 603 5.73 29,932 1,405 4.69
Other eaming assets 26,281 1,672 6.36 24,359 1,822 7.48 14,959 1,013 6.78
Total interesi-eaming assets 2,344,197 171,533 7.32 2,103,175 161,436 7.68 1,775,452 130,071 7.33
Non-interest-eaming assets:
Office properties and equipment 28,652 25,621 24,855
Other asseis 116,035 95,178 87,762
Total assets $2,488,884 $2,223,974 $1,888,069
Interest-bearing liabilities:
Regular savings accounts $116,809 81,529 1.31%  $108,965 $1,619 1.49%  $109,318 31,741 1.59%
Checking accounts 80,221 573 0.71 75,062 571 0.76 70,404 558 0.79
Money market accounts 177,128 5,539 3.13 160,950 6,578 4.09 177,025 6,587 37
Certificates of deposit 1,257,943 75,944 6.06 1,082,318 64,819 5.99 949,500 51,661 5.44
Total interest-bearing deposits 1,632,101 83,585 5.12 1,427,295 73,588 516 1,306,248 60,547 464
FHLB advances 401,954 22,061 5.49 380,328 22,078 5.80 281,652 15,060 5.35
Other borrowings 51,208 2,685 5.24 101,317 6,230 6.15 11,025 346 3114
Total interest-bearing
liabilities 2,085,263 108,330 520 1,508,940 101,896 534 1598926 75,953 475
Non-interest-bearing liabilities: ‘
Non-interest-bearing deposits 209,986 160,963 145,428
Other liabilities 28,098 18,003 16,397
Total liabilities 2,323,347 2,087,906 1,760,751
Stockholders’ equity 165,537 136,068 127,318
Total liabilities and '
stockholders' equity $2,488,884 $2,223,974 $1,888,069
Net interest income $63,202 $59,540 $54,117
Interest rate spread A 2.12% 2.34% 2.58%
Net interest income as a percent
of average eaming assets 2.70% 2.83% 3.05%

Average interest-eaming assets
to average interest-bearing ‘
liabilities 112.42% 110.18% 111.04%
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The following table sets forth the effects of changing rates and volumes on net interest income of the
Corporaticn for the periods indicated. Information is provided with respect to (i) effects on net interest income
attributable to changes in volume (changes in volume multiplied by prior rate); (ii) effects on net interest income
atiributable to changes in rate (changes in rate multiplied by prior volume); (iii) changes attributable to combined
effects of rate and volume (changes in rate multiplied by changes in volume); and (iv) the net change in interest
income,

2001 Compared to 2000 2000 Compared to 1999
Dollars in thousands Increase (Decrease) Increase (Decrease)
Rate/ Rate/
Rate Volume  Volume Net Rate  Volume Volume Net
[nterest-earning assets:
Single-family mortgage loans ($1,283) $3,524 379 $2,162 $1,740 $12,771 $535 $15,046
Commercial real estate loans 260 5,193 4] 5,494 35 6,427 8 6,470
Consumer loans 133 4,174 21 4,328 548 5,521 152 6.221
Education loans (3,187) 442 (83) (2.830) 1,755 967 119 2,841
Commercial business loans 2) 564 (163) 399 1 (4) - (3)
Total loans (4,079) 13,897 (266) 9,553 4,079 25,682 814 30,574
Mortgage-backed and related securities (1,621) 1,248 (83) (456) 947 (153) (6) 788
Investment securities (14) 286 (103) 169 7 (10) H 4)
Interest-bearing deposits with banks (283) 2,382 (1,117} 982 310 911) (201) (802)
Other eamning assets (273) 144 21) (150) 106 636 67 809
Total net change in income on
Interest-eaming assets (6,270) 17,957 (1,588) 10,097 5,449 25,244 673 31,365
Interest-bearing liabilities:
Interest-bearing deposits (1,250) 11,331 (84) 9,997 5,714 6,659 668 13,041
FHLB advances (1,204) 1,258 (68) 17) 1,290 5,276 452 7,018
Qther borrowings (918) (3,081) 454 (3,545) 332 2,837 2,715 5,884
Total net change in expense on
Interesi-bearing liabilities (3,372) 9,508 301 6,434 7,336 14,772 3,835 25,943
Net change in net interest income ($2,898) $8,452  (31,892) $£3,662 ($1,887) $10,472  ($3,162) $5,423

Provision for Loan Losses Provision for loan losses was $1.8 million, $1.0 million, and $387,000 during
the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000, and 1999, respectively. In 1999, the Corporation's provision for loan
losses approximated its actual net charge-off activity. However, in 2001 and 2000, the Corporation recorded
approximately $672,000 and $404,000, respectively, in provision for loan losses over-and-above its actual net
charge-off activity. These additional provisions were recorded to maintain the Corporation's allowance for loan
losses at a level deemed appropriate by management, and were considered proper in light of significant growih in
the Corporation's loans held for investment in recent periods, an increased mix of higher-risk consumer loans,
commercial real estate loans, and commercial business loans, and an increase in non-performing and classified
assets. As of December 31, 2001, 2000, and 1999, the Corporation’s allowance for loan losses was $10.0 million,
$8.0 million, and $7.6 million, respectively, or 0.54%, 0.45%, and 0.50% of loans held for investment, respectively.
The allowance for loan and real estate losses was 120%, 188%, and 365% of non-performing assets as of the same
dates, respectively. For additional discussion, refer to "Financial Condition--Non-Performing Assets".
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The following table summarizes the activity in the Corporation's allowance for loan losses during each of
years indicated. The purchased allowances shown for 2001 were from the acquisition of ACB (for additional
discussion, refer to Note 14 of the Corporation’s Audited Consolidated Financial Statements, included herein under
Part I, Item 8, "Financial Statements and Supplementary Data").

Dollars in thousands 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
Balance at beginning of period $8,028 $7,624 $7,624 $7,638 $7,888
Provision for losses 1,763 1,009 387 293 539
Charge-offs:
Single-family mortgage loans 96 - - - 13
Consumer loans 1,057 632 408 332 530
Education loans 36 33 26 kR) 272
Total loans charged-off 1,189 665 434 365 815
Recoveries 98 60 47 58 26
Charge-offs net of recoveries 1,091 605 387 307 789
Purchased allowances 1,262 - - - -
Balance at end of period $9,962 $8,028 $7,624 $7,624 $7.638
Net charge-offs as a percentage of average loans outstanding 0.06% 0.04% 0.03% 0.03% 0.07%
Ratio of allowance to total loans held for investment at end of period 0.54% 0.45% 0.50% 0.65% 0.64%
Ratio of allowance to total non-performing assets 120% 188% 365% 330% 159%

Note: there were no charge-offs of commercial real estate or commercial business loans during the five years ended December 31, 2001.

The following table shows the Corporation's total allowance for loan losses and the allocation to the various
loan categeries as of December 31 for each of the years indicated.

Dollars in thousands 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
Amount % Amoumnt % Amoumt Y% Amoumt % Amount %
Single-family mortgage loans $140 0.02% $149  0.02% $144  0.02% $156 0.04% $148 0.03%
Commercial real estate loans 7,665 1.50 7,257 1.65 7,088 2.00 7,017 2.43 7,200 290
Consumer loans 873 0.25 585 0.17 3585 0.13 414 0.19 253 0.12
Commercial business loans 1,284 3.31 37 18.97 37 12.50 37 9.97 37 6.65
Total allowance for loan losses $9,962 0.54%  $8,028 0.45% $7,624 0.50% $7.624 0.65% $7.638 0.64%

The ameunts in the preceding table are expressed as a percentage of gross loans outstanding for each loan
category, excluding construction loans. The total allowance is expressed as a percent of net loans held for
investment. There was no allowance for loan losses allocated to education loans as of December 31 for any of the
years presented.

Although management believes that the Corporation's present level of allowance for loan losses is
adequate, there can be no assurance that future adjustments to the allowance will not be necessary, which could
adversely affect the Corporation's results of operations.

Non-Interes¢ Income Non-interest income for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000, and 1999, was
$49.5 million, $35.6 million, and $35.2 million, respectively. These amounts represented 44%, 37%, and 39% of
the Corporation’s total revenue during such periods, respectively. The following paragraphs discuss the principal
components of non-interest income and the primary reasons for their changes from 2000 to 2001 and 1999 to 2009.

Retail banking fees and service charges increased by $3.0 million or 13.3% in 2001 and by $2.2 million or
11.0% in 2000. These increases were due in part to growth of 9.3% (excluding the impact of checking accounts
acquired in the ACB acquisiticn) and 8.3% in the number of checking accounts serviced by the Corporation during
2001 and 2000, respectively. Alsc contributing to the growth in retail banking fees was a2 $1.4 million or over 20%
increase and a $905,000 or 16.0% increase in fees from customers’ use of debit cards and ATMs in 2001 and 2000,
respectively.

Premium and commission revenue increased by $1.0 million or over 37% in 2001 and by $170,000 or 6.5%
in 2000. The Corporation's principal sources of premium and commission revenue are from sales of tax-deferred
annuity contracts, credit life and disability insurance policies, mortgage loan insurance policies, and mutual funds
and other equity and debt securities. The increase in 2001 was primarily attributable to increased sales of tax-
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deferred annuity contracts due to an interest rate environment that made such products more attractive to customers
relative to other investment alternatives. Also contributing was a $296,000 increase in retail brokerage comrnissions
from sales of mutual funds and other equity and debt securities. During 2001, the Corporation increased the number
of registered investment representatives in its offices from three to ten. The increase in premium and comumission
revenue in 2000 was principally due to increased sales of credit life and disability insurance policies.

The Corporation expects growth in premium and commission revenue to moderate in 2002. Although there
can be no assurances, the Corporation expects increased commission revenue from retail brokerage sales to be offset
somewhat by lower commissions from tax-deferred annuity sales. The Corporation intends to increase the number
of registered investment representatives in its offices from 10 to 14 in 2002. However, there can be no assurances.

Loan servicing fees were (87.5) million, $3.9 million, and $2.8 million in 2001, 2000, and 1999,
respectively. As market interest rates declined in 2001, loan prepayment activity increased dramatically as
borrowers refinanced older, high-rate residential mortgage loans, into low-rate loans. As a result of this activity, the
Corporation recorded $12.4 million more in amortization of mortgage servicing rights in 2001 than it did in 2000.
Excluding this increase, loan servicing fees would have increased by $960,000 or almost 25% in 2001 compared to
2000. This increase was principally caused by $345.4 million or 17.7% in growth in average loans serviced for
others in 2001 compared to the previous year. This growth was caused by a significant increase in the origination
and sale of fixed-rate mortgage loams, as described in a later paragraph. Alse contributing were increased
conversions by borrowers of adjustable-rate mortgage loans into fixed-rate loans. Upon conversion, such loans are
generally sold in the secondary market and the Corporation retains the servicing. Finally, in 2001 the Corporation
purchased mortgage servicing rights related to $89.4 million in mortgage toans. Such loans consisted principally of
fixed-rate, residential morigage loans on properties located in Iowa.

The increase in loan servicing fees from 1999 to 2000 was caused by 2 low interest rate environment in
1998 and carly 1999. Similar to 2001, this environment resulted in a higher level of morigage servicing rights
amortization in 1999 compared to 2000.

Subsequent to December 31, 2001, market interest rates have remained at relatively low levels, albeit
slightly higher than the historically low levels reached in the fourth quarter of 2001. If market interest rates stabilize
or increase in 2002 (as management anticipates), the Corporation may experience a substantial decline in
amortization on its mortgage servicing rights due to slower loan prepayment activify, although there can be no
assurances. Furthermore, the Corporation may be required to recapture through earnings all or 2 portion of any
unfavorable mark-to-mearket adjustments on mortgage servicing rights that were recorded in previous periods, in
accordance with GAAP. Such recapture would be appropriate if expectations for future loan prepayments decline,
which typically occurs in stable or rising rate environments, although there can be no assurances. As of
December 31, 2001, the Corporation had recorded $2.6 million in unfavorable mark-to-market adjustments against
its mortgage servicing rights.

If interest rates declime im 2002, the Corporation will most likely continue to record high levels of
amortization on its mortgage servicing rights as a result of high levels of loan prepayment activity. Such
amortization, however, will most likely continue to be offset by high levels of gains on sales of mortgage loans,
although there can be no assuremces. [t should be noted, however, that declines in market interest rates may also
expose the Corporaticn to unfavorable mark-to-market adjustments against its portfolio of mortgage servicing
rights--primarily because of increases in market expectations for future prepayments. Although management
believes that most of the Corporation’s loans that prepay are replaced by & new loan to the same customer of even a
different customer (thus preserving the future servicing cash flow), GAAP requires mark-to-market losses resulting
from increases in market expectations for future prepayments to be recorded in the current period. However, the
offsetting gain on the sale of the new loan, if any, cannot be recorded until the customer actually prepays the old
loan and the new loan is sold in the secondary market.

At December 31, 2001 and 2000, loans serviced for others were $2.7 billion and $2.1 billion, respectively.
As of the same dates, morigage servicing rights were $29.9 million and $23.3 million, respectively. For additional
discussion, relating to mortgage servicing rights, refer to Part [, [tem 1, "Business--Lending Activities”, and Notes 1
and 4 of the Corporation’s Audited Consolidated Financial Statements, included herein under Part I, ltem 8,
"Financial Statements and Supplementary Data".
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Gains on sales of loans for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000, and 1999, were $24.4 million, $2.7
million, and $7.2 million, respectively. The increase in 2001 was primarily attributable to a $1.2 billion or over
820% increase in the Corporation’s mortgage loan sales in 2001, This increase was due to a declining interest rate
environment that resulted in increased originations of fixed-rate mortgage loans, as well as increased conversions of
adjustable-rate loans into fixed-rate loans, both of which were generally sold in the secondary market.

In recent months, market interest rates have stabilized at a level that is somewhat higher than the
historically low levels reached in the fourth guarter of 2001. Although there can be no assurances, management
expects this rend to continue in the near future. If interest rates remain stable or increase in 2002, management
expects cusiomer demand for fixed-rate morigage loans to decrease. As such, management expects the
Corporation's gain on sales of loans to decrease from recent levels. These gains, however, may be offset to some
degree by decreased losses on mortgage servicing rights, as more fully described in a previous paragraph.

The decrease in gains on sales of loans from 1999 to 2000 was due primarily to a $197.7 million or
approximately 56% decline in the Corporation's mortgage loan sales in 2000. The decline was due tc a rising
interest rate environment during 2000 that slowed originations of fixed-rate mortgage loans, as well as conversions
of adjustable-rate loans into fixed-rate loans, both of which the Corporation generally sells in the secondary market.

In the fourth quarter of 2000, the Corporation sold a piece of real estate it had acquired in the 1980s, having
originally intended to build a retail office at the location. The pretax gain on this sale was $1.2 million. The
estimated after tax gain was $771,000 or $0.04 per diluted share.

The recognition of gains or losses from sales of loans, mortgage-backed and related securities, and other
investments is dependent on market and economic conditions. Accordingly, there can be no assurance that the gains
reported in prior periods can be achieved in the future or that there will not be significant inter-period variations in
the results from such activities. Furthermore, the Corporation is subject to accounting principles established by
Statemnent of Financial Accounting Standards No. 115 ("SFAS 115"), which limits the Corporation's ability to sell
investments classified as "held for investment”. For additional discussion, refer to Note ! of the Corporation's
Audited Consolidated Financial Statements, included herein under Part I, Item 8, "Finamcial Statements and
Supplementary Data".

Other income was $3.3 million, $2.6 million, and $2.4 million for the years ended December 31, 2001,
2000, and 1999, respectively, The increase in 2001 was due in part t¢ an increase in fees from customers’
conversions of adjustable-rate mortgage loans into fixed-rate mortgage loans due to the low interest rate
environmeny, as previously described. Also contributing to the increase in other non-interest income in 2001 was an
increase in the cash surrender value of the Corporation’s bank owned life insurance policies.

Non-Interest Expense Non-interest expense for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000, and 1999, was
$67.1 million, $58.3 million, and $54.3 million, respectively. Non-interest expense as a percent of average assets
during these pericds was 2.70%, 2.62%, and 2.88%, respectively. The following paragraphs discuss the principal
components of non-interest expense and the primary reasons for their changes from 2000 to 2001 and 1999 to 2000.

Compensation and employee benefits increased by $4.9 million or 13.9% in 2001 and $3.7 million or
11.8% in 2000. In general, the increase in both periods was due to growth in the mumber of banking facilities
operated by the Corporation and resulting increase in the number of employees, as well as normal annual merit
increases. Both years were also impacted by an increase in the cost of employee healthcare benefits. Such costs
rose by $229,000 or 8.2% in 2001 and by $682,000 or 32% in 2000. Finally, the increase in compensation and
employee benefits from 1999 to 2000 was zlso impacted by a $910,000 increase in costs related to a performance-
based, variable stock compensation plan. As of December 31, 2001, the Corporation had 1,033 full-time equivalent
employees. This compared to 897 and 831 as of December 31, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

Occupancy and equipment expense increased by $894,000 or 11.4% in 2001 and $446,000 or 6.0% in

2000. In addition, communications, postage, and office supplies expense increased by $951,000 or 22.1% in 2001
and $285,000 or 7.1% in 2000. These increases were primarily attributable to growth in the number of banking
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facilities operated by the Corporation, as well as increases in the number of full-time equivalent employees and in
the number of customers served by the Corporation.

Since December 31, 1999, the Corporation has opened fourteen banking facilities. In January 2002, the
Corporation signed a definitive agreement with another {inancial institution to purchase three banking facilities in
Rochester, Minnesota (for additional discussion, refer to Note 15 of the Corporation’s Audited Consolidated
Financial Statements, included herein under Part [, Item 8, "Fimancial Statements and Supplementary Data").
Furthermore, in 2002 the Corporation intends to open up to seven banking facilities, although there can be no
assurances,

ATM and debit card transaction costs increased by $314,000 or 10.7% in 2001 and $233,000 or 8.7% in
2000. The increase in both years was attributable to increased use by the Corporation's customers of ATM and debit
card networks, as well as an increase in the number of ATMs operated by the Corporation. During 2001, the
Corporation increased to over 100 the number of ATMs it owns and operates in its market areas, as compared o 92
at the end of 2000.

Advertising and marketing costs increased by $211,000 or 8.9% in 2001 and $102,000 or 4.5% in 2000.
These increases correspond to gemeral increases in prices for marketing-related products and services, as well as
increases in the number of communities and/or market areas served by the Corporation.

Amortization of intangible assets, which consists primarily of deposit-based intangibles and purchase
accounting goodwill, increased by $57,000 or 5.6% in 2001, due to deposit-based intangibles acquired in the
acquisition of ACB in October 2001. Amortization of intangible assets in 2000 was substantially unchanged from
1999.

In January 2002, the Corporation will adopt new accounting standards relating to business combinations, as
well as goodwill and other intangible assets (for more information, refer to Note 1 of the Corporation’s Audited
Consolidated Financial Statements, included herein under Part II, Item §, "Financial Statements and Supplementary
Data"). The Corporation estimates that adoption of these new accounting standards will result in an $875,000
decline in amortization of intamgibles in 2602. However, the Corporation believes substantially all of this decline
may be offset by increased amortization of intangible assets from the acquisition of ACB and three bank offices in
Rochester, Minnesota. For additional discussion, refer to Notes 14 and 15 of the Corporation’s Audited
Consolidated Financial Statements, included herein under Part I, Item 8, "Financial Statements and Supplementary
Data”.

Other non-interest expenses increased $1.5 million or over 33% in 2001, and decreased by $846,000 or
15.7% in 2000. The increase im 2001 was caused by a variety of factors, the most significant of which were
increased costs related to the operation and disposition of foreclosed real estate, increased losses on customers’
deposit accounts, and increased costs related to servicing of loans for FNMA and FHLB. Among these factors,
increased costs related to the servicing of loans for the latter were the most notable, as they increased by $759,000 or
over 300%. Under the terms of its servicing agreements with these investors, the Corporation is required to forward
a full month's interest to the investors when certain loans are repaid, regardless of the actual date of the loan payoff.
Lower interest rates in 2001 resulted in higher prepayment and refinance activity, which increased the amount of
"loan pay-off interest” remitted to FNMA and FHLB.

The decling in 2000 was due in part to a $508,000 or over 60% decrease in the cost of FDIC deposit
insurance. This decrease was caused by a reduction in the amcunt the Corporation was required to pay for its pro
rata share of the bond cbligation of FICC, a governmental agency. Also contributing to the decline in other non-
interest expense in 2000 was a $250,000 or 50% decrease in costs related to the servicing of loans for FNMA and
FHLB under its servicing agreements with these investors, as previously described. Higher interest rates in 2000
resulted in lower prepayment and refinance activity, which reduced the amount of “loan pay-off interest” remitted to
these investors.

Income Tex Expense Income tax expense for the vears ended December 31, 2001, 2000, and 1999, was
$15.4 million, $12.8 million, and $12.2 million, respectively, or 35.1%, 35.6%, and 35.2% of pretax income,
respectively. The decline in the Corporation’s effective income tax rate during 2001 was due in part to the purchase
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of bank owned life insurance policies. Refer to Part I, Item 1, "Business--Subsidiaries" and "Business--Taxation",
for additional discussion relating to the Corporation's tax situation.

Segment Information The following paragraphs contain a discussion of the financial performance of each
of the Corporation's reportable segments (hereafter referred to as "profit centers") for the years ended December 31,
2001, 2000, and 1999. This section of the report should be read in conjunction with Note 13 of the Corporation's
Audited Consolidated Financial Statements, included herein under Part II, Item 8, "Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data".

The following table summarizes the after-tax profits (losses) of the Corporation's profit centers during each
of the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000, and 1999 (Note 13 of the Corporation's Audited Consolidated
Financial Statements contains a more detailed profit (loss) statement for each profit center).

Profit {(Loss} by Profit Center 2001 2000 1999
Mortgage banking $5,192,458 $3,630,010 $3,663,321
Residential loans 6,953,652 8,364,834 7,650,881
Commercial real estate lending 5,344,423 4,505,490 4,741,426
Consumer lending 4,039,371 3,758,533 3,437,607
Education lending 2,978,899 3,925,613 2,773,665
[nvestment and mortgage-related securities 1,138,434 1,823,019 1,947,185
Other segmenis (145,142) (448,015) (276,073)
Non-GAAP adjusiments 2,946,129  (2,415,608) (1,496,802)

Net income $28,448,225  $23,143,876 $22,441,210

Mortgage Banking Profits from the Corporation's mortgage banking activities during 2001 were
up $1.6 million or over 40% in 2001 compared to the previous year. In contrast, profits in 2000 were down slightly
from 1999. Loan origination volumes and mortgage servicing fees are the principal drivers of performance in this
profit center. The Corporation's mortgage banking operation originaied $1.5 billion in single-family residential
loans in 2001 compared to $524 million and $629 million in 2000 and 1999, respectively. Due to the low interest
rate environment in 2001, the large increase in origination volume in that year was caused by & surge in refinance
activity. Im such situations, a substantial portion of the revenue allocated to the mortgage banking profit center for
criginations will be offset by an increase in lost servicing value related to refinanced loams. As a result, the
percentage increase in profits in 2001 was significantly lower than the percentage increase in loan originations.
Refer to "Non-GAAP Adjustments", below, for additional discussion.

Residential Loans Profits from the Corporation's residential loan portfolio declined by $1.4
million or 16.9% in 2001 compared to the previous year. In 2000, profits were up $714,000 or 9.3% compared to
1999. In 2001, the performance of this profit center was impacted by a significant increase in charge-offs of
internally-capitalized origination costs assigned to the loans in the portfolic. These charge-offs were $3.2 million in
2001 compared to only $579,000 in 2000 and $265,000 in 1999 (refer to "Non-GAAP Adjustments”, below, for
additional information). These increases resulted from increased conversions of the profit cemter's adjustable-rate
mortgage loans into fixed-rate loans, as discussed elsewhere in this report.

Commercigl Real Estate Lending Profits from commercial real estate lending increased by
$839,000 or 18.6% in 2001 after decreasing by $236,000 or 5.0% in 2000 compared to 1999. The profit center’s
earnings in both pericds benefited from an increase in its average assets, which increased by $67.7 million or 14.8%
in 2001 and $84.5 million or 22.7% in 2000. The profit center originated $112.7 million, $120.5 million, and $112.2
million in loans during 2001, 2000, and 1999, respectively. The volume-related improvement in 2000 was more
than offset by a narrower interest rate spread in that year. This development was caused by a higher interest rate
environment in 2000, which resulted in a large increase in the profit center's average cost of funds. In contrast, the
average yield on the commercial real estate loan portfolio did not change significantly in 2000 as compared to 1999,

Consumer Lending Profits in the Corporation’s consumer lending profit center increased by
$281,000 or 7.5% and $321,000 or 9.3% in 2001 and 2000, respectively, as compared to previous years. These
improvements were principally the result of a $51.4 million or 15.7% increase and $70.1 million or 27.3% increase
in the profit center's average assets during 2001 and 2000, respectively. The profit center originated $274 miliion,
$236 million, and $189 million in loans during 2001, 2000, and 1999, respeciively. In 2001, the improvement in
profits caused by increased volume was partially offset by a $497,000 or over 80% increase in credit losses. This
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increase was the result of a general decline in economic conditions during that period. The volume-related
improvement in 2000 was partially offset by a narrower interest rate spread in that year. This development was
caused by a higher interest rate environment in 2000, which resulted in a larger increase in the profit center’s average
cost of funds than its average yield on assets.

Education Lending Profits from education lending decreased by $947,000 or 24.1% in 2001 and
increased by $1.2 million or over 40% in 2000 compared to previous years. The decrease in 2001 was principally
the result of a sharp decline in market rates of interest during the year, which resulted in a 162 basis point decline in
the yield on education lozns. In contrast, the cost of the Corporation's money market accounts, which are the
primary funding source for this profit center, declined by only 96 basis points. In addition, the profit center's results
for 2001 include a $50,000 gain on the sale of loans compared to a gain of $197,000 in the previous year.

In 2000, education loans benefited from an improved interest rate spread as a result of higher
marke? interest rates in that year. The average yield on education loans improved by 95 basis points in 2000. In
contrast, the profit center's average cost of funds increased by only 37 basis points. Education loans also benefited
from a gain on sale of loans in 2000 that was $108,000 higher than the gain recorded in 1999.

Investment and Mortgage-Related Securities Profits from the Corporation's investment
securities portfolio declined by $685,000 or 37.6% in 2001 and by $124,000 or 6.4% in 2000 as compared to prior
years. The decline in 2001 occurred despite a $61.1 million or 23.1% increase in the average assets assigned to the
profit center. This situation was caused by a substantial change in the profit center’s mix of assets during the year.
In 2001, a declining interest rate environment resulted in a substantial increase in prepayments on the profit center's
higher-yielding assets, principally CMOs. These assets were replaced by purchases of lower-yielding CMOs and, to
a lesser extent, by overnight and other short-term investments. Ovemnight and short-term investments increased
during the last half of the year as a result of the temporary investment of proceeds from increased sales of single-
family mortgage loans, as described elsewhere in this report.

The decrease in this profit center's earnings in 2000, as compared to 1999, was principally volume
related. Average assets assigned to the profit center declined by $14.2 miflion or 5.1% in 2000 as compared to the
previous year.

A sigrificant portion of the assets of the investment and mortgage-related securities portfolio are
located in Nevada. As such, this profit center experiences a substantial tax advantage because Nevada does not
currently impose a corporate tax. However, the liabilities that fund this profit center's operations are maintained in
Wisconsin, which preserves the tax-deductibility of the interest expense in that state. This situation results in a very
low effective tax rate or, at times, a negative effective tax rate for this profit center.

Other Segmremts This segment consists primarily of the parent kolding company, as well as some
of the Banl's wholly-owned subsidiaries. In addition, in 2001 this profit center contains the preliminary results of
the Corporation's new line of business--commercial banking. The financial results of this profit center have not been
reported separately in 2001 due to continuing efforts to design these products on the Corporation’s systems, as well
as efforts to complete the integration of the operations of ACB and the three branches the Corporation has agreed to
acquire in Rochester, Minnesota. For additionsl discussion, refer to Notes 14 and 15 of the Corporation's Audited
Consolidated Financial Statements, included herein under Part I, Item 8, "Financial Statements and Supplementary
Data”.

The improvement in the eamings (loss) from this segment was principally the result of lower
interest expense in the helding company in 2001 as compared to 2000. This change was caused by a higher level of
borrowings in 2000, the proceeds of which were largely used to repurchase the Corporation's stock.

Non-GAAP Adjustments Non-GAAP adjustments were $2.9 million in 2001 compared to
($2.4) million in 2000 and ($1.5) million in 1999. The change between 200! and the two prior years was due
primarily to the fact that a large portion of the efforts of the mortgage banking profit center in 2001 were devoted to
the refinance of existing loans rather than the origination of new loams. As such, the Corporation recorded
significantly higher levels of imternal charge-offs related to its mornigage servicing operations. In addition, the
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residential loan profit center experienced a substantially higher level of charge-offs related to internally-capitalized
origination costs.

Net Cost to Acquire and Maintain Deposit Liabilities In addition to the after-tax performance
of the aforementicned profit centers, management of the Corporaticn closely monitors the net cost to acquire and
maintain deposit liabilities. The Corporation's profit centers are aliocated a share of the net cost to acquire and
maintain deposit liabilities accerding to their proportionate use of such deposits as a funding source. As such,
changes in the net cost to acquire and maintain deposit liabilities will impact all of the Corporation's profit centers.

The net cost to acquire and maintain deposit liabilities was 1.20%, 1.15%, and 1.13% of average
deposit liabilities outstanding during the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000, and 1999, respectively. The
increase in cost during these periods was due principally to increased openings of new banking facilities. In 2001,
the Corporation opened six new facilities, one of which was a full-service office. This compares to an increase of
eight supermarket facilities in 2000 and three in 1999.

Financial Condition

Overview The Corporation's total assets increased by $365 million or 15.5% during the twelve months
ended December 31, 2001. This increase was due in part to the acquisition of $156 million in assets of ACB on
October 31, 2001. For additional discussion, refer to Note 14 of the Corporation’s Audited Consolidated Financial
Statements, included herein under Part I, Item 8, "Financial Statements and Supplementary Data").

Excluding the effect of the ACB acquisition, total assets increased by approximately $209 million or 8.9%
in 2001. This increase was primarily the result of increases in interest-bearing deposits, loans held for investment,
investment and mortgage-related securities, cash and due from banks, loans held for sale, and other assets. These
increases were primarily funded by increases in deposit liabilities, FHLB advances, and stockholders’ equity (the
latter due in part to the issuance of $28.6 million in equity to acquire ACB). These funding sources were also used
to reduce federal funds purchased and borrowings under reverse-repurchase agreements in 2001,

Cash and Due from Bonks The Corporation's cash and due from banks, which consists primarily of vault
and teller cash, as well as correspondert bank balances, increased by $45.3 million or over 175% during the twelve
months ended December 31, 2001. Most of this increase was caused by a timing difference at December 31, 2000,
related to payment of real estate taxes at year-end for borrowers that maintain escrow relationships with the
Corporation.

Interest-bearing Deposits with Benks Interest-bearing deposits with banks, which consist of overnight
investments at the FHLB and short-term money market accounts, increased by $85.2 million from $13.1 million at
December 31, 2000, to $98.2 million at December 31, 2001. The large amount of overnight investments at
December 31, 2001, was caused by the temporary investment of proceeds from loan sales. These investments will
be used to pay down funding scurces as they mature or will be reinvested in other interest-earning assets.

Investient Securities The Corporation's investment securities increased from $817,000 at December 31,
2000, to $35.5 million at December 31, 2001. During the fourth quarter of 2001, the Corporation purchased $35.5
million in callable securities issued by various agencies of the U.S. govermment. These securities were sold in
January of 2002 at an accounting loss of $166,000. Despite this loss, the holding period return on these securities
was comparable to a money market vield, which was the Corporation’s expectation when it purchased the securities.

Morigage-Backed and Reloted Securities The Corporation’s aggregate investment in its mortgage-backed
and related securities portfolios increased by $31.5 million or 7.7% during the twelve months ended December 31,
2001. This increase was caused by the purchase of $232.8 million in short- and medium-term, fixed-rate CMOs, as
well as $35.3 million in floating-rate CMOs. These purchases were offset in part by $236.9 million in principal
repayments on the portfolio. Principal repayments on mortgage-related securities increased substantially during
2001 as a result of a historically low interest rate environment that encouraged borrowers to refinance higher-rate
mortgage loans into lower-rate loans.
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The following table sets forth the composition of the Corporation’s mortgage-backed and related securities
portfolios as of December 31 for each of the years indicated.

Dollars in thousands 2001 2000 1999
Amertized Fair Amortized Fair Amortized Fair
Cost VYalue Cost Value Cost Value
Available for sale:
Collateralized morigage obligations $221,777 $223,399 $120,538 $119,026 $148,311 $143,790
Mortgage-backed securities 81,011 82,581 207,052 212,211 105,651 108,376
Total available for sale 302,789 305,980 327,591 331,237 253,963 252,165
Held for investment:
Collateralized mortgage obligations 132,755 133,666 75,532 74,708 160,522 97,733
Mortgage-backed securities 1,255 1,272 1,767 1,749 3,410 3,335
Total held for investment. 134,010 134,937 77,299 76,457 103,932 101,068
Total mortgage-backed and related securities $436,799 $440,917 $404,889 $407,694 $357,895 $353,234
Weighied-average yield 6.06% 7.00% 6.82%

Loans Held for Sale The Corporation’s loans held for sale increased by $33.1 million or over 140% during
the year ended December 31, 2001. This increase was due to a declining interest rate environment during 2001 that
stimulated consumer demand for fixed-rate residential mortgage loans and resulted in increased conversions of
adjustable-rate loans into fixed-rate loans, which the Corporation generally sells in the secondary marlket.

The following table sets forth the activity in the Corporation's portfolic of loans beld for sale during each of
the years indicated.

Dollars in thousands 2001 2080 1999 1998 1897
Balance at beginning of period $22,974 $6,346 $72,002 $45,577 $20,339
Single-family mortgage loans originated for sale (/) 1,252,070 142,985 305,345 818,292 258,818
Loans transferred from held for investment (2) 165,583 23,743 21,283 98,718 92,573
Loans transferred to held for investment (3) - - (43,554) - -
Principel balance of loans sold (1,384,518) (150,100) (348,730) (8%0,585) (326,153)

Balance at end of peried $56,109 $22,974 $6,346 §72,002 $45,577

(1) Net of monthly principal payments received from borrowers during the period held for sale.

(2) Consists of single-family adjustable-rate morigage loans origingted for investment that converied 50 fixed-rate loans. The Corporation
generally sells such loans in the secondary market.

(3) Consists of fixed-rate morigage loans transferred to loans held for investmen: at the lower of cost or market to maintain growth in the
Corporation's earning assets.

In the fourth quarter of 1999, the Corporation transferred $43.6 million in fixed-rate mortgage loans that
had been originated for szle to its portfolio of loans held for investment. In accordamce with GAAP, these loans
were transferred at the lower of cost or market, which resulted in a $152,000 loss in that period. The loss reduced
the amount reported as gain on sales of loans in 1999.

Loans Held for Investinent The Corporation’s loans held for investment declined by $35.4 million or 2.0%
during the twelve months ended December 31, 2001 (excluding $114.3 million in loans acquired in the ACB
acquisition in the fourth quarter of 2001). During the twelve months ended December 31, 2001, the Corporation
originated $269.4 million inm adjustable-rate single-family mortgage loans, $273.5 million in consumer loans
(consisting mostly of second mortgages), $112.7 million in commercial real estate loans, $33.7 million in education
loans, and $2.3 million in commercizl business loans. During the same period, the Corporation purchased $178.1
million in adjustable-rate residential mortgage loans criginated by third-party financial institutions. During 2001, the
interest rate environment had a significant impact on the ability of the Corporation to maintzin its internally-
originated portfolio of loans held for investment. This situation developed because low interest rates tend to
increase customer preference for fixed-rate mortgage loans, as opposed to adjustable-rate loans. In addition, a low
interest rate environment encourages borrowers to refinance their existing adjustable-rate residential loans into
fixed-rate loans to "lock-in" a lower long-term rate. Given the Corporation’s policy of selling these types of loans in
the secondary market, its internally-originated portfolio of adjustable-rate residential loans declined significantly in
the most recent period. Although the Corporation was able to maintain internal growth in commercial real estate,
consumer, and education loams, the Corporation purchased adjustable-rate mortgage loans from three third-party
financial institutions in an effort to maintain growth in its level of eaming assets. These loans were subjected to
substantially the same underwriting process as the Corporation’s own loans. These loans are located throughout the
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U.8., with no single state making up a significant portion of the overall principal. The loans have adjustable-rates
that reset annually at an average margin of approximately 200 to 250 basis points above the one-year U.S. Treasury
bill. Most of the loans have fixed interest rates for terms of three to seven years before their first adjustment date.
The loans were purchased by FCHI, the Corporation’s wholly-owned investinent subsidiary in Nevada.

The Corporation will continue to explore alternatives to maintain growth in its interest-earning assets in the
near term. These alternatives include, but are not limited to, the purchase of additional adjustable-rate residential
mortgage loans from third-party financial institutions, the purchase of morigage-backed and related securities, and
the retention of certain fixed-rate loans that are currently sold by the Corporation in the secondary market.
However, there are many considerations involved in such decisions and there cam be no assurances that the
Corporation will elect to continue any of these strategies to increase its interest-earning assets.

The following table sets forth the composition of the Corporation's pertfolio of loans held for investment as
of December 31 for each of the years indicated.

Dollars in thousands 2001 2630 1999 1993 1997
Amount % Amoumnt % Amoumnt % Amount % Amount %
Real estate loans:
Single-family mortgage loans $669,867 36%  $719,671 40%  $652,883 42%  $426,603 36%  $537,722 45%
Non-residential real estate loans 257,043 14 203,842 1! 168,453 11 141,046 12 107,315 9
Multi-family residential loans 252,312 14 236,003 13 186,591 12 148,060 13 140,589 12
Construction loans (/) 83,537 4 77,216 4 80,563 5 63,035 5 51,319 4
Total real estate loans 1,262,759 68 1,236,732 70 1,088,490 70 778,744 66 836,945 70
Consumer loans:
Second mortgage and home
equity loans 249,501 13 253,866 14 204,806 13 175,541 15 163,231 14
Automobile loans 75,009 4 64,841 4 46,956 3 37,558 3 31,182 3
Other consumer loans (2) 29,949 2 25,262 1 14,239 1 9,006 1 9,149 1
Total consumer loans 354,459 19 343,969 19 266,001 17 222,105 19 203,562 17
Education loans 201,183 1 197,579 11 190,170 12 182,380 15 159,893 13
Commeicial business loans 38,736 2 195 - 296 - 371 - 557 -
Subtotal 1,857,137 100% 1,778,475 100% 1,544,958 100% 1,183,600 100% 1,200,957 100%
Uneamed discounts, premiums,
and net deferred loan fee/costs 4,141 2,029 1,260 1,549 574
Allowance for loan losses (9,962) (8,028) (7,624) (7,624) (7,638)
Total loans held for investment $1,851,316 $1,772,477 $1,538,595 $1,177,526 $1,193,893
Weighted average coniractual rate 7.36% 8.00% 7.58% 7.80% 8.22%

(1) At December 31, 2001, construction loans consisted of §56.4 million in single-family residences, 522.5 million in multi-family residences,
and $4.6 million in non-residential real estate.

(2) At December 31, 2001, other consumer logns included $22.3 million of unsecured loans, 54.5 million of recreational and household good
loans, $1.9 million of deposit account-secured loans, and $1.2 million of mobile home loans.




The following table sets forth the activity in the Corporation's portfolio of loans held for investment during
each of the years indicated.

Dollars in thousands 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
Balance at beginning of peried $1,772,477 $1,538,595 $1,177,526 $1,193,893 $1,106,040
Real estate loan originations:
Single-family mortgage loans (/) 270,071 354,734 293,227 212,964 243,694
Commercial real estate loans 112,715 120,459 112,180 106,146 71,554
Decrease (increase) in loans in process (2) 9,276 (13,546) (7,088) 1,654 (13,081)
Total real estate loans originated 392,062 461,647 398,321 320,764 302,167
Consumer loan originations:
Second mortgage and home equity loan. 192,574 160,386 137,459 136,659 120,809
Automobile loans i 56,081 52,967 39,635 33,729 23,923
QOther consumer loans (3) 24,894 22,490 12,168 6,461 7,004
Total consumer loans originated 273,549 235,843 189,262 176,849 151,736
Education loan originations 33,705 33,859 29,521 37,692 38,422
Commercial business loan originations 2,278 - - - -
Totzl loans originated for investment 701,595 731,350 617,103 535,305 492,325
Loans purchased for invesiment:
Single-family residential loans 178,104 13,051 97,238 165,140 -
Commercial real estate loans - 8,625 798 - 6,373
Consumer loans - - - 377 -
Total toans purchased for investment 178,104 21,676 98,036 165,517 6,373
Net loans acquired in the acquisition of ACB (¢) 114,287 - - - -
Loan principal repayments (742,074) (356,507) (371,959 (389,935) (317,291)
Education loans sold (1,338) (4,800) (2,165) - -
Loans transferred to held for sale portfolio (5) (165,583) (23,743) (21,283) (98,718) (92,573)
Loans swapped into mortgage-backed securities - (132,280) - (222,260) -
Loans trensferred from held for sale portfolio (6) - - 43,554 - -
Other changes in loans held for investment (7) (6,155) {1,813) (2,178) (6,276) (981)
Balance 2t end of period $1,851,316 §1,772,477 $1,538,595 $1,177,526 $1,193,893

(1) Excludes loans originated for sale and loans originated on an agency basis for WHEDA and State YA. The latter amounted to $22.6 million,
$26.3 million, 830.3 million, $38.8 million, and 823.1 million in 2001, 2000, 1999, 1998, and 1997, respectively.

(2) Consists of changes in loans in process on single-family, multi-family, and non-residential real esiate construction loans.

(3) Consists prircipally of loans secured by mobile homes, recreationsl and household goods, and deposit accounts, as well as unsecured loans.

(4) Consists of §36.9 million in commercial business logns, $36.9 million in single-family residential logn, 327.0 million in commercial real
estate loans, $13.3 miliion in consumer loans, and 80.2 million in education loans.

(3) Consists of single-family adjustable-rase morigage loans that converted to fixed-rate and were sold in the secondary market.

(6) Consists of fixed-rate morigage loans transferred from loans held for sale at the lower of cost or market to maintain growth in the
Corporation's earning assets.

(7) Consists principally of real estate foreclosures and changes in allowance for loan losses, discounts, premiums, and deferred fees.

Orher Assetss The Corporation's other assets increased from $2.6 million at December 31, 2000, to $33.3
million at December 31, 2001. A large portion of this increase resulted from the Corporation’s purchase of life
insurance on certain key members of senior and middle management personnel (referred to as "bank-owned life
insurance”).

Deposit Liohiliries The Corporation’s deposit lizbilities increased by $200.4 million or 11.8% during the
twelve months ended December 31, 2001 (excluding $129.6 million in deposits assumed in the ACB acquisition).
Management attributes much of this growth to recent volatility in other financial markets, which has made
traditional bank financial offerings more attractive to comsumers, as well as aggressive pricing of certificates of
deposit by the Corporation in its market aress. The Corporation’s deposit liabilities were also impacted by an $87.9
million or over 520% increase in custodial deposit accounts during 2001. The Corporation maintains borrowers’
principal and interest payments in such accounts on a temporary basis pending their remittance to the third-party
owners of the loans. Balances in these accounts increased substantially in 2001 due to significant increases in loan
prepayment activity.
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The following table sets forth the composition of the Corporation's deposit liabilities as of December 31 for
each of the years indicated.

Dollars in thousgnds 2001 2000 1999
Weighted Welghted Weighted
Average Average Average
Amount Rate Amoumnt Rate Amoumt Rate
Regular savings accounts $141,548 1.11% $103,662 1.49% $104,511 1.49%
Interest-bearing checking accounts 101,679 0.63 80,594 0.85 72,913 0.75
Non-interest bearing checking accounts 285,591 - 161,602 - 136,700 -
Money market accounts 214,604 1.80 154,399 422 173,596 376
Variable-rate IRA accounts 4,017 1.88 2,827 394 3,610 363
Certificates of deposit 1,281,814 5.19 1,196,168 6.45 979,930 541
Total $2,029,254 3.58% $1,699,252 5.06% $1,471,259 4.20%

At December 31, 2001, certificates of deposit in denominations of $100,000 or more amounted to $152.3
million and mature as follows: $59.6 million within three months, $22.3 million over three through six months,
$29.6 millicn over six through 12 months, $37.3 million over 12 through 24 months, and $3.5 million over 24
months. At December 31, 2001, certificates of deposits issued through third-party broker-dealers amounted to $22.3
miilion, all of which was scheduled to mature within three months.

Federal Funds Purchased and Securities Sold Under Agreements to Repurchose The Corporation's
federal funds purchased and securities sold under agreement to repurchase declined by $120.0 million or 160% in
the aggregate during the twelve months ended December 31, 2001. This decrease was primarily funded by an
increase in deposit liabilities, as previously described.

FHLB Advonces and Al Other Borrowings The Corporation's FHLB advances increased by $86.2
miflion or over 23% during the year ended December 31, 2001 (excluding $13.5 million acquired in the ACB
acquisition). Additional FHLB advances were drawn during 2001 to fund growth in the Corporation’s mortgage-
backed and related securities.

The following table presemts certain information regarding the Corporation's shori-term borrowings
(original maturity of less than one year) at or for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000, and 1999.

Dollars in thousands 2001 2000 1999
FHLB advances:
Average balance outstanding (/) $35,006 $51,828 $84,482
Maximum amount outstanding at any month-end during the pericd 112,080 201,273 204,215
Balance outstanding at end of pericd 12,500 10,545 201,273
Average interest rate during the pericd (2) 4.50% 6.42% 5.32%
Weighted-average interest rate at the end of pericd 2.61% 6.74% 5.66%
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase:
Average balance ouistanding (/) $36,923 $71,154 -
Maximum amount outstanding at any month-end during the period 160,000 100,600 -
Balance outstanding at end of pericd - 100,000 -
Average interest rate during the period (2) 6.66% 6.45% -
Weighted-average interest ratz at the end of pericd - 6.68% -
Federal funds purchased:
Average balance outstanding (1) $10,769 $15,385 $2,308
Maximum amount cutstanding 2t any menth-end during the pericd 20,000 20,000 20,000
Balance outstanding at end of pericd - 20,000 20,080
Average interest rate during the period (2) 5.15% 6.72% 5.74%
Weighted-average interest rate 2t the end of period - 6.77% 5.79%
Total short-term borrowings:
Average balance outstanding (/) $82,698 $138,367 $86,790
Maximum amount outstanding at any month-end during the pericd 191,155 221,273 221,273
Balance outstanding at end of period 12500.00 130,545 221,273
Average interest rate during the peried (2) 5.55% 6.47% 533%
Weighted-average interest rate at the end of pericd 2.61% 6.70% 5.67%

(1) Calculated using month-end balances.
(2) Calculated using month-end average interest rates.
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Non-Performing Assets The Corporation’s non-performing assets (consisting of nen-accrual loans, real
estate acquired through fereclosure or deed-in-lieu thereof, and real estate in judgement) amounted to $8.5 million
or 0.31% of total assets at December 31, 2001, compared to $4.4 million or 0.19% at December 31, 2000. The
increase in non-performing assets in 2001 was due in part to an overall increase in loans on non-accrual status,
particularly consumer loans and, to a lesser degree, mortgage loans. These increases were principally caused by a
general deterioration in overall economic conditions in 2001. Also contributing to the increase in non-performing
assets in 2001 was $933,000 of real estate in judgement and real estate acquired through foreclosure related to three
independent builders that experienced problems with a number of small single-family projects. Although
foreclosure on these loans has commenced, management does not expect to incur significant losses. However, there
can be no assurances.

The following table contains information regarding the Corporation's non-performing assets during the five year
period ended December 31, 2001.

Dollars in thousands 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
Non-accrual loans:
Single-family mortgage loans $3,078 $2,065 $862 $770 $738
Commercial real estate loans 373 - - - 3,000
Consumer loans 2,040 1,069 191 341 672
Commercial business loans 164 - - - -
Total non-accrual loans 3,655 3,134 1,053 L1l 4,410
Real estate owned and in judgement 2,847 1,222 1,091 1,264 492
Total non-performing assets $8,502 $4,356 32,144 $2,375 34,502
Ratio of non-accrual loans to loans held for investment 0.31% 0.18% 0.07% 0.09% 0.37%
Ratio of total non-performing assets to total assets 0.31% 0.19% 0.10% 0.13% 0.32%
Ratio of total allowance for loan and real estate losses
to total non-performing assets 120% 188% 365% 330% 155%

Note: there were no non-performing education loans as of December 31 for any of the years presented.

In addition to non-performing assets, at December 31, 2001, management was closely monitoring $10.3
million in assets which it had classified as doubtful, substandard, or special mention. This compares to $2.8 million
in such assets at December 31, 2000. The increase in 2001 was due primarily to the classification of $4.8 million in
commercial real estate and $1.9 million in comumercial loans as substandard in the fourth quarter, the latter
attributable to the ACB acquisition. Although these loans were performing in accordance with their terms,
management of the Corporation deemed their classification prudent after consideration of factors such as declines in
the valuation of associated collateral, reductions in occupancy rates, and deteriorating economic conditions.
Management does not expect to incur 2 significant loss on these loans at this time, although there can be no
2SSUTANCES.

Liquidity and Capital Resourees

The Corporation’s primary sources of funds are deposits obtained through its branch office network,
borrowings from the FHLB and other sources, amortization, maturity, and prepayment of outstanding loans and
investments, and sales of loans and other assets. During 2001, 2000, and 1999, the Corporation used these sources
of funds to fund loam commitments, purchase investment and mortgage-related securities, and cover maturing
liabilities and deposit withdrawals. At December 31, 2001, the Corporation had $889.9 million in time deposits, and
$66.8 million in FHLB advances that were scheduled to mature within one year. In addition, the Corporation had
approved loan commitments and undisbursed commitments on construction loans outstanding as of the same date.
Management believes that the Corporation has adequate resources to fund all of these obligations or commitments,
that all of these obligations or commitments will be funded by the required date, and that the Corporation can adjust
the rates it offers on certificates of deposit to retain such deposits in changing interest rate environments, Under
FHLB lending and collateralization guidelimes, the Corporation had approximately $356 million in unused
borrowing capacity at the FHLB as of December 31, 2001. The Corporation also had $65 million in unused lines of
credit with other financial institutions as of the same date.

The Corporation's stockholders' equity ratio as of December 31, 2001, was 7.08% of total assets. The
Corporation's long-term objective is to maintain & ratio of at least 7.0%.
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The Corporation is also required to maintain specified amounts of capital pursuant to reguiations
promulgated by the OTS and the FDIC. The Corporation's objective is to maintain its regulatory capital in an
amount sufficient to be classified in the highest regulatory capital category (i.e., as a "well capitalized” institution),
At December 31, 2001, the Corporation's regulatory capital exceeded all regulatory minimum requirements, as well
as the amount required to be classified as a "wel! capitalized" institution. For additicnal discussion, refer to Note 11
of the Corporation's Consclidated Financial Statements, included herein under Part II, Item 8, "Financial Statements
and Supplementary Data”.

The Corporation paid cash dividends of $8.9 million, $7.7 million, and $6.3 million during the years ended
December 31, 2001, 2000, and 1999, respectively. These amounts equated to dividend payout ratics of 31.2%,
33.3%, and 28.0% of the net income in such periods, respectively. It is the Corporation's objective to maintain its
dividend payout ratic in a range of 25% to 35% of net income. However, the Corporation's dividend policy and/or
dividend payout ratic will be impacted by considerations which include, but are not limited to, the level of
stockholders' equity in relation to the Corporation's stated goal, as previously described, regulatory capital
requirements for the Corporation, as previously described, and certain dividend restrictions in effect for the
Corporation (for additional discussion refer to Note 11 of the Corporation's Audited Consolidated Financial
Statements, included herein vnder Part II, Item 8, "Financial Statements and Supplementary Data"). Furthermore,
unanticipated or non-recurring fluctuations in eamings may impact the Corporation's ability to pay dividends and/or
maintain a given dividend payout ratio.

On January 24, 2002, the Corporation's Board of Directors approved a regular quarterly dividend of $0.12
per share payable on March 7, 2002, to shareholders of record on February 14, 2002.

During 2001, the Corporation repurchased 228,800 shares of its common stock at a cost of $3.2 million
under its 1999 and 2000 stock repurchase plans (the "1999 Plan" and "2000 Plan", respectively). As of
December 31, 2001, no shares remained to be purchased under the 1999 Plan and 904,260 shares remain to be
purchased under the 2000 Plan. In April 2001, the Corporation's Board of Directors extended the 2000 Plan for
another twelve months. The shares may be repurchased from time to time in open-market transactions during the
next twelve months as, in the opinion of management, market conditions warrant. The repurchased shares will be
held as treasury stock and will be available for general corporate purposes. For additional discussion, refer to
Note 11 of the Corporation’s Audited Consolidated Financial Statements, included herein under Part I, Item 8,
"Financial Statements and Supplementary Data”

During 2001, the Corporation reissued 1,825,132 shares of comumon stock out of its inventory of treasury
stock with a cost basis of $18.3 million (1,685,126 of these shares, plus 250,178 of previously unissued shares, were
issued in connection with the acquisition of ACB). In general, these sharss were otherwise issued upon the exercise
of stock options by, or the issuance of restricted stock to, employees and directors of the Corporation.

Item 7A-Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

The Corporation manages the exposure of its operations to changes in interest rates (“interest rate risk” or
"market risk") by monitoring its ratios of interest-camning assets to interest-bearing liabilities within one- and three-
year maturities and/or repricing dates (i.e., its one- and three-year "gaps”). Management has sought to control the
Corporation’s one- and three-year gaps, thereby limiting the affects of changes in interest rates on its future
earnings, by selling substantially all of its long-term, fixed-rate, single-family mortgage loan production, investing
in adjustable-rate single-family mortgage loans, investing in consumer, education, and commercial loams, which
generally have shorter terms to maturity and/or floating rates of interest, and investing in commercial real estate
loans, which also tend to have shorter terms to maturity and/or flogting rates of interest. The Corporation also
invests from time-to-time in adjustable-rate and short- and medium-term fixed-rate CMOs and MBSs. As a result of
this strategy, the Corporation's exposure to interest rate risk is significantly impacted by its funding of the
aforementioned asset groups with deposit liabilities and FHLB advances that tend to have average terms to maturity
of less than one year or carry floating rates of interest.
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In gemeral, it is management’s goal to maintain the Corporation’s one-year gap in a range between 0%
and —30% and its three-year gap in a range between 0% and -10%. Management believes this strategy takes
advantage of the fact that market yield curves tend to be upward sloping, which increases the spread between the
Corporztion’s carning assets and interest-bearing liabilities. Furthermore, management of the Cerperation does not
believe that this strategy exposes the Corporation to unacceptable levels of interest rate risk as evidenced by the fact
that the Corporation’s three-year gap is generally maintained in a narrow band arcund zero, which implies that the
Corporation is exposed to little interest rate risk over a three-year horizon. In addition, it should be noted that for
purposes of its gap analysis, the Corporation classifies its interest-bearing checking, savings, and money market
deposits in the shortest category, due to their potential to reprice. However, it is the Corporation's experience that
these deposits do not reprice as quickly or to the same extent as other financial instruments, especially in a rising
rate environment. In addition, the Corporation classifies certain FHLB advances that are redesmable prior to
maturity (at the option of the FHLB) according to their redemption dates, which are earlier than their maturity dates.

The following table summarizes the Corporation's gap as of December 31, 2001,

More Than More Than Maore Thar

& Months & Months 1 Year to 3 Years to Over
Dollars in thousands or Less to 1 Year 3 Years 5 Years 5 Years Total i
Interest-caming assets: it
Mortgage and commercial loans:
Fixed $146,366 $39,700 $56,408 $32,963 $8,223 $283,660
Adjustable 214,559 209,835 423,119 221,612 3,948 1,073,073
Consumer and education loans 328,943 67,191 124,713 26,707 6,050 553,604
Mortgage-backed and related securities 127,477 63,248 164,584 59,730 19,831 434,870
Investment securities and other eaming assets 133,233 - - - 28,063 161,296
Total $950,578 $379,974 $768,824 $341,012 366,115 $2,506,503
Interest-bearing liabilities:
Deposits liabilities:
Regular savings and checking accounts $243,227 - - - - $243,227
Money market deposit accounts 214,604 - - - - 214,604
Variable-rate IRA accounts 4,017 - - - - 4,017
Time deposits 698,610 $189,146 $365,951 $28,107 - 1,281,814 N
FHLB advances and other borrowings 256,655 40,419 145,369 25,004 - 467,447
Total 51,417,113 $229,565 $511,320 $53,111 - $2,211,109 H
Excess (deficiency) of eaming assets
over interesi-bearing liabilities ($466,535) $150,409 $257,504 $287,501 $66,115 :
Cumulative excess (deficiency) of eaming 4
assets over interesi-bearing liabilities (5466,535) ($316,126) ($58,622) $229,279 $295,394
Cumulative excess (deficiency) of eamning 4
assets over interest-bearing liabilities as a i
percent of total assets -17.17% -11.63% -2.16% 8.44% 10.87%
Cumulative earning assets as a percentage of
interest-bearing liabilities 67.08% 80.80% 97.28% 110.37% 113.36%

Note: If redeemable FHLE advances, inserest-bearing checking, and regular savings deposits were deemed to reprice afler one year, the
Corporation's one-year funding gap would have been 5.79% as of December 31, 2001, which compares to -3.25% and -8.58% as of
December 31, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

The Corporation’s one-year gap was ~11.63% at December 31, 2001, compared to —20.65% and -21.89% at g
December 31, 20600 and 1999, respectively. The decline in the Corporation's negative one-year gap in 2001 was
primarily attributable to an increase in overnight and short-term investments, due to the temporary investment of
proceeds from increased sales of mortgage loans. Also contributing was an increase in FHLB advances that have a E
maturity date beyond December 31, 2002. :

Certain shortcomings are inherent in using gap to quantify exposure to interest rate risk. For example,
although certain assets amd ligbilities may have similar maturities or repricings in the table, they may react
differently to actual changes in market interest rates. This is especially true for assets such as mortgage loans that
have embedded prepayment options and liabilities that have early redemption features. Also, the interest rates on
certain types of assets and liabilities may fluctuate in advance of changes in market interest rates, while interest rates
on other types may lag behind changes in market rates. This is especially true in circumstances where management
has g certain amount of control over interest rates, as it does in the case of deposit liabilities. Additionally, certain .
assets such as adjustable-rate mortgage loans have features that restrict changes in interest rates on a short-term basis
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and over the life of the asset. Furthermore, the proportion of adjustable-rate loans in the Corporation’s portfolio
may change as interest rates change due to changes in borrowers’ preferences.

Although management believes that its asset/liability management strategies reduce the potential effects of
changes im interest rates on the Corporation’s operations, material and prolonged increases in interest rates may
adversely affect the Corporation’s operations because the Corporation's interest-bearing liabilities which mature or
reprice within one year are greater than the Corporation's interest-earning assets which mature or reprice within the
same peried. Alternatively, material and prolonged decreases in interest rates may benefit the Corporation’s
operations.

The Corporation does not use derivative financial instruments such as futures, swaps, caps, floors, options,
interest- or principal-only strips, or similar financial instruments to manage its interest rate risk. However, the
Corporation does use forward sales of mortgage-backed securities and other commitments of a similar nature to
manage exposure to market risk in its “pipeline” of single-family residential loans intended for sale. This pipeline
consists of morigage loans that are held for sale as of the balance sheet date as well as commitments to originate
morigage loans that are intended for sale, but are not closed as of the balance sheet date. Loans held for sale are
generally matched against forward sales that require delivery within 30 to 60 days of the balance sheet date. The
Corporation’s policy is to match substantially all of its pipeline with forward sales. These forward sales generally
require delivery within 30 to 60 days. Given these policies, as well as the short-term nature of the Corporation’s
pipeline and its related forward sales, management believes these financial instruments pose little market risk tc th
Corporation. ‘

The Corporation is required by the OTS to estimate the sensitivity of its net portfolic value of equity
("NPV") to immediate and sustained changes in interest rates and to measure such sensitivity on at least a quarterly
basis. NPV is defined as the estimated net present value of an institution’s existing assets, liabilities, and off-
balance sheet instruments at a given level of market interest rates. Computation of the estimated net present value of
assets, liabilities, and off-balance sheet imstruments requires management to make numerous assumptions with
respect to such items. These assumptions include, but are not limited to, appropriate discount rates, loan prepayment
rates, deposit decay rates, etc., for each interest rate scenaric. In general, the Corporation has used substantially the
same assumptions for computing the net present value of financial assets and liabilities in the base scenario as it uses
in preparing the fair value disclosures required under GAAP (refer to Notes 1 and 12 of the Corporation’s Audited
Consolidated Financial Statements, included herein under Part II, ltem 8, "Financial Statements and Supplementary
Data"). Computations of net present values for other interest rate scenarios follow the same basic approach except
that discount rates, loan prepayment rates, and other assumptions are adjusted accordingly. The net present values
of non-financial assets and liabilities are generally estimated to be equal to their carrying values under all interest
rate scenarios as permitted by OTS regulations. With respect to off-balance sheet items, the Corporation generally
relies on estimates of value provided by the OTS. The same is true for certain other financial assets such as
mortgage servicing rights and deposit-based intangibles.

The following table summarizes as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, the sensitivity of the Corporation’s
NPV to immediate and sustained changes in interest rates, as shown (parallel shifts in the term structure of interest
rates are assumed as permitted by QTS regulations; dellars are presented in millions).

Estimated NPV
Change in Interest Rates 12/31/01 12/31/00
200 basis point increase $2114 $166.6
Base scenario 218.2 174.9

200 basis point decline 203.3 158.9




Certain shortcomings are inherent in using NPV to quantify exposure to market risk. For example, actual
and future values of assets, liabilities, and off-balance sheet items will differ from those determined by the model for
a variety of reasons to include, but not limited to, differences in actual market discount rates, differences in actual
loan prepayment activity, and differences in deposit customers’ responses {0 changes in interest rates and the
resulting impact on the Corporation’s offering rates. Furthermore, the analysis does not contemplate future shifts in
asset or liability mix or any actions management may take in response to changes in interest rates. As a result of
these shortcomings, it is unlikely that actual or future values of the Corporation’s assets, liabilities, and off-balance
sheet items are or will be equal to those presented in the NPV analysis.
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Item 8—Finamcial Statements and Supplementary Datas
Audited] Consolidared Financial Statements

Consolidated Statements of Financizl Condition
December 31, 2001 and 2000

ASSETS 2001 2000
Cash and due from banks $70,756,705 $25,445,819
Interest-bearing deposits with banks 98,233,160 13,054,493
Investment securities available for sale, at fair value 35,461,500 817,141
Mortgage-backed and related securities:
Available for sale, at fair value 305,979,912 331,236,909
Held for investment, at cost (fair value of $134,937,344 and $76,456,829, respectively) 134,010,248 77,298,853
Loans held for sale 56,109,442 22,973,887
Loans held for investment, net 1,851,316,436 1,772,476,651
Federal Home Loan Bank stock 28,063,300 25,568,100
Accrued interest receivable, net 19,016,429 19,701,004
Office properties and equipment 30,653,310 26,781,010
Mortgage servicing rights, net 29,508,769 23,280,472
Intangible assets 24,946,280- 11,490,392
Other assets 33,254,152 2,600,835
Total assets $2,717,709,643 $2,352,725,566
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Deposit liabilities $2,029,254,047 $1,699,252,162
Federal funds purchased - 20,000,000
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase - 100,000,000
Federal Home Loan Bank advances 467,415,000 368,205,000
Other borrowings 32,311 2,641,370
Advance payments by borrowers for taxes and insurance 1,640,142 1,023,712
Accrued interest payable 4,063,741 4,047,875
Other liabilities 22,906,699 11,005,952
Total liabilities 2,525,311,940 2,206,176,071
Preferred stock, $0.10 par value, 5,000,080 shares authorized, none outstanding - -
Common stock, $0.10 par value, 100,000,000 shares authorized, 20,200,829 and 19,941,630 shares
issued and outstanding (including 0 and 1,596,332 shares of treasury stock), respectively 2,020,083 1,994,163
Additional paid-in capital 46,607,845 34,540,064
Retained earnings 141,717,089 122,921,606
Treasury stock, at cost - (15,127,142)
Uneamed restricted stock (87,083) (142,083)
Accumulated non-owner adjustments 1o equity, net 2,139,769 2,362,887
Total stockholders' equity 192,397,703 146,549,495
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $2,717,709,643 $2,352,725,566

Refer to accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Consclidated Statements of Operations
Years Ended December 31, 2001, 2000, and 1999

2001 2000 1999
Interest on loans $144,007,080 $134,454,432 $103,880,028
Interest on mortgage-backed and related securities 24,060,467 24,516,300 23,728,297
Interest and dividends on investments 3,465,094 2,465,456 2,462,273
Total interest income 171,532,641 161,436,188 130,070,598
[nterest on deposit liabilities 83,584,616 73,587,725 60,547,033
interest on FHLB advances and other borrowings 24,745,757 28,308,198 15,406,359
Total interest expense 108,330,373 101,895,922 75,953,392
Net interest income 63,202,268 59,540,266 54,117,206
Provision for loan losses 1,763,391 1,008,780 387,021 y
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 61,438,877 58,531,486 §3,730,185 iE
Retail banking fees and service charges 25,445,941 22,460,778 20,229,612 :
Premiums and commissions 3,826,392 2,782,982 2,612,694
Loan servicing fees, net (7,529,972) 3,874,210 2,758,148
Gain on sales of loans 24,422,870 2,736,467 7,225,815
Gain on sale of investments 13,199 - -
Gain on sale of real estate investments - 1,188,863 -
Qther income 3,348,876 2,589,250 2,351,585
Total non-interest income 49,527,306 35,632,550 35,177,854
Compensation and employee benefits 40,152,644 35,246,002 31,512,342
Occupancy and equipment 8,721,140 7,827,333 7,381,256
Communications, postage, and office supplies 5,256,205 4,304,790 4,019.411
ATM and debit card transaction costs 3,241,996 2,927,597 2,694,203
Advertising and marketing 2,588,745 2,377,953 2,275,502 i
Amortization of intangibles 1,084,974 1,027,761 1,031,774 !
Other expenses 6,073,769 4,538,896 5,384,961 i
Total non-interest expense 67,119,473 58,250,331 54,299,449
Income before income taxes 43,846,710 35,913,705 34,608,590
Income tax expense . 15,398,485 12,769,829 12,167,380 i
Net income $28,448,225 $23,143,876 $22,441,210 i
Per share information 2001 2000 1999
Diluted eamings per share ) $1.51 $1.25 31.17
Basic eamings per share 1.52 1.26 1.21
Dividends paid per share 0.47 0.42 0.38

Refer to accompanying Notes to Audited Consolidated Financial Statements.




Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity
Years Ended December. 31, 2001, 2000, and 1999

Common
Stock and Accumulated
Additional Unearned Non-Owner
Paid-In Retained Treasury Restricted Adjustments
Capital Earnings Stock Stoelk to Equity Total
Balance at December 31, 1998 § 36,534,227 § 97,291,806 $(12,722,834) (1,256,266) $ 2,837,714 $122,684,647
Net income 22,441,210 22,441,210
Securities valuation adjustment,
net of income taxes (4,045,959) {4,045,959)
Net income and non-owner
adjustments to equity 18,395,251
Dividends paid (6,287,822) (6,287,822)
Exercise of stock options (6,516,097) 14,264,500 7,748,403
Purchase of treasury stock (15,930,336) (15,930,336)
Amortization of restricted stock 665,083 665,083
Balance at December 31, 1999 36,534,227 106,929,097 (14,388,670) (591,183) (1,208,245) 127,275,226
Net income 23,143,876 23,143,876
Securities valuation adjustment,
net of income taxes 3,571,132 3,571,132
Net income and non-owner
adjustments to equity 26,715,008
Dividends paid (7,699,035) (7,699,035)
Exercise of stock options (417,520) 809,879 392,359
Restricted stock award 4,688 160,312 (165,000) -
Purchase of treasury stock (1,708,663) ‘ (1,708,663)
Amortization of restricted stock 960,500 614,100 1,574,600
Balance at December 31, 2000 36,534,227 122,921,606 (15,127,142) (142,083) 2,362,887 146,549,495
Net income 28,448,225 28,448,225
Securities valuation adjustment,
net of income taxes (214,539) (214.539)
Reclassification adjustment for
gain on securities included in
income, net of income taxes (8,579) (8.579)
Net income and non-owner
adjustments to equity 28,225,107
Common stock issued for
acquisition 12,085,017 16,518,776 28,603,793
Dividends paid (8,866,148) (8,866,148)
Exercise of stock options 8,684 (1,508,794) 1,821,742 321,632
Purchases of treasury stock (3,213,376) (3,213,376)
Amortization of restricted stock 722,200 55,000 ) 777,200
Balance at December 31, 2001 348,627,928  $141,717,089 - ($87,083) $2,139,762 $192,397,703

Refer to accompanying Notes to Audited Consolidated Financial Statements.




Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended December. 31, 2001, 2000, and 1999

2001 3009 1999
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $28,448,225 $23,143,876 $22,441,210
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operations:
Provision for loan and real estate losses, net 1,807,782 1,069,996 305,852
Net loan costs deferred (2,740,892) (1,349,652) (586,949)
Amortization (including mortgage servicing rights) 18,795,379 6,184,715 7,437,777
Depreciation 2,586,951 2,573,353 2,521,592
Gains on sales of loans and other investments (24,436,069) (3,925,330) (7,225,815)
Decrease (increase) in accrued interest receivable 1,610,828 (4,280,167) (1,532,299)
Increase (decrease) in accrued interest payable (1,449,262) 1,531,595 568,457
Increase in current and deferred income taxes 3,990,480 351,772 5,678,518
Other accruals and prepaids, net 435,401 (663,059) 356,321
Net cash provided by operations before loan originations and sales 29,048,823 24,637,099 29,664,664
Loans originated for sale (1,252,070,158)  (142,985,217)  (305,345,488)
Sales of loans originated for sale or transferred from held for investment 1,390,901,215 150,876,533 351,254,560
Net cash provided by operations 167,879,880 32,528,415 75,573,736
Cash flows from investing activities:
Decrease (increase) in interest-bearing deposits with banks (75.614,559) 4,735,769 78,759,513
Purchases of invesiment securities (35,553,880) - (941,254)
Sales of investment securities 21,823,808 - -
Maturities of investment securities 160,000 100,000 -
Purchases of mortgage-backed and related securities available for sale (167,327,646) - (144,155,260)
Purchases of mortgage-backed and related securities held for investment (100,780,023) - (51,163,258)
Principal repayments on mortgage-backed and related securities available for sale 193,046,784 58,228,257 80,384,796
Principal repayments on mortgage-backed and related securities held for investment 43,826,047 26,567,249 49,632,447
Sales of mortgage-backed and related securities available for sale 7,408,541 - -
Loans originated for investment (701,594,833)  (731,349,977)  (617,103,300)
Loans purchased for investment (178,103,908) (21,675,836) (98,035,581)
Loan principal repayments 742,073,665 356,507,215 371,997,482
Sales of education loans 1,384,322 4,996,708 2,254,103
Sales of real estate 2,478,862 2,780,175 1,710,646
Purchases of office properties and equipment (6,388,322) (4,931,478) (2,173,855)
Purchases of mortgage servicing righis (1,100,197) (1,865,307) -
Purchase of net assets of ACB (excluding cash and cash equivalents) (25,623,980) - -
Purchase of bank-owned life insurance (15,000,000) - -
Other, net (14,579,244) (2,594,536) (9,589,230)
Net cash used by investing activities (309,524,563)  (308,501,761)  (328,422,751)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Increase in deposit liabilities 202,008,108 227,992,689 11,123,813
Long-term advances from Federal Home Loan Bank 162,500,000 185,000,000, 142,000,000
Repayment of long-term Federal Home Loan Bank advances (53,245,000) (95,400,000) (82,715,000)
Increase (decrease) in short-term Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings (23,045,000)  (165,728,000) 198,273,000
Increase (decrease) in securities sold under agreements to repurchase (100,000,000) 100,000,000 -
Increase (decrease) in federal funds purchased (20,000,0600) - 20,000,000
Increase (decrease) in other borrowings (2,609,059) (2,605,331) 2,243,717
Increase (decrease) in advance payments by borrowers for taxes and insurance 529,501 (4,384,104) 3,645,626
Common stock issued for acquisition 28,603,793 - -
Purchases of treasury stock (3,213,376) (1,708,663) (15,930,336)
Dividends paid (8,866,148) (7,699,035) (6,287,822)
Other, net 4,292,350 385,588 2,419,333
Net cash provided by financing activities 186,955,569 235,853,144 274,772,331
Net increase (decrease) in cash and due from banks 45,310,886 (40,120,202) 21,923,316
Cash and due from banlss at beginning of pericd 25,445,819 65,566,021 43,642,708
Cash and due from banks 2t end of period $70,756,705 $25,445,819 $65,566,021
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Interest and dividends received on loans and investments $173,143,469  $157,156,021 $128,538,299
Interest paid on deposits and borrowings 109,779,635 100,364,327 75,384,935
Income taxes paid 11,408,441 12,559,751 6,685,320
Income taxes refunded 1,454 141,693 196,429
Transfer of icans from held for investment to held for sale 165,583,373 23,743,254 21,283,119
Mortgage-backed securities swaps - 132,280,050 -
Transfer of loans from held for sale to held for investment - - 43,553,563

Refer to accompanying Notes to Audited Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Noves 1o Audited Conselidated Financial Statements
NOTE 1-Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Business The Corporation provides a wide range of financial services to individuals and businesses in
Wisconsin and the northern portion of Illinois through its wholly-owned subsidiary bank. The Corporation is
subject to competition from other financial institutions and markets. The Corporation, the Bank, and the Bank's
subsidiaries are alsc subject to the regulations of certain governmental agencies and undergo periodic examinations
by those regulatory authorities.

Basis of Financial Statement Presentation The accounting and reporting policies of the Corporation, the
Bank, and the Bank's subsidiaries conform to GAAP and to general practices within the financial services industry.
In preparing the financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities as of the date of the balance sheet and revenues and expenses for the
period. Actual resulis could differ from those estimates.

Principles of Conselidation The consolidated financial statements include the accounts and balances of
the Corporation, the Bank, and the Bank's wholly-owned subsidiaries. All significant intercompany accounts and
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Investment Securities, Morigage-Backed and Related Securities, and Stock Held for Regulatory
Purposes Investment securities and mortgage-backed and related securities, are classified in one of two categories
and accounted for as follows: (1) securities that the Corporation has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity
are classified as "held for investment” and reported at amortized cost; (2) securities not classified as "held for
investment” are classified as "available for sale" and reporied at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses
.excluded from eamings and reported as non-owner adjustments to equity, net of estimated income taxes.
Management determines the appropriate classification for its securities at the time of purchase. The specific
identification metheod is used to determine the cost of securities sold. The Corporation does not maintain a trading
account for investment securities or mortgage-backed and related securities. Stock of the FHLB is owned due to
regulatory requirements and is carried at cost.

Inrerest on Loarns Interest income is accrued on loan balances cutstanding. Accrued interest on impaired
loans is reversed when management determines that the collection of interest or principal is considered unlikely. In
general, this occurs when a loan is 90 days past due. Interest income is subsequently recognized only to the extent
cash payments are received. Loans are restored to accrual status when the obligation is brought current and the
ultimate collectibility of the total contractual principal and interest is no longer in doubt.

Discounts, Premiums, and Deferred Loon Fees and Costs Discounts and premiums on loans are
amortized cver the life of the related loans using a method that approximates the level-yield method. Loan
origination fees and certzin direct loan origination costs are deferred and amortized over the life of the related loans
as an adjustment of yield. Such fees and costs are amortized using a method that approximates the level-yield
method. -

Loans Held for Sale, Devivative Instruments, and Hedging Activities In January 2001, the Corporation
adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133, "Accounting for Derivative [nstruments and
Hedging Activities” ("SFAS 133"). This standard established new rules for the recognition and measurement of
derivatives and hedging activities and required all derivatives to be recorded in the Statement of Financial Condition
at fair value. The adoption of this standard did not have a material impact on the Corporation's financial condition
or results of operations.

The Corporation does not use derivative instruments such as futures, swaps, caps, floors, options, interest-
or principal-only strips, or similar financial insttuments to manage its operations. However, the Corporation does
use forward sales of mortgage-backed securities and other commitments of a similar nature tc manage exposure to
market risk in its "pipeline” of single-family residential loans intended for sale. Forward sales are derivative
instruments and are subject to the rules established by SFAS 133. In addition, commiunents to extend credit that
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relate to loans the Corporation intends to sell {“interest rate conunitments") are alse considered to be derivative
instruments under SFAS 133. The Corporation's policy is to offset substantially all of its exposure to market risk in
its pipeline of loans intended for sale against forward sales.

Single-family residential lcans held for sale that are matched against a forward sale are accounted for using
the "fair value hedge method”. Accordingly, the loans and the forward sales are valued on a quarterly basis and net
unrealized gains or losses are recorded in the current period's eamings. Loans held for sale that are not matched
against forward sales are carried at the lower of aggregate cost or market. Net unrealized losses on these Ioans, if
any, are recorded in the current period's earnings. In generzl, the Corporation does not maintain a material amount
of loans held for sale that are not matched against forward sales.

Interest rate commitments on loans the Corporation intends to sell, forward sales matched against such
commitments, and forward sales that are not matched against 2 loan or interest rate commitment are valued on a
quarterly basis. Net unrealized gains or losses associated with such derivative instruments are recorded in the
current period's eamings.

Net unrealized gains and/or losses on the Corporation's pipeline of loans intended for sale were not material
during any of the periods presented in the Corporation's Statements of Operations.

Securitizations and Sales of Morigage Losns The Corporation sells substantially all of the fixed-rate
single-family mortgage loans it criginates, including adjustable-rate loans that convert to fixed-rate loans. These
sales are accomplished through cash sales to FHLMC, FNMA, FHLB, and other third-pdrty investors, as well as
through securitizations with FHLMC and FNMA. In general, MBSs received from FHMLC or FNMA in exchange
for fixed-rate mortgage loans are sold immediately in the securities market. In general, the Corporation continues to
service these mortgage loans after they are sold (refer to "Mortgage Servicing Rights”, below).

From time to time the Corporation also exchanges adjustable-rate mortgage loans held for investment for
FHLMC or FNMA MBSs backed by the same loans. The resulting MBSs are classified in the Corporation's
Statement of Financial Conditicn as "mortgage-backed and related securities available for sale”. The Corperation
continues to service the loans underlying these securities after they are exchanged.

Sales or securitizations of mortgage loans through FHLMC and FNMA are generally done under terms that
do not provide for any recourse to the Corporation by the investor. However, in the case of sales to the FHLB, the
Corporation retains the credit risk on the underlying loans in exchange for a credit enhancement fee. Furthermore,
the Corporation scmetimes retains an exposure to credit risk on loans it securitizes into MBSs through FHLMC or
FNMA. In these instances, the Corporation records a recourse liability to provide for potential credit losses.
Because the loans involved in these transactions are similar to those in the Corporaticn's loans held for investment,
the review of the adequacy of the recourse liability is similar tc the review of the adequacy of the allowance for loan
losses (refer to "Allowance for Loan Losses”, below).

Merigage Servicing Rights Servicing mortgage loans includes such functions as collecting monthly
payments of principal and interest from borrowers, passing such payments through to third-party investors,
maintaining escrow accounts for taxes and insurance, and making such payments when they are due. When
necessary, servicing mortgage loans also includes functions related to the collection of delinquent principal and
interest payments, loan foreclosure proceedings, and disposition of foreclosed real estate. The Corporation generally
earns a servicing fee of 25 basis points or more on the outstanding loan balance for performing these services as well
as fees and interest income from ancillary sources such as delinquency charges and float.

The Corporation records originated mortgage servicing rights ("OMSR") as a component of gain on sale of
mortgage loans when the obligation to service such loans has been retained by the Corporation. The value recorded
for OMSR is based on the relative values of the servicing rights and the underlying loans without the servicing
rights. This value approximates the present value of the servicing fee adjusted for expected future costs to service
the leans, as well as income and fees expected to be received from anciliary sources, as previously described. The
carrying value of OMSR is amortized against service fee income over the estimated lives of the loans using the
income-forecast method. The Corporation also purchases mortgage servicing rights ("PMSR") from third-parties.
PMSR is recorded at cost and is also amiortized over the estimated lives of the loans using the income-forecast




method. The Corporation purchases or originates mortgage servicing rights on single-family residential mortgage
ioans only.

The value of OMSR and PMSR (collectively "mortgage servicing rights" or "MSRs") is subject to
impairment because of changes in loan prepayment expectations and in market discount rates used to value the
future cash flows associated with such assets. In valuing MSRs, the Corporation stratifies the loans by investor and
by the type of remittance program sponscred by the investor, if applicable. If, based on periodic evaluation, the
estimated fair value of the MSRs related to a particular stratum is determined to be less than its carrying value, a
valuation allowance is recorded against such siratum and against the Corporation's loan servicing fee income. A
valuation allowance is not recorded if the estimated fair value of a stratum exceeds its carrying value. Because of
this inconsistent treatment, the Corporation may be required to maintain a valuation allowance against MSRs even
though the estimated fair value of the Corporation's total MSR portfolic exceeds its carrying value in total. The
valuation adjustment is calculated using the current outstanding principal balance of the related loans, long-term
prepayment assumptions as provided by independent sources, an appropriate -discount rate as determined by
management, and other management assumptions related to future costs to service the loans, as well as ancillary
sources of income.

Allowance for Loan Losses The allowance for loan losses is composed of specific and general valuation
allowances. The Corporation establishes specific valuation allowances on loans it considers to be impaired. A loan
is considered impaired when the carrying amount of the loan exceeds the present value of the expected future cash
flows, discounted at the loan's original effective interest rate, or the fair value of the underlying collateral. A
specific valuation allowance is established for an amount equal to the impairment. General valuation allowances are
based on an evaluation of the various risk components that are inherent in the credit portfolie. The risk components
that are evaluated include past loan loss experience; the level of nen-performing and classified assets; cufrent
economic conditions; volume, growth, and composition of the loan portfolic; adverse situations that may affect
borrowers' ability to repay; the estimated value of any underlying collateral; peer group comparisons; regulatory
guidance; and other relevant factors.

The allowance is increased by provisions charged to earnings and reduced by charge-offs, net of recoveries.
Management may transfer amounts between specific and general valuation allowances as considered necessary. The
Corporation’s Board of Directors reviews the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses on a quarterly basis. The
allowance reflects management’s best estimate of the amount necessary to provide for the impairment of loans, as
well as other credit risks of the Corporation. The allowance is based on a risk model developed and implemented by
management and approved by the Corporation’s Board of Directors.

Real Estate Real estate acquired through foreclosure or deed in lieu of foreclosure and real estate subject
to redemption are recorded at the lower of cost or estimated fair market value, less estimated costs to sell. Costs
relating to the development and improvement of the property are capitalized. Income and expenses incurred in
connection with helding and operating the property are included in the Corporation's Consolidated Statements of
Operations.

Office Properties and Equipment Office properties and equipment are recorded at cost less accumulated
depreciation, which is provided over the estimated useful lives (five to forty years) of the respective assets on a
straight-line basis. The cost of leasehold improvements is being amortized on the straight-line basis over the lesser
of the term of the respective lease or the estimated economic life. When properties are retired or otherwise disposed
of, the related cost and accumulated depreciation are removed from the respective accounts and the resulting gain or
loss is recorded in income.

Goodwill end Intangible Assers From time-to-time the Corporation has acquired all or a portion of the
assets and liabilities of other financial institutions and has paid or received amounts for such assets and liabilities
that are not equal to their identifiable fair value. A portion of the resulting difference was amortized to earnings
over the estimated remaining lives of the deposit liabilities acquired in these transactions. Under new accounting
rules that will take effect in 2002, goodwill and intangible assets deemed to have indefinite lives will no longer be
amortized but will be subject to annual impairment tests in accordance with the new rules. Other identifiable
intangible assets which include deposit-based intangibles will continue to be amortized over their useful lives. For
additional discussicn, refer to "Pending Accounting Changes”, below.
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Securities Sold Under Agreements to Repurchgse The Corporation cccasionally enters into sales of
securities under agreements to repurchase with third-party broker-dealers (commonly referred to as "reverse-
repurchase agreements). These arrangements are treated as a financing, and the obligations to repurchase securities
sold are reflected as a liability in the Corporation's Consolidated Statement of Financial Condition. The securities
underlying the agreements remain in the asset accounts.

Securities sold under reverse repurchase agreements are physically delivered to the broker-dealers that
arranged the transactions. The broker-dealers may have sold, loaned, or otherwise disposed of such securities to
other parties in the normal course of their operations. The Corporation is exposed to risk in these types of
transactions in that changes in market prices, economic losses, or other factors could prevent or delay the counter-
party in the ransaction from returning the securities at the maturity of the agreement. The Corporation limits its
exposure to such risk by utilizing standard industry agreements, limiting coumnter-parties to large, reputable broker-
dealers, limiting the amount that can be borrowed from an individual counter-party, and limiting the duration of such
agreements (typically one to six months).

Income Taxes The Corporation, the Bank, and all but one of the Bank's subsidiaries file a consolidated
federal income tax return and separate or consolidated state income tax retumns, depending cn the state. Income
taxes are accounted for using the “asset and liability” method. Under this method, a deferred tax asset or liability is
determined based on the enacted tax rates that will be in effect when the differerices between the financial statement
carrying amounts and tax bases of existing assets and liabilities are expected to be reported in the Corporation's
income tax returns. The effect on deferred taxes of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that
includes the enactment date of the change. A valuation allowance is provided for any deferred tax asset for which it
is more likely than not that the asset will not be realized. Changes in valuation allowances are recorded as a
component of income.

Pension Costs and Qther Postrevirement Benefiss The Corporation's net periodic pension cost consists of
the expected cost of benefits earned by employees during the current period and an interest cost on the projected
benefit obligation, reduced by the earnings on assets held by the retirement plan, by amertization of transiticnal
assets over a period of 15 years (beginning in 1987), and by amortization of any actuarial gains and losses over the
estimated future service period of existing plan participants. The projected unit credit actuarial cost metheod is used
to determine expected pension costs. The Corperation's funding policy is to contribute amounts deductible for
federal income tax purposes.

The Corporation's cost of postretirement benefits, which consists of medical reimbursements for retirees, is
recognized during the years that the employees render the necessary service, adjusted for interest costs on the
projected benefit obligation and for the amortization of a transitional obligation over 20 years (beginning in 1993).
The projected unit credit actuarial cost method is used to detemmine expected postretirement benefit costs. The
Corporation's postretirement benefit plan is not cusrently funded.

Fair Values of Finoncisl Instruments and Off-Balance Sheet Financial Instruments The following
methods and assumptions were used by the Corporation in estimating fair value disclosures for financial insmuments
(refer to Note 12 for actual fair value amounts).

Cash and due from banks and imterest-bearing deposits with bamks The face amounts
presented in the Corporation’s Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition for cash and interest-bearing deposits
approximates fair value for such assets.

Imvestment securities and mortgage-backed and related securities Fair values for this group
of financial instruments are based on average quoted market prices obtained from independent pricing sources. If
quoted market prices are not available, fair values are based on quoted market prices of comparable instruments.

Loans held for sale or for investment The estimated fair values of loans held for sale or for
investment are determined using discounted cash flow techniques. Scheduled principal and interest payments are
adjusted for estimated future prepayments as provided by third-party market sources or as estimated by management
using historical prepayment experience. Discount rates used in the fair value computations are generally based on
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interest rates offered by the Corporation on similar loans as of the end of the period, adjusted for management's
estimate of differences in liquidity, credit risk, remaining term to maturity, etc.

The estimated fair value of loans held for sale also includes an adjustment for the estimated fair
value of unfunded interest rate commitments on loans the Corporation intends to sell, as well as forward
commitrments to sell loans. The methods used to value these commitments are described under "Off-Balance Sheet
Financial Instruments", below.

Federal Home Loan Bank stock FHLB stock held in excess of minimum requirements can be
returned to the FHLB for face value. Accordingly, the fair value of all FHLB stock is estimated to be equal to the
face amount presented in the Corporation's Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition.

Accrued interest receivable and payable The fair value of accrued interest is equal to the face
amount presented in the Corporation's Consolidated Statement of Financial Condition.

Mortgage servicing rights The fair value of MSRs is estimated using a discounted cash flow
calculation that applies discount rates considered reascnable by management to a schedule of both contractual and
estimated cash flows. Such cash flows are adjusted for loan prepayment rates deemed appropriate by management.

Deposit liabilities The fair values of demand deposit accounts (i.e., interest-bearing and non-
interest-bearing checking accounts and money market and regular savings accounts) are equal to the face amount
presented in Note 6. The fair value of fixed-rate time deposits is estimated using a discounted cash flow calculation
that applies interest rates offered by the Corporation as of the measurement date to a2 schedule of aggregate
contractual maturities of such deposits as of the same dates.

Federal Home Loan Bamk advamces The fair value of FHLB advances is estimated using a
discounted cash flow calculation that applies interest rates quoted by the FHLB as of the measurement date to a
schedule of aggregate contractual maturities of such liabilities as of the same date. The fair value of FHLB
advances excludes the effect of any prepayment penalties that may be incurred if the Corporation were to prepay any
of its term advances.

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase, federal funds purchased, and other
borrowings These funding sources consist principally of short-term or variable rate borrowings. As such, the
Corporation has estimated the fair value of these funding sources to approximate carrying value.

Advance payments by borrowers for taxes and insurance The fair value of advance payments
by borrowers for taxes and insurance is equal to the face amount presented in the Corporation's Consolidated
Statement of Financial Condition.

Off-balance-sheet fimamcial instruments. The Corporation has become a party to financial
instruments with off-balance-sheet risk in the normmal course of its business in order to meet the financing needs of
its customers and to reduce its own exposure to fluctuations in interest rates. These financial instruments include
commitments to extend credit, standby letters of credit, lines of credit, forward commitments to sell loans, and
financial guarantees.

Off-balance-sheet financial instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit and interest
rate risk in excess of the amounts recognized in the Statement of Financial Condition. In the event of non-
performance by the other party to a financial instrument, the Corporation's exposure to credit loss is represented by
the contractual amount of the instrument. The Corporation uses the same credit policies in granting commitments,
letters and lines of credit, and financial guarantees as it does for on-balance-sheet financial instruments.

The fair values of commitments to extend credit are determined using discounted cash flow
techniques, similar to that which is used for loans held for sale or for investment, as previously described.

The fair values of forward commitments to sell loans are based on average quoted market prices
obtained from independent pricing scurces. Other than credit enhancements on icans sold to the FHLB, the
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Corporation does not issue material amounts of financial guarantees or stand-by letters of credit. Management
believes that the Corporation's exposure to loss on such instruments is insigmificant, including its credit
enhancements with the FHLB. Accordingly, management believes the fair value of such financial instruments
approximates zero.

Stock-Based Compensation The Corporaticn records expense relative to stock-based compensation using
the "intrinsic value methed”. Since the intrinsic value of the Corporation’s stock opticns is generally "zerc" at the
time of the award, no expense is recorded. With respect to restricted stock awards, the intrinsic value is generally
equal to the fair value of the Corporation’s common stock cn the date of the initial contingent award, adjusted
retroactively for any changes in the value of the stock between the initial award date and the final measurement date.
Such value is amortized as expense over the measurement period of the award.

As permitted by GAAP, the Corporation has not adopted the "fair value method"” of expense recognition for
stock-based compensation awards. Rather, the effects of the fair value method on the Corporation's eamings have
been disclesed on a pro forma basis. Refer to Note 9 for the appropriate disclosures.

Earnings Per Shore Basic and diluted earnings per share data are based on the weighted-average number
of common shares outstanding during each period. Diluted earnings per share is further adjusted for potential
common shares that were dilutive and outstanding during the period. Potential common shares generally consist of
stock options outstanding under the incentive plans described in Note 9. The dilutive effect of potential common
shares is computed using the treasury steck method. All stock options are assumed to be 100% vested for purposes
of the earnings per share computations. The computation of earnings per share for the years ended December 31,
2001, 2000, and 1999, is as follows:

2001 2000 1999
Basic Diluted Basiie Diluted Basic Diluted

Net income $28,448,225  §28,448,225 $23,143,876 $23,143,876 $22,441,210 $22,441,210
Average common shares issued, net

of actual treasury shares 18,682,407 18,682,407 18,318,197 18,318,197 18,541,464 18,541,464
Potential common shares issued under

stock options (treasury stock methed) - 188,582 - 153,888 - 596,458
Average common shares and

potential common shares 18,682,407 18,870,989 18,318,197 18,472,085 18,541,464 19,137,922
Eamings per share $1.52 $1.51 $1.26 $1.25 $1.21 $1.17

Pending Accounting Change In June 2001 the FASB issued Statements of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 141, "Business Combinations" ("SFAS [41"), and No. 142, "Goedwill and Other Intangible Assets”
("SFAS 142"). Under the new rules, goodwill and intangible assets deemed to have indefinite lives will no longer
be amortized but will be subject to annual impairment tests in accordance with the new statements. Other
identifiable intangible assets will continue to be amortized over their useful lives, which includes deposit-based
intangibles. The new standards are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2001, and for
transactions completed after June 30, 2001.

The Corporation will adopt SFAS 141 and 142 in January 2002, although it has already adopted the new
accounting rules for its acquisition of ACB, which was completed on October 31, 2001 (refer to Note 14 for
additicnal discussion). The Corporation estimates that its annual amortization of intangible assets will decline by
approximately $875,000 in 2002 because of its adoption of the new accounting rules. However, this estimate
excludes any increase that will result from the Corporation's amortization of identifiable intangible assets (such as
deposit-based intangibles) recorded in connection with recent or pending transactions (refer to Notes 14 and 15 for
additional discussion).

Cash end Cash Equivalents For purposes of the Corporation’s Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows,
cash and cash equivalents consists sclely of cash on hand and non-interest-bearing deposits in banks (“cash and due
from banks"). The Corporation is required to maintain a certzin amount of cash on hand and non-interest-bearing
account balances at the Federal Reserve Bank of Minneapolis to meet specific reserve requirements. These
requirements approximated $37.3 million at December 31, 2001.

46

TR




Reclassification Certain 2000 and 1999 balances have been reclassified to conform with the 2001
presentatiomn.
NOTE 2—Investment Securities and Mortgage-Backed and Related Securities

Investment securities and mortgage-backed and related securities at December 31, 2001 and 2000, are
summarized as follows:

2001
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
Available for sale:
Investment securities $35,360,585 $100,915 - $35,461,500
Collateralized mortgage obligations 221,777,458 1,919,852 (8298,471) 223,398,839
Mortgage-backed securities 81,011,417 1,593,939 (24,283) 82,581,073
Total available for sale 338,149,460 3,614,706 (322,754) 341,441,412
Held for investment:
Collateralized morigage obligations 132,755,022 1,058,523 (147,711) 133,665,834
Mortgage-backed securities . 1,255,226 30,378 (14,094) 1,271,510
Total held for investment 134,010,248 1,088,901 (161,805) 134,937,344
Total investment and mortgage-related securities $472,159,708 34,703,607 ($484,559) $476,378,756
2000
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gaims Losses Vaolue
Available for sale:
Investment securities $828,182 - ($11,041) $817,141
Collateralized mortgage obligations 120,538,485 $183,445 (1,695,739) 119,026,191
Mortgage-backed securities 80,703,979 1,905,436 - 82,609,415
Mortgage-backed securities pledged against
reverse-repurchase agreements 126,348,194 3,253,109 - 129,601,303
Total available for sale 328,418,840 5,341,990 (1,706,780} 332,054,050
Held for investment:
Collaterzlized mortgage obligations 75,532,013 24,243 (847,973) 74,708,283
Mortgage-backed securities 1,766,840 11,862 (30,156) 1,748,546
Total held for invesiment 77,298,853 36,105 (878,129) 76,456,829
Total investment and mortgage-related securities $405,717,693 $5,378,095 ($2,584,909) $408,510,879

Accrued interest on investment securities was $437,022 and $13,562 at December 31, 2001 and 2000,
respectively. Accrued interest receivable on mortgage-backed and related securities was $2,688,617 and $3,542,405
at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Mortgage-backed securities consist of FHLMC and FNMA securities. As of December 31, 2001, the
Corporation had retained the credit risk on $38.9 million in FHLMC MBSs. Collateralized mortgage obligations
consist of securities backed by the aforementioned agency-backed securities or by whole-loans. As of December 31,
2001, approximately 88% of the Corporation’'s CMO portfolio consisted of securities backed by whole loans--all of
which were rated triple-A or its equivalent by the major credit-rating agencies. Approximately 35% of the
Corporation’s whole-loan CMQs consisted of loans on properties located in the state of California. No other
geographical location had a material concentration.

Realized gains on sales of investment securities were $13,199 in 2001. There were no realized gains or

losses on sales of investment securities in 2000 and 1999. There were no realized gains or losses on sales of
mortgage-backed and related securities during 2001, 2000, and 1999.
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NQTE 3-Loans Held for Investment

Loans held for investment at December 31 are summarized as follows:

2001 2000

First mortgage loans:

Single-family real estate $669,866,752 $719,670,790

Non-residential rea] estate 257,042,756 203,842,456

Multi-family real estate 252,311,829 236,003,146

Construction 83,536,805 77,215,742 7
Consumer loans:

Second mortgage and home equity 249,500,788 253,865,639

Automabile 75,009,273 64,841,201

Other consumer : 29,949,607 25,261,518
Education loans 201,183,233 197,579,143
Commercial business loans 38,735,556 195,266

Subtotal 1,857,136,600 1,778,474,901
Uneamed discount, premiums, and net deferred loan fees and costs 4,141,413 2,029,276
Allowance for loan losses (9,961,577) (8,027,526)

Total $1,851,316,436 $1,772,476,651

Accrued interest receivable on loans was $15,764,703 and $16,080,986 at December 31, 2001 and 20G0,
respectively.

Loans serviced for investors were $2.7 billion, $2.1 billion, and $1.9 billion at December 31, 2001, 2000,
and 1999, respectively. These loans are not reflected in the Corporation's Consolidated Statements of Financial
Condition. At December 31, 2001, the Corporation had retained the credit risk related to $1.2 billion in single-
family residential loans sold to the FHLB in exchange for 2 monthly credit enhancement fee.

At December 31, 2001 and 2000, loans on nom-accrual status were $5.7 million and $3.1 million,
respectively. The Corporation has no loans contractually past due ninety or more days for which interest is being
accrued.

With respect to single-family mortgage loans, it is the Corporation’s general policy to restrict lending to its
primary market areas in Wisconsin and Illinois as well as contiguous counties in lowa and Minnesota, though from
time-to-time the Corporation will purchase single-family loans originated cutside of its primary market area. It is
also the Corporation's general policy to limit an individual single-family mortgage loan to 8§0% of the appraised
value of the property securing the loan. The Corporation will occasionally lend mere than 80% of the appraised
value of the property, but generally will require the borrower to obtain private mortgage insurance on the portion of
the loan amount that exceeds 80% of the collateral. Single-family mortgage loans originated or purchased cutside of
the Corporation’s primary market area were $237.4 million and $172.1 million at December 31, 2001 and 2000,
respectively.

With respect to multi-family and non-residential real estate loans, it is the Corporation's policy to restrict its
lending ares to loans secured by property located within a 300-mile radius of La Crosse, to include all or a portion of
the states of Wisconsin, Nebraska, Illinois, lowa, and Minnesots, although in the past the Corporation originated
multi-family and non-residential real estate loans cutside of this area. It is also the Corporation’s general policy to
limit loans om multi-family residential complexes, retail shopping centers, office buildings, and multi-tenant
industrial buildings to 80%. of the appraised value of the property securing the loan. Loams on other types of
commercial properties, such as nursing hornes, hotels/motels, churches, and single-tenant industrial buildings are
limited to 75% or less of the appraised value of the property securing the loan. In addition, it is the Corporation's
policy that no more than 20% of its multi-family and non-residential rea! estate loans comsist of this second category
of loans. Multi-family and non-residential real estate loans originated or purchased outside of the Corporation's
market area were $22.6 million and $23.1 million, at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

With respect to consumer and commercial business loans, it is the Corporation’s policy that such loans be
supported primarily by the borrower's ability to repay the loan and secondarily by the value of the collateral securing
the loam, if any. Furthermore, in the case of second mortgages and home equity loans, the Corporation does not
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generally allow the sum of the first and second mortgage amounts 1o exceed 100% of the appraised value of the
property securing the loan. Education loans are substantially guaranteed by the U.S. government,

A summary of the activity in the allowance for loan [osses is as follows:

2001 2000 1999
Balance at beginning of period $8,027,526 $7,623,526 $7,623,526
Provision charged to expense 1,763,391 1,008,780 387,021
Loans charged-off (1,189,383) (664,765) (433,744)
Recoveries 98,026 59,985 46,723
Charge-offs, net (1,091,357) (604,780) (387,021)
Purchased allowances 1,262,017 - -
Balance at end of period $9,961,577 $8,027,526 $7,623,526

NOTE 4--Meortgage Servicing Rights

A summary of the activity in mortgage servicing rights is as follows:

Purchased Originated Valuation

MSR MSR Allowance Total
Balance at December 31, 1998 $3,319,073 $23,907,322 ($6,122,936) $21,103,459
Originated servicing 5,333,684 5,333,684
Amortization charged to eamings (1,090,449) (7,075,006) (8,165,455)
Valuation adjustments charged to eamnings 3,456,293 3,456,293
Balance at December 31, 1999 2,228,624 22,166,000 (2,666,643) 21,727,981
Purchased servicing 1,865,307 1,865,307
Originated servicing 3,293,776 3,293,776
Amortization charged to earmnings (437,834) _(3,168,758) (3,606,592)
Balance at December 31, 20600 3,656,097 22,291,018 (2,666,643) 23,280,472
Purchased servicing 1,100,197 1,100,197
Originated servicing 20,183,936 20,183,936
Originated servicing obtained through acquisition 1,248,285 1,248,285
Amortization charged to eamings (1,669,661) (14,301,103) (15,970,764)
Valuation adjustments charged to eamings 66,643 66,643
Balance at December 31, 2001 $3,086,633 $29,422,136 ($2,600,000) $29,908,769

NOTE 5-Office Properties and Equipment

Office properties and equipment at December 31 are summarized as follows:

2001 2000

Office buildings and improvements $19,842,841 $19,200,399
Furniture and equipment 22,398,647 20,569,229
Leasehold improvements 7,152,627 5,924,590
Land and improvements 4,429,865 4,359,384
Property acquired for expansion 332,864 332,864
Construction in progress 2,963,335 1,784,016
Subiotal 57,120,179 52,200,482
Less allowances for depreciation and amortization 26,466,869 25,419,472
Total $30,653,310 $26,781,010

The Corporation rents office space and land under operating leases at certain of its locations. These leases
have terms expiring between 2001 and 2020 and provide for renewals subject to escalation clauses. Rental expense
was $2,217,502, $1,862,905, and $1,661,345 for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000, and 1999, respectively.




NOTE 6—-Deposit Liabilities

Deposit liabilities at December 31 are summmarized as follows:

2001 2080
Checking accounts:

Non-interest-bearing $285,591,265 $161,601,896
[nterest-bearing 101,679,255 80,593,590
Money market accounts 214,604,134 154,399,192
Regular savings accounts : 141,547,813 103,661,933
Variable-rate IRA accounts 4,017,132 2,827,417

Time deposits maturing within...
Three months 500,198,795 169,512,703
Four to six months 200,025,611 213,218,098
Seven to twelve months 189,677,794 465,163,919
Thirteen to twenty-four months 217,244,381 337,981,625
Twenty-five to thirty-six months 146,742,749 7,770,114
Thirty-seven to forty-eight months 24,149,896 1,562,563
Forty-nine to sixty months 3,775,222 959,115
Total time deposits 1,281,814,448 1,196,168,136
Total $2,029,254,047 $1,699,252,162

Accrued interest payable on deposit liabilities was $2,029,395 and $1,198,471 at December 31, 2001 and
2000, respectively. Time deposits include $152.3 million and $120.1 million of certificates in denominations of
$100,000 or more at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively. Time deposits also include $22.3 million and $40.3
million in deposits obtained through third-party brokers at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

Included in non-interest-bearing checking accounts at December 31, 2001 and 2000, were $104.8 million
and $16.9 million, respectively, which represented amounts held in custody for third-party investors in loans
serviced by the Corporation.

Interest expense on deposit liabilities for the year ended December 31 is summarized as follows:

2001 2000 1999

Checking accounts $573,484 $571,473 $558,393
Money market savings accounts 5,538,599 6,577,913 6,586,892
Regular savings 1,528,534 1,619,063 1,740,722
Time deposits 75,943,992 64,819,276 51,661,026
Total $83,584,616 $73,587,725 $60,547,033

NQTE 7--Federal Home Loan Bank Advances 2nd All Other Borrowings

Federal Home Loan Bank advances and all other borrowings at December 31 are summarized as follows:

2001 2000

Welghted Weighted
Balamee  Average Rate Balamge  Average Rate

Federal Home Loan Bank advances maturing in... )
2001 - - $78,245,000 5.82%
2002 $66,815,000 3.75% 13,415,000 5.32
2003 170,600,000 5.32 116,000,000 5.97
2004 125,000,000 5.09 75,000,000 5.60
2005 717,500,000 5.58 50,600,000 6.18
2008 27,500,600 4.95 25,000,000 495
Open line of credit - - 10,545,000 6.74
Total FHLEB advances 467,415,000 5.05 368,205,000 5.82
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase - - 100,000,000 6.68
Federal funds purchased - - 20,600,000 6.81
Other borrowings 32,311 9.00 2,641,370 7.75
Total $467,447,311 5.05% $490,846,370 6.05%

Accrued interest payzble on FHLB advances and all other borrowings was $2,034,345 and $2,849,711 at
December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively.
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The Corporation's borrowings at the FHLB are limited to the lesser of 35% of total assets or 60% of the
bock value of certain mortgage loans and 85% to 90% of the market value of certain mortgage-backed and related
securities. Ingerest on the open line of credit is paid monthly at approximately 45 basis points above the FHLB's
daily investment deposit rate or approximately 25 basis points above the federal funds rate. As of December 31,
2001, $76.3 million, $75.0 million, $52.5 million, and $27.5 million of the advances maturing in the years 2003,
2004, 2005, and 2008, respectively, consist of borrowings that are redeemable quarterly at the option of the FHLB.

The Corporaticn has lines of credit with three financial institutions. These lines, which amount to $60.0
million in the aggregate, permit the overnight purchase of federal funds. There were no amounts outstanding under
these lines as of December 31, 2001. The Corporation alsc has a $5.0 million line of credit with a fourth financial
institution under which there was no amount outstanding as of December 31, 2001. The interest rate on borrowings
under this line is determined on a periodic basis using an index based on the London Inter-Bank Offered Rate
("LIBOR"). The Corporation has pledged all issued and outstanding capital steck of the Bank as collateral for this
line of credit.

NOTE 8~Income Taxes

Federal and state income tax expense for the years ended December 31 is summarized as follows:

2001 2000 1999
Current:

Federal $12,819,735 $12,689,599 $10,558,903
State 128,750 104,230 159,477
Total current 12,948,485 12,793,829 10,718,380

Deferred:
. Federal 2,427,000 (24,000) 1,629,600
State 23,600 - (180,000)
Total deferred 2,450,000 (24,000) 1,449,000
Total $15,398,485 $12,769,829 $12,167,380

The significant components of the Corperation's deferred tax expense for the years ended December 31 are
summarized as follows:

2001 2080 1999

Mortgage servicing rights $3,523,085 $200,744 $1,614,810
Office properties and equipment depreciation 118,544 (17,036) (21,606)
Asset valuation allowances (76,492) (43,871) 652,459
Deferred loan fees 68,944 540,898 139,504
Provision for loan and rezl estate losses, net (442,792) (183,455) (259,994)
Deferred compensation (669,402) (789,847) (323,650)
FHLB stock dividends 719,313 783,665 -
Purchase acquisition adjustments (402,148) (46,712) (98,467)
Qther (389,052) (468,386) (254,416)
Total deferred : $2,450,0600 ($24,000) $1,449,000

The income tax provision differs from the provision computed at the federal statutory corporate tax rate for
the years ended December 31 as follows: :

2001 2000 1999

Income taxes at federal statutory of 35% $15,346,348 $12,569,797 $12,113,007
State income tax (benefit) net of federal income tax effect 98,637 67,749 (13,341)
Other . (46,500) 132,283 67,714
Income tax provision $15,398,485 312,769,829 $12,167,380
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The significant components of the Corporation’s deferred tax assets and liabilities as of December 31, are
summearized as follows:-

2001 2080
Deferred tax assets:
Loan and real estate loss allowances $4,072,692 $3,102,554
Deferred compensation 3,394,793 2,724,252
Asset valuation allowances 383,825 307,205
State tax loss carryforwards, net 2,157,092 1,618,514
Other 262,766 226,744
Total deferred tax assets 10,271,168 7,979,269
Valuation allowance (670,868) (631,843)
Adjusted deferred tax assets 9,600,300 7,347,426
Deferred tax ligbilities:

Mortgage servicing rights 9,357,079 5,294,592
Securities valuation allowance 1,152,183 1,272,324
Office properties and equipment depreciation 461,249 256,575
Deferred loan fees 1,111,289 1,041,909
FHLB stock dividends 1,802,054 1,046,541
Purchase acquisition adjustments 680,505 97,352
Investment in unconsolidated parinerships 100,749 97,474
Other 366,250 295,186
Total deferved tax liabilities 15,031,358 9,401,953
Net deferved tax liabilities (85,431,058) {$2,054,527)

The Bank qualifies under provisions of the IRC that prior to 1996 permitted it to deduct from taxable
income an allowance for bad debts that generally exceeded losses charged to income for financial reporting
purposes. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes has been made for $21.1 million of retained income at
December 31, 2001. If in the future the Bank no longer qualifies as a bank for tax purposes, income taxes may be
imposed at the then-applicable rates. If income taxes had been provided, the deferred tax liability would have been
approximately $8.5 million. At December 31, 2001, the Corporation had $37.2 million in state net operating loss
carryforwards that expire between 2004 and 2016.

NOTE 9-Employee Benefit Plans

Pension Plax The Corporation has established a pension plan for the benefit of full-time employees that
have at least ome year of service and have attained the age of 20. Benefits under the plan are based on the
employee's years of service and compensation during the years immediately preceding retirement. The following
table summarizes the components of pension benefit obligation and plan assets, the funded status of the plan, the
amount recognized in the Corporation's consolidated financial statements, and the weighted-average assumptions for
the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000.
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2001 2000

Reconciliation of benefit obligation:

Benefit obligation at beginning of year ) $10,491,473 $8,663,253
Service costs 681,215 587,669
Interest costs 791,813 696,613
Plan amendment 50,395 -
Actuarial loss 602,524 850,200
Benefit payments (280,375) (306,262)
Benefit obligation at end of year $12,337,045 $10,491,473
Reconciliation of fair value of plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year: $10,986,168 $10,188,484
Actual retum on plan assets (667,544) 781,848
Employer contributions - 322,098
Benefit payments (280,375) (306,262)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year $10,038,249 $10,986,168
Funded status:
Funding shorifall (excess) at end of year $2,298,796 ($494,695)
Unrecognized prior service cost (7,656) 64,913
Unrecognized net (gain) loss (1,422,223) 822,106
Accrued pension expense $868,917 $392,324
Components of net periodic benefit cost:
Service costs $681,215 $587,669
Interest costs 791,813 696,613
Expected return on plan assets (974,261) (921,668)
Armortization of transition asset - (15,474)
Amgrtization of prier service costs (22,174) (26,686}
Recognized actuarial loss - (33,677)
Net periodic benefit cost $476,593 $286,777
Weighted-average assumptions:
Discount rate 7.25% 7.50%
Expected retumn on plan assets 9.00% 9.00%
Rate of conpensation increase 5.50% 5.50%

Postretirermens Einployee Bemefits The Corporation provides certain health care insurance benefiis to
retired employees. Substantially all of the employees of the Corporation may become eligible for these benefits if
they reach normal retirement age while working for the Corporation. The following table summarizes the
components of postretirement benefit obligation and funded status, as well as the amounts recognized in the
Corporation's consclidated financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000.

2001 2080
Reconciliation of benefit obligation:
] Benefit obligation at beginning of year $2,191,915 $1,930,947
‘ Service costs 123,921 79,158
Interest costs 205,598 156,931
Actuarial loss 589,450 137,279
Benefit payments (97,128} (112,400
Benefit obligation at end of year $3,013,756 $2,191,915
e Funded status:
i » Funding shortfall at end of year $3,013,756 32,191,915
— Unrecognized transition asset (376,529 (410,759)
b Unrecognized net loss , (923,068) (362,174)
[ ] Accrued post-retirernent benefit expense 31,714,159 $1,418,982
B Components of net periodic benefit cost:
Service costs $123,921 §79,158
Interest costs 205,598 156,931
Amortization of transition obligation 34,230 34,230
Recognized actuarial loss 28,556 4,768
Net periedic benefit cost ] $392,305 $275,087
Weighted-average assumptions:
Discount rate 7.25% 7.50%
Rate of compensation increase 5.50% 5.50%
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The assumed rate of increase in the per capita cost of covered benefits was approximately 7% for 2001,
declining to approximately 6% in 2004 and thereafter. This assumpticn has a significant effect on the amounts
reported in the Corporation's consolidated financial statements. For example, a one percentage point increase in the
assumed trend rate would increase the accumulated posiretiremnent benefit obligation as of December 31, 2001, by
approximately $870,000 and the aggregate service and interest cost components of postretirement benefit expense
for 200! by approximately $127,000. A one percentage point decline would decrease these amounts by
approximately $501,000 and $68,000, respectively.

Savings Plans The Corporation maintains a 401(k) savings plan for the benefit of substantially ail of its
employees. Employees may contribute up to 2 certzin percentage of their compensation to the pian and the
Corporation will match their contributions within certain limits. In addition, the employee may also receive
discretionary profit sharing contributions from the Corporation. The Corporation provided matching and
discretionary contributions of approximately $790,000, $551,000, and $490,000 during the years ended
December 31, 2001, 2000, and 1999, respectively.

Emplopee Stock Qwnership Plom The Corporation makes annual discretionary contributions to an
Employee Stock Ownership Program ("ESCP") for the benmefit of substantially all of its employees. All
contributions are recorded as compensation expense on the books of the Corporation at the time they are made. The
Corporation recorded approximately $482,000, $373,000, and $379,000 in ESOP-related compensation expense
during the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000, and 1999, respectively.

Supplemental Pension Plan The Corporation makes annual contributions to 2 supplemental pension plan
for certain members of management. All contributions are recorded as compensation expense on the books of the
Corporation at the time they are made. The Corporation recorded approximately $285,000, $238,000, and $346,000
in such expense during the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000, and 1999, respectively.

Stock Incentive Plans The Corporation has adopted a stock incentive plan designed to attract and retain
qualified personnel in key management positions. The plan provides for the grant of stock options, restricted stock,
and stock appreciation rights. In general, stock options granted under the plan are exercisable at a price equal ¢o the
fair value of the stoclk on the date of the grant. Furthermore, the options are subject to three- to five-year graded
vesting requirements and a maximum exercise period of ten years. The plan currently authorizes the issuance of
approximately 4.5 million shares, of which 734,000 shares were unallocated as of December 31, 2001. Activity in
these stock incentive plans for each of the three years ended December 31, 2001, 2000, and 1999, is swmmarized as
follows:

2001 2020 1999
Weighted Weighted Welghted
Average Averoge Averaoge
Number Price  Number Price Number Price
Stock options outstanding at beginning of period 741,770 $10.24 734,060 $9.34 1,685,535 $5.42
Stock options granted 380,550 14.17 95,000 11.60 76,000 14.01
Stock options exercised (107,638) 3.6) (84,290) 330 (1,012,475) Ja2
Stock options forfeited (17,880) 13.80 (3,000) 14.75 (15,000) 13
Stock options outstanding at end of pericd 996,802 $12.39 741,770 $10.24 734,060 $9.34
Fully-vested options outstanding at end of peried 498,420 $11.03 569,770 $9.59 457,895 $6.20

The following table presents the stock options outstanding as of December 31, 2001, by range of exercise

prices.
Welghted Avg Weighted Avg
: Stock Options Remalning Esereise
Ronge of Exercise Prices Qutstanding Term Price
$0.00 - $5.00 68,252 0.9 years $2.57
5.01-10.00 98,500 3.6 years 5.55
10.01 - 15.00 799,050 7.8 years 13.95
15.01 - 20.00 31,000 9.2 years 15.48

Total Options Cutstanding 996,802 7.0 vears $12.3¢




During the vears ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, 68,000 shares and 15,000 shares of restricted stock
were granted at weighted-average fair values of $14.50 and $11.00, respectively. In 1999, no shares of restricted
stock were granted.

The Corporation has also adopted a stock incentive plan designed to attract and retain qualified non-
employee directors for the Corporation and its subsidiaries. Under the plan each director receives options to
purchase 8,800 shares upon election or re-election to the Board of Directors. In general, the stock options are
exercisable at a price at least equal to the fair value of the stock on the date of grant and are fully-vested on the date
of the grant. These plans have authorized the issuance of 673,000 shares, of which 145,000 shares were unallocated
as of December 31, 2001. Activity in these stock incentive plans for each of the three years ended December 31,
2001, 2000, and 1999 is summarized as follows:

2001 2000 1999
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Number Price Number Price Number Price
Stock options outstanding at beginning of period 138,796 $10.42 131,996 $9.09 218,966 $5.95
Stock options granted 26,400 14.79 26,400 11.75 26,400 14.88
Stock options exercised (8,800) 1.36 (19,600) 3.25 (113,370) 4.37
Stock options outstanding at end of period 156,396 $11.67 138,796 $10.42 131,996 $9.09

The following table presenis the stock options outstanding as of December 31, 2001, by range of exercise

prices.
Weighted Avg Weighted Avg
) Stock Options Remajning Exerelse
Range of Exercise Prices Outstanding Term Price
$0.00 - 85.00 17,596 1.8 years $4.77
5.01-10.00 42,000 4.3 years 7.49
10.01 - 15.00 70,400 8.5 years 13.67
"15.01 - 20.00 26,400 6.3 years 17.59
Total Options Qutstanding 156,396 6.2 years $11.67

As described in Note 1, the Corporation has elected to provide pro forma disclosure of the effects of its
stock incentive plans. If the Corporation had accounted for its stock incentive plans using the fair value method, the
Corporation's pro forma net income would have been $27.5 million, $22.7 million, and $21.8 million during the
years ended December 31, 2001, 2000, and 1999, respectively. Pro forma diluted eamings per share would have
been $1.46, $1.23, and $1.14 and pro forma basic earnings per share would have been $1.47, $1.24, and $1.18
during the same periods, respectively.

The weighted-average fair value of the options granted in 2001, 2000, and 1999, were $4.26, $3.91, and
$5.23, respectively. The fair values of these options were estimated as of the dates they were granted using 2 Black-
Scholes option-pricing model. Weighted-average assumptions for 2001 were 4.6% risk-free interest rate, 3.2%
dividend yield, 30% volatility, and a seven-year expected life. Weighted-average assumptions for 2000 were 6.0%
risk-free interest rate, 3.0% dividend yield, 35% volatility, and a seven-year expected life. Weighted-average
assumptions for 1999 were 5.5% risk-free interest rate, 2.4% dividend yield, 35% volatility, and a seven-year
expected life.

NOTE 180—Commitmemnts and Contingencies

Legal Proceedings The Corporation and its subsidiaries are engaged in various routine legal proceedings
occurring in the ordinary course of business, which in the aggregate are believed by management to be immaterial to
the consclidated financial condition of the Corporation.

Orher Commitments and Contingencies At December 31, 2001, the Corporation had commitments to
originate mortgage loans at market terms aggregating approximately $32.5 million, which expire on various dates in
2002. At December 31, 2001, the Corporation also had commitments to fund $46.7 million in additional proceeds
on construction loans. As of the same date the Corporation had approximately $4.4 million in commitments
outstanding under standby letters of credit and financial guarantees, $23.4 million in commitments outstanding
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under unused home equity lines of credit, and $3.7 million and $5.5 million under comumnercial real estate lines and
commescial business lines of credit, respectively. Furthermore, the Corporation had commitments to sell
approximately $73.1 million in mortgage loans to FHLMC, FNMA, and the FHLB at various dates in 2002.

At December 31, 2001, the Corporation had retained the credit risk related to $1.2 billion in single-family
residential loans sold to the FHLB in exchange for a monthly credit enhancement fee.

NOTE 11-Stockholders’ Equity

Preferred Stock The Corporation is authorized to issue up to 5,000,000 shares of preferred stock, §.10 par
value per share, although no such stock was outstanding at December 31, 2001. The Board of Directors of the
Corperation is authorized to establish the voting powers, designations, preferences, or other special rights of such
shares and the qualifications, limitations, and restrictions thereof. The preferred stock may be issued in distinctly
designated series, may be convertible to common stoclk, and may rank prior to the common stock in dividend rights,
liquidation preferences, or both.

Sharekolders® Rights Plan The Corporation's Board of Directors has adopted a shareholders' rights plan
(the "Rights Plan"). Under the terms of the Riglhts Plan, the Board of Directors declared a dividend of one preferred
share purchase right on each outstanding share of comumon stock of the Corporation. However, the rights can only
be exercised if a person or group acquires 20% or more of the conumon stock or announces a tender or exchange
offer that would result in a 20% or greater position in the stock. Initially, each right will entitle shareholders to buy
one one-hundredth share of the Corporation's preferred stock at a price of $50.00, subject to adjustment. Under
cerfain circumstances, including the acquisition of beneficial ownership of 25% or more of the Corporation's
common stock, helders of the Corporation’s corumon stock, other than the acquirer, will be entitled 1o exercise the
rights to purchase common stock from the Corporation having a value equal to two times the exercise price of the
right. If the Corporation is acquired in a merger, share exchange, or other business combination in which the
Corporation is not the surviver, after a person or group's acquisition of beneficial ownership of 20% or more of the
common stock, rights holders will be entitled to purchase the acquirer's shares at a similar discount. Issuance of the
rights has no dilutive effect, will not affect reported earnings per share, is not taxable to the Corporation or its
shareholders, and will not change the way in which the Corporation's shares are raded. The rights expire in 2005.

Stocl Repurchose Plans and Treasury Stock In 2000, 1999, and 1997 the Corporation's Board of
Directors authorized the repurchase of up to 913,554, 905,248, and 919,052 shares of the Corporation's outstanding
common stock, respectively. Under the plans, repurchases may be made from time-to-time in the open market
during the ensuing twelve months as conditions permit (the 1997 Plan was extended for an additional twelve months
in January 1998 and again in January 1999; the 1999 Plan was extended for an additionz! twelve months in April
2000 and again in April 2001; and the 2000 Plan was extended for an additional twelve months in April 2001).
Repurchased shares are held as treasury stock and are available for general corporate purposes.

During 2001, 2000, and 1999, the Corporation repurchased 228,800, 143,904, and 1,060,990 shares under
the 2000, 1999 and 1997 Plans at an average cost of $14.04, 311.87, and $15.01 per share, respectively. As of
December 31, 2001, no shares remained to be purchased under the 1997 and 1999 Plams, and 904,260 shares
remained under the 2000 Plan.

During 2601, 2600, and 1999 the Corporation reissued 1,825,132, 85,807, and 1,103,550 shares of common
stock out of treasury stock, respectively. These shares had an average cost basis of $10.05, $11.31, and $12.93 per
share, respectively. In general, these shares were issued upon the exercise of stock options by, or the issuance of
restricted stock to, employees and directors of the Corporation. In addition, during 2001, 1,685,126 of these shares,
plus 250,178 previously unissued shares, were issued in connection with the acquisition of ACB.

Dividend Restrictions The ability of the Corporation to pay dividends will depend primarily upon the
receipt of dividends from the Bank. The Bank may not declare or pay a cash dividend without regulatory approval if
suck dividend would cause its net capital to be reduced below the current risk-based capital requirements imposed
by the OTS. The Bank is a "Tier 1* association under current OTS regulations. As such, the Bank's dividend
payments are limited to 100% of its net income during the year plus an amount that would reduce by one-half its
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excess risk-based regulatory capital as of the beginning of the year, or 75% of its net income during the most recent
four-quarter period, whichever is greater.

Regulatory Caplial Reguirements Financial institutions such as the Bank are subject to minimum
regulatory capital requirements as specified in federal banking law and supporting regulations. Failure of 2 financial
institution to meet such requirements may subject the institution to certain mandatory--and possibly discretionary--
actions on the part of its regulators (referred to as "prompt corrective actions"). Such actions, if undertaken, could
severely restrict the activities of the institution. During each of the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, the
Banl's regulatory capital was sufficient under the prompt corrective action provisions of the federal banking law and
supporting regulations. Accordingly, the Banl is not subject to prompt corrective actions by its regulators.

The following table summarizes the Bank's current regulatory capital in both percentage and dollar terms as
of December 31, 2001 and 2000. It also summarizes the minimum capital levels that must be maintained by the
Bank for it to be classified as "adequately capitalized" and "well capitalized” under the prompt corrective action
provisions of federal banking law and supporting regulations. As indicated in the table, the Bank is "well
capitalized” for regulatory capital purposes.

Minimum Requirements

to be Clossified as...
Adequately Well

December 31, 200 Capitalized Capitalized Actual
Tier 1 leverage ratio 4.0% 5.0% 5.97%
Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio 4.0% 6.0% 10.69%
Total risk-based capital ratio 8.0% 10.0% 11.33%
Tier 1 leverage ratio capital $108,232,080 $135,2%0,000 $161,526,000
Tier 1 risk-based capital 60,457,000 90,685,000 161,526,000
Total risk-based capital 120,914,000 151,142,000 171,172,000
December 31, 2800

Tier 1 leverage ratio 4.0% 5.0% 5.28%
Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio 4.0% 6.0% 9.71%
Total risk-based capital ratio 8.0% 10.0% 10.29%
Tier 1 leverage ratio capital $95,288,000 $119,111,000 $125,726,000
Tier | risk-based capital 51,816,000 77,724,000 125,726,000
Total risk-based capital 103,632,000 129,540,600 133,325,600
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NOTE 12--Fair Values of Financial Instruments

Fair values of financial instruments as of December 31 are as follows:

2001 2000
Carrying Value Fair Value Carrying Value Fair Value

Financial assets:
Cash and due from banks $70,756,705 $70,756,705 $25,445819 $25,445,819
Interest-bearing deposits with banks 98,233,160 98,233,160 13,054,493 13,054,493
Investment securities available for sale 35,461,500 35,461,500 817,141 817,141
Mortgage-backed and related securities:

Available for sale 305,979,912 305,979,912 331,236,909 331,236,909

Held for investment 134,010,248 134,937,344 77,298,853 76,456,829
Loans held for sale 56,109,442 56,109,442 22,973,887 23,400,000
Loans held for investraent, gross 1,861,278,013 1,877,400,000 1,780,504,177 1,773,300,000
Federal Home Loan Bank stock 28,063,300 28,063,300 25,568,100 25,568,100
Accrued interest receivable 19,016,429 19,016,429 19,701,004 19,701,004
Mortgage servicing rights 29,908,769 34,600,000 23,280,472 23,280,472
Financial liabilities:
Deposit liabilities $2,029,254,047 $2,044,600,000 $1,699,252,162 $1,707,500,000
Federal Home Loan Bank advances and all other borrowings 467,447,311 484,500,000 490,846,370 488,800,000
Advance payments by borrowers for taxes and insurance 1,640,142 1,640,142 1,023,712 1,023,712
Accrued interest payable 4,063,741 4,063,741 4,047,875 4,047,875

Refer to Note 1 for the methods and assumptions used by the Corporation in estimating the fair value of
financial instruments. The carrying value shown for loans held for investment excludes the impact of the
Corporation's allowance for loan losses

NQOTE 13--Segment Information

Organizational Structure In 2001, the Corporation completed a reorganization along functional lines
rather than product lines. The principal components of the Corporation’s organization now consist of a Cominunity
Banking Group, which has primary responsibility for the sale and delivery of all the Corporation’s products and
services, and a Corporate Administration and Operations Group, which has primary responsibility for preduct
support, data and technology management, and property management. The Corporation alsc has a Commercial Real
Estate Lending Division, which is responsible for the origination and servicing of commercial real estate loans, a
Finance and Treasury Division, and a Human Resources Division. Each group or division is led by an executive
officer that reports directly to the President of the Corporation.

Despite its reorganization along functional rather than product lines, the Corporation continues to account
for its operations along product lines. The Corporation tracks profitability in four major areas: (i) residential
lending, (ii) commercial real estate lending, (iii) consumer lending, and (iv) investment and morigage-related
securities. Residential lending is divided into two profit centers for segment reporting purposes: (i) a mortgage
banking profit center that is responsible for loan origination, sales of loans in the secondary market, and servicing of
residential loans, and (i) a residential loan portfolic that consists of loans held by the Corporation for investment
purposes (loans held for sale are included in the mortgage banking profit center). This profit center also includes
mortgage-backed securities that are collateralized by loans that were originated by the Corporation. Commercial
real estate lending consists of the Corporation'’s portfolio of multi-family and non-residential mortgage loans, as well
as functions related to the corigination and servicing of such loans. Consumer lending is divided into two profit
centers for segment reporting purposes: (i) a consumer lending portfolio, which consists of the Corporation's second
mortgage, automobile, and other consumer installment loans, as well as functions related to the origination and
servicing of such loans, and (ii) an education loan portfolio, which also includes functions related to the origination
and servicing of the loans. Finally, the Corporation's investment and morigage-related securities portfolio is
considered a profit center for segment reporting purposes. However, mortgage-backed securities collateralized by
loans originated by the Corporation are included in the residential loan profit center, rather than the investment and
mortgage-related securities portfolio.
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The Corporation's extensive branch network, which delivers checking, savings, certificates of deposit and
cther financial products and services to customers, is considered a support department for segment reporting
purposes, as more fully described in @ subsequent paragraph.

In October 2001, the Corporation completed the acquisition of American Community Bankshares, Inc.
("ACB"). In addition, in January 2002 the Corporation anncunced an agreement to purchase three branch offices in
Rochester, Minnesota, from another financial institution. This purchase includes the customer loans and deposits at
those branches. In addition to offering products and services similar to the Corporation’s existing product lines,
these institutions also deliver commercial loan and deposit products and services to business customers. This
represents a new line of business for the Corporation and a new reportable segment. The financial resulis of this
new line of business have not been separately reported in 2001 due to continuing efforts to design these products on
the Corporation’s systems, as well as efforts to complete the integration of the operations of ACB and the three
Rochester branches. Refer to Notes 14 and 15 for additional discussion.

Measurement of Segment Profie (Loss) Management evaluates the after-tax performance of the
Corporation's profit centers as if each center were a separate entity--each with its own earning assets, actual and/or
allocated non-earning assets, and allocated funding resources. Each profit center has its own interest income, non-
interest income, and non-interest expense as captured by the Corporation's accounting systems. Interest expense is
allocated to each profit center according to its use of the Corporation's funding sources, which consist primarily of
deposit liabilities, FHLE advances, and equity. In general, all funding sources are allocated proportionately to each
profit center. However, in certain instances specific liabilities may be matched against specific assets of profit
centers.

The net cost of operating the Corporation's support departments is allocated to the Corporation's profit
centers and to the banking network using a variety of methods deemed appropriate by management. In general,
these net costs are included in the non-interest expense of each profit center, t¢ include the branch network. In

- addition, certain allocations of revenues and expenses are made between profit centers when they perform services
for each other. Such amounts, however, are not generally material in nature.

The Corporation's branch network is considered a support department center for segment reporting
purposes. Retail banking fees and revenues are deducted from the non-interest expense of operating the network (to
include an allocation of net costs from the Corporation's other support departments) to arrive at net cost for the
banking network. This net cost is then allocated to each profit center based on its use of deposit liabilities to fund its
operations. This amouat is reported as "net cost to acquire and maintain deposit liabilities” and is included as an
adjustment to the net interest income of each profit center.

For segment reporting purposes, management makes certain non-GAAP adjustments and reclassifications
to the results of operations and financial condition of the Corporation that, in management's judgement, more fairly
reflect the performance and/or financial condition of certain of the Corporation's profit centers. Following is a
description of the more significant adjustments:

Interest Income and Expense Interest income is credited to the mortgage banking profit center
for implied earnings on non-interest-bearing liabilities such as custodial and escrow accounts. The coffsetting
interest expense is charged to each profit center according to their use of these funding sources, as previously
described. Fee income from customers that make their monthly loan payments late ("late charges") is reclassified
from interest income to non-interest income in the mortgage banking profit center. Income from bank owned life
insurance is reclassified from noz-interest income to interest income in the investment and mortgage-related security
profit center.

Loan Origination Fees and Costs In accordance with GAAP, origination fees carned on
residential loans held for investment are deferred and amortized over the expected life of the loans, as are the direct
costs to ornginate the oans. In general, these deferrals and their subsequent amortization are disregarded for
segment reporting purposes. As a result, the morigage banking profit center receives revenue for loans that it
originates for the portfolio of residential loans held for investment, as well as a fsll charge for the costs to originate
the loans. These fees and costs are in addition to the fees it receives and the costs it incurs on loans originated for
sale in the secondary market, which are included in current earnings under GAAP.

59




Mortgage Servicing Rights In accordance with GAAP, mortgage servicing rights are not
recorded on residential loans held for investment. However, for segment reporting purposes, the mortgage banking
profit center receives an income allocation for the origination of such loans, which represents the estimated value of
the mortgage servicing rights. This allecaticn is in addition to the gain from morigage servicing rights that is
recorded on loans sold in the secondary market, as permitted under GAAP. The amortization of the mortgage
servicing rights created by this allocation is charged-back to the mortgage banking profit center over the estimated
life of the loans.

Loan Servicing Fees In accordance with GAAP, loan servicing fee inceme is not recorded on
loans held for investment. However, for segment reporting purposes, the mortgage banking profit center receives an
income allocation for the services it performs for the Corporation's residential, commercial real estate, and consumer
loan portfolios. This allocation is in addition to the service fee income that the profit center receives on loans
serviced for third parties, as recorded in the Corporation's Consolidated Statement of Operations. The
aforementioned loan portfolios are charged with the offsetting servicing cost.

Provision for Loan and Real Estate Losses For segment reporting purposes, the Corporation
disregards provisions for loan and real estate losses recorded under GAAP. Rather, actual charge-off (recovery)
activity is charged (credited) to each profit center in the period it occurs.

Intangible Assets The amortization of gocdwill and certain other intangible assets is disregarded
for segment reporting purposes.

Income Tazes In general, a standard income tax rate of approximately 41% is used for segment
reporting purpeses. However, the income tax benefit associated with assets held in Nevada by FCHI, the Banl's
wholly-owned investment subsidiary, is allocated to the profit centers that own such assets. This results in a lower
effective income tax rate, or even g negative rate, for such profit centers.

Non-GAAP Adjustments to Financial Condition Allowances for losses on loans and real estate
and security valuation allowances are added to and/or excluded from assets of the profit centers. In addition, an
estimated value for mortgage servicing rights not recorded under GAAP is estimated and added to the assets of the
mortgage banking profit center. For each of these adjustments, a corresponding amount is added to or excluded
from equity prior to the proportionate allocation of equity to the profit centers, as previously described. The amount
added to or excluded from equity is net of the estimated income tax effect.

Segment Profit (Loss) Stmements and Other Information The following tables contain profit {loss)
statements for each of the Corporation's reportable segments for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000, and
1999 (2000 is presented on both pages to facilitate its comparison with 2001 and 1999). In addition to the after-tax
performance of profit centers, management of the Corporation closely monitors the net cost to acquire and maintain
deposit liabilities (as defined elsewhere in this footmote). The net cost to acquire and maintain deposit liabilities was
1.20%, 1.15%, and 1.13% of average deposit liabilities outstanding during the years ended December 31, 2001,
2000, and 1999, respectively.

60




‘sasod.und Butyiodau juawiSas 10f pap.i0dad 240 Inq ‘JY VD 43PUn papioIai
10U 240 10y} SIYS1t Fwadas a3pSrow sapnpout ospy sasodind Burriodaa juawSos 40f papivSuSIp 241 IDY1 SPIUDMOJID UOHDNIDA 114N pUD JIDISI |24 PUD SUDO] UO SSO] A0f SAIUDMOJID f0 SISISUOD) (B)

‘QUIOJU] 1SI421UT-UOU UL PapNIIUL OS]

240 240GV ‘([) Ul paqLIISIP StudwIsn{p 3yl 10f s1asffo 2y ) -saf urdtaias unoj puv siySts Surd1a4as 3503110 SISO2 pun $23f UONDUIBLIO UDO] 0] PAIDIaL SIUAUISHIPY Jy Y D-uou fo Ajpdiourd sisisuo)) (5)

‘sasod.und Sursiodaa juawiSas 4of 121u22 1foid yova 1supSv (1a1OV (£124022.4) [Jo-23.40Yd 21DIS2 (P24 PUD UDO] [DNIID SP0II.L UONDLOAL0)) Y} ‘[D42uIE uf (7)

"DIUDINSUL 3] PAUMO YUDQ UO STUIUADD PUD ‘SJUNOIID MOIISI PUD [DIPOISND U0 sSupupa panduy ‘sa8ipyd a1v] 01 painja. spuawisnipy asuadxa pup awodu} 1sa4a1ut fo Adiourd sisisuo) (1)

97LTSETS (r) (¥L9°S$) - ££9$ 657°0VTS 9Z's0TS 195°29¢€$ 8£9°88YS 061°510°18 €L8SHS pouiad Jo pus je sjosse [210]
YL6°€TTTS (#) (99v°11$) - 0TEs$ S18997$ PSP LOTS L90'LTES T0E°LSYS 1$¥'v£6% 1£0'v¥$ 19558 J9EIoAY
spunsnoyy ul sanjjoq
UONBULIOYU] 1IIYS dduB|eg
9L8°€P1°CTS (809°C1¥'78) - (S10°8¥¥$) 610°€C8°1$ €19°6T6'CS  £€5°85L°€S  06P'SOS'PS  PES'YIL'BS  010'0€9°E$ (ss0]) 1goid juowddg
678°69LT1 (cvezovD) (€’1°817) (69z°101) S6¥°9£9°C 8LSTIST 958°1L0°C yrLS0L'E €S6vLY'T (1yauaq) asuadxa Xey awodu]
SOL‘C16°GE (€£56°L18°€) - (861°999) 0SL 1Ll 801°209°9 1111260 OrELLS L 8L5°0L0°C1 £96'701°9 saxe) a10jaq (ssof) 1joId
1E£0ST°8S (€) (850°616°1) 187°€79°0F SIET6T 99€°L6 660°L08 8PEPIET £8L°CvT'1 SRY'TL6T EISP6LTL asuadxa 1S3191UI-UON
0S$°TE9°sE (€) (£69'vE6'8) 6V0°€S6°TT (9vs‘y) - 886'S1¢ S00P19°1 ¥86°TS - YoL'SEL6] awosul 1S31MUI-UON
981 1£5°8S 789°L91'¢ TEV'OLY'LL (Leg'L99) 911618°1 61T°¢61°L pSYILO'L SP1°0LL'S £90°e¥0°S1  (88T°9€8°D) (osuadxa) awoduy ysazagul 19N
08L°800°1 (Z) ¥8LvTE - - LT8CE 67865 - 0T6°TS - (5aL12A0031) SJJO-aHIRYD URO[ JON
99Z0b5°6S 9P T6Y'E TEYOLY LT (LegL9g) 911'618°1 9v0°9ZT’L £0L°699°L SPI'0LLS £86'560°S1 (887°9¢8°1) sgjo-agreys 210j3q
(asuadxa) swosut 15193ul J9N
- @Ev'OLY LD  9vE'E 07 pS81 OTAKA 6L0°1TH'E LLG'TLLY £9v°790°S STI'PRE saniiqer] J1sodap
urejuiel pue sunboe 0} 1500 19N
TT6°568°101 (1) (€11°6£8°0) 166°€9¢$ SLO'BLBTL 799°0€L°L 680°166'71 L89'6T6°0T  9TI'8YL'SY  SO8T60T asuadxa jsalapug
881967 1918 (1) £5£°€59% - €61°TSSGIS  BPL'6TILIS  1/8°180'0C8  GO8'LLP'PES  TLS'906°S9S  Tv9'0K9$ AWOdUI 1S3IU]
parepIosuo)) spuuNsnlpy  suonzojly BUEEE SININIVG SuIpud] Suipua suipua] Sugog dunjusg G007 ‘1€ 1SqQUIIN( PIpuF J8d L
JVVD-uoN yusunaeda(g RO aBedyiopy p  uonBINpY 12WINSUO7) VIS (8 [enuapisay sBeBre0y s)uBWIE)S (SS07]) Ior g Judmzdag
uoddng IUWISIAUY BRLIWWo)
O1L'LILTS () (286'9%) Y6 TS 0LL°0SSS WY T1TS SLT'VRES 80TvLSS LLO'6S8S 9LL'101$ pouad Jo pud je sjosse [ejo],
¥88°885°CS (r) (668'7$) - 695°LS SE6'STES YSPTITS LEV'BLES 1€£0°57SS ¥96°'856% P6£'S8S §19558 OFLIAY
spupsnoyy ut s4njjoq
UOHBULIOUY 133YS IIUB[BEY
STT'BYY'ST 6Z1°0v6°T$ - @ri'syls) PEPBELIS 668°8L6'TS 1LE°6£0°VS ETY'PPE'SS 759°656°9% 8SH'T61°SS (ssop) yoadjuowdog
S8V 86E°S1 LO8PLS'1 (SIS (16L°258) €70°1€0°T 9G0'VSLT WREr9'E 68L91V°T PET'OVS'E (31jouaq) asuadxo xey awoduy
01L9v8'Ey 9€6°078'y - (LS9‘6P1) £89°08¢ 226'600°S 8P E6L'D $97'886'8 IPP0LE'S 769°TEL'8 saxe) 210J2q (850[) 11Jo1d
ELY6IT°L9 (£) (9£5°89L°8) T0T0pS LY vSTTIS v6Z 101 SSSI16 [T8EOLT 01Z°8T¢ 1 PESOP'S £8TS80°LT 2s5u2dxa ySarU-UON
90€° LTS 6¥ () (S18°5L1'9) 0S8°8¥L°9T 665°S8T - 065°CS 99%°689°1 8PS 3¢ - 89088897 Swodut 3SR UL-UON
LLB'BEV19 S1T'8TT TSE160°1T 866°9L LL6‘18E L88‘898'S 68L°L08L LT6'LLT01 STR'SLLY] (£60°0L0°1) (asuadxa) aurooul 152191u1 19N
16£°€9L°1 (7} 799°'6£9 - - £Ov9¢ 678°760°1 - (€95°L) - (s3u240031) s3j0-9818YD ULO] 13N
897°70Z°€9 LLR'L98T T6E160°12 866°9L LLG6 18E 0S£°506°S 819°206°8 LT6LLTO1 797°89L°1 (£60°0L0°1) spo-a31eyd 210j2
(osuadxa) su105U1 1S2IAUI JON
- (TS 160°17) 65718 9905+ T WY 1YL 996°186°¢ 6¥6'S67°S 1Z£°9€€9 679°€0S sanipiqey| ysodap
ulejuiew pue annboe 0) 1503 19N
€LEOEE 801 (1) (T06'6£5°2) 908°6¥T ESEVLT YL 61T°€S1°9 961‘SLYLT £EL881°YT LIS'SOL v 168€28°¢ asuadxa 152193U]
149'2€S 1L1S (1) SL6'LTES £91°30¥$ 9L6'901°L1$  1S0'00EPIS  O8L'6SC'0ES  60Z'T96°6€S  001°018°69$  LBE'LST'ES 3LLODUY 1SUAU]
pRepijosuo)) sjuaunsnipy  suoneso||y SJUIWFIS SIPINIIG Suipuag Suipudy duipua| SUBO| dunjusg 100Z ‘1€ 23quI3d3(] papuy 483 x4
dYV-uon yusunedagg R_YIO agudrro 3 uopedNpy J2WASUOTY sy ey [EnUIPISAY adedpio SHUIW)E)S (5507]) WJosg Judw3ag
woddng JUAUNSIAU] [RISIMWO))




‘sasod.md Buiodad juawdas 10f pap.a03as 3.0 INq ‘Jy YD) 42pun papioddl
10u 240 1oy3 s1y314 Suatuas 23v3110uw sapnjour o5ty “sasodind Buniodad JuswSas 1of paPLUSISIP 24D 10Y] SIIUDMOJID UONDNIDA AI1LINDIS PUD IIDISI [DI4 PUD SUDO] UO SSO] 10f SIIUDMOJID fo SI1SISUTD) (P)
"BULOIUY JSIL2IUT-UOU UT PapNIIUL OS]D
240 ‘240QD ‘(] ) u1 p3quosap syudusnipo ay1 +0f s135ffo 3y 'saaf Surdinias upoy puv ‘spySie Sudinias aSvSriow ‘s3s02 pup $23f uoNDUISIIO UDO] 03 PIID}AL SIMIUISRIPY JY Y O-uou Jo Appdidurd sisisuoyy ()
‘sasod.und Buiodaa juaw8as 10f 11ua2 11fo4d Yova 1sutn8o (1AyID (U2402.) ffo-2340YD 2j159 (34 pub UDO] JPNIID SPAOIDL UONDL0AL0D) dY1 ‘ID42UDT Ul (7)
"IUDNSUL 3] PIUMO YUDG UO SUNLIDS Pup ‘SIUNOIID MOIISD DUD [DIPOISHD 10 sSueiva payduly ‘saSivyd aiv] 03 paypa.l sjuauysnipy asuadxa pup awoduy jsa.atut fo Aodourd sisisuo) (1)

PSSYR0TS (r) (918°8%) - 80¢$ LIL66TS ovr'Tocs 6969828 6191¢8 v09°9r8s 060°1+$ pouad jo pus je 5)0s8€ [£10],
690°888°1$ (r) (r£6'8$) - 9rvs bT0'6LTS 800v61$ 956°95T8 £6LTLES WSS vE98LS $10SSE 29BIAY
Spupsnoy} u1 savfjoq
UOIIBULIOJU] 139YS IduBjeg
01T T¥'TCs (Z0g896r'15) - (££0°9LT$) S8ILY6'IS S99°ELLTS LOO'LEY'ES oY IPLYS 188059°L$ 12£°€99°¢S (ssop) 1joad yuswudag
08€°L91°T1 6L9°LETD) (9€5°€D) XA £60°168°( TLLEVET 8ILTETE 616°SvEC £99°L6Y°T (1yausq) osuadxa X&) awodu]
065809 (18¥'4£9°0) - (609°667) 919v96°1 85L'v99y BLEISL'S PPIvL6'L 00896601 ¥86°091°9 SaXe) 210J3q (s501) 1o1d
VY667 VS (€] (LzsTeo' 890°791°LE £69°1L€E LT L88°68 STI'E66°1 L§6°88Z°1 8.8'6S8°T £60°E1ETH asuadxa }53191ul-UON
PSBLLISE () (80£°0¥0°L) 880'60Z°1C 856'T1E - yIS€01 196°€ST°1 £06°06 - 8ELLYT'61 3WIODUL JSAIANUI-UON
S81°0ELES 00€°ELLT 086'v56°S1 (£L8°0t0) 068°SL0T IE116E°S 5079 L61°TLI'6 8L9°958°C1 (199'€LL) (3suadxa) AW0DU[ 152IANUL 1IN
120°L8¢ (Z) 8919 - - 1€0'97 0E€°L9E - (80s°0L) - ~ (53uaA0321) sJ0-381eYd UBD| 19N
90T' LIPS 80V°LE]T 086'7S6°S1 (€L8'0v2) 068°SL0°T 9LV 7181889 L6LTLLG 0L1°98L°T1 (199°€LL) sjjo-a81eyod 210j3q
(asuadxa) swooul 152.493Ul 13N
- (086'%S6'ST)  68v°F 919°9¥9°1 6v0'856°1 €9£°€65°T SITLSLE S¥8°956°S €0b'8EY sanifqer] usodap
urguIEW pue a1Inboe 0} 1502 19N
T6L'ES6'SL (1) (go1°'0s7°0) ¥8€°9£TS 6LT°TSS T LEL'E16'9 SH8L8E°01 688°1L0°C1 TITUS 6T 0S1°69v°¢ 3 asuadxa 15a101uf
86S°0L0°0E1$ (1) S9¢°L858 - SSL'YLTOIS  8V6'88TVIS  080°698°61$  TOL100'8TS  LTT'SI6LYS  T68'EEI'ES _ swoou s &
prEpijosuo)) syuwspsnipy suoneIo|y [FUEINEETS SINIINIIG duipuag Fuipuoy durpuay SUBO sumueg 6661 “IE€ DGR PIPUZ A8 L
AYV-UON wsunedag 200 3dsdio i  uoneINpY ISWNSUO) eIST [BSY {BDUIPISIY adeBrIom sjuduaIwlg (550°7) NP0 Jusw3og
uoddng JUIURISIAU] [EEX=TH g
9TLTSETS () (bL9c%) - ££98 65T°0VCS 95T'S07$ 195°79€¢ 8£9'88¢3 061°S10°1$ £L8'SYS potiad Jo pua e $I3SSE (210
PLE'CTT TS (») (99v11$) - 0ZES S18v9Zs PSH LOTS L90°LTES 20£°LSv8 ISP'PE6S 1£0°v¥S$ $13558 9FRIAY
Spupsnoys ui s4vjjoq
uonBULIOJU] I3IYS dUR|BY
LB EVIETS (8o9°s1v'zs) - (S10°8+v%) 610°€Z8°18 £19°576'c$ £LS8SLES 067505 v$ PE8'Y9£°8S 010°0£9°€$ (s501) Wy01d YUIULIDS
68°69LT1 (Svezor'l) (e81°810) (697°101) S6+°9L9°T 8L$T95°T 968°1L0°E yPL'SOL'E €S6'vLYT (1yauaq) asuadxa xe suioduf
SOL'E16'SE (€56°L18°C) - (861°999) 0sL1TL L 801°209°9 1H1ZE9 IPELLS L 8L5°0L0°TT £96'701°9 SoXe} 210§3q (s501) 1Joid
1€£°05T°8S () (850°6v6°1) 18¥°€79°0F SIEV6T 99¢°L6 660°L08 8YEYIET £8L°SYT1 S8Y'TL6T EISH6L 11 35UadXa 1S2153UI-UON
05S°2€9's€ (€) (€69'v£6°8) 6¥0'€56°TT (9¥sy) - 886°C1T $00°r19°1 v86'ZS - POLSEL'6] 3LOJUL JSAUANUI-UON]
98y 1£5'8S 789°L91°¢ TEV'OLYLL (LEE'L9E) 911°618°1 61T°E61°L YSY 1LO'L SPI0LL'S £90°€10'S1 (887°9¢8°1) (asuadxa) awodu] Js213ul 19N
08L800°1 (T v8Lvze - - LT8°TE 67865 - 026'TS - (53119A0931) SJjo-3d1eyDd Ueo[ JON
997°075°6S 99 T6v'E TEV'OLY'LL (LEE'L9%) 911°618°1 990'97T'L £0L°699°L SP1°0LL'S £86'560°S1 (887°9¢8°1) s}jo-a8seyd a10Joq
(asuadxa) swoour 352193U1 1N
- (Ter'0Lo° L) oveEe 20t'pS8°l O¥0'ELIT 6L0°12v'E LL6'ILLY £91°790°S STIV8E saniiqen usedap
ulgutew pue 21inboe 011509 1aN
226'568°101 (1) (€11°6€8°7) 166°€9¢$ $19°8L8°T1 299°0€L°L 680°166'1 L89°6T6'0C OTI‘8YL'SY $08°260°C asuadxa 1sasajuy
881°9¢K 1918 (1) £SE'€59% - £61°TSSOI$  SPL'GLILIS  IL8'180°978  6O8'ILP'VES  TLS'906'S98  Iv9°019% AWOdUI 1SAUANU]
pajrepIosuo) sjuaunsnipy  suonesofy Syudideg SININIIS Buipua suIpud| Buipus] SUBOY supjueg 0007 ‘1€ QU PIPUT JBD K
JVYD-ush] wdunarda(g PYRY aBudlroly p  vonwINPY J2Wnsuo)) NeIsH 16N [BRUIPISTY] 23udpopy SIUIWAIWG (SS¢7T) P01 J JIWBIS

woddng JUBPSIAUY (BII13 WO,




NOTE 14—Acquisition of American Community Bancshares, Inc.

Cn October 31, 2001, the Corporation completed the acquisition of American Community Bankshares,
Inc., ("ACB") the parent company of American Community Bank, headquartered in Wausau, Wisconsin. As a result
of the acquisition, ACB was merged into the Corporation, with ACB shareholders exchanging each share of ACB
common stock for 4.5 shares of the Corporation’s common stock, or approximately 1.9 million shares. The
transaction was tax-free (o ACB shareholders receiving the Corporation’s stock. The transaction was accounted for
using the purchase method of accounting in accordance with SFAS 141. The amount of goodwill recorded in
connection with this transaction was $12.5 million. In addition, the Corporation recorded a deposit-based intangible
of $1.9 million in connection with the transaction. The goodwill will not be amortized, which is in accordance with .
SFAS 142. The deposii-based intangible will be amortized using an accelerated method, in accordance with SFAS
142.

ACB’s consolidated net income during the ten-month period ending October 31, 2001, was $1.3 million,
and was $1.5 million and $1.4 million during the twelve-month periods ending December 31, 2000 and 1999,
respectively.

Following is a surnmary of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed in the ACB transaction. The table
excludes cash and cash equivalents acquired of $3.3 million.

Assets Acguired and Liabilitles Assumed Amount
Interest-bearing deposits with banks $9,564,108
Investment securities available for sale 28,494,388
Loans held for investment, net 114,286,918
Federal Home Loan Bank stock 823,700
Accrued interest receivable, net 926,253
Office properties and equipment 975,244
fvortgage servicing rights, net 1,248,285
Intangible assets 14,402,604
Other assets 131,492
Total Assets 170,852,992
Deposit liabilities 129,611,777
Federal Home Loan Bank advances 13,454,000
Advance payments by borrowers for taxes and insurance 86,529
Accrued interest payable 1,465,128
Other liabilities 611,578
Total liabilities 145,229,012
Net assets acquired and liabilities assumed $25,623,980

NOTE 15-Subsequent Evemnt

On Janwary 17, 2002, the Corporation announced an agreement with ancther financial institution to
purchase three bank offices in Rochester, Minnesota. The acquisition will include substantially all of the deposits
and loans of the bank offices along with the net book value of related premises and equipment. At September 30,
2001, the deposit and loan balances were approximately $125 million and $128 million, respectively. The
Corporation has agreed to pay approximately $27 million for the loans, deposits, and premises and equipment
associated with the Rochester branches. These amounts are subject to change depending on customer transaction
activity between September 30 and the date of closing. The transaction is subject to approval by the Bank’s
regulators and certain other transactional contingencies and currently is expected to close in the second quarter of
2002.
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NOTE 16-Parent Company Cnly Financial Information

December 31

Condensed Stotements of Finanein! Condition: 2001 2000
Cash in bank $17,125 $52,943
Interest-bearing deposits with subsidiary bank 573,433 3,120,979
Investment in subsidiary 191,725,269 145,763,550
Other assets 100,642 248,334

Total assets $192,416,469 $149,185,806
Other borrowings - $2,601,542
Other ligbilities $18,766 34,769

Total liabilities 18,766 2,636,311
Common stock 2,020,083 1,994,163
Additional paid-in capital 46,607,845 34,540,064
Retained eamings 141,717,089 122,921,606
Treasury stock, at cost - (15,127,142)
Unearned restricted siock (87,083) (142,083)
Non-owner adjustments to equity, net 2,139,769 2,362,887

Total stockholders' equity 192,397,703 146,549,495

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $192,416,469 $149,185,806

Year Ended December 31

Condensed Stotements of Operations: 2001 2000 1999
Other income $38,989 $40,539 321,815
Other expense 379,623 750,067 688,173
Loss before income taxes and equity in eamings of subsidiary (340,634) (709,528) (666,358)
Income tax benefit 119,222 248,335 233,225
Loss before equity in earnings of subsidiary (221,412) (461,193) (433,133)
Equity in eamings of subsidiary 28,669,637 23,605,069 22,874,343
Net income $28,448,225 $23,143,876 $22,441,210
Year Ended December 31
Condensed Statements of Cash Flows: 2001 2000 1999
Net income $28,448,225 $23,143,876 $22,441,210
Equity in earnings of subsidiary (28,669,637) (23,605,069) (22,874,343)
Change in income taxes and other accruals and prepaid 113,110 19,661 (93,025)
Net cash used by operations (108,302) (441,532) (526,158)
Decrease (increase) in interest-bearing deposits with subsidiary bank 3,782,086 (3,117,730) 3,000,309
Dividends received from subsidiary 9,900,000 14,600,000 13,500,600
Puchase of net assets of ACB (28,603,959) - -
Net cash (used) provided by investing activities (14,921,873) 11,482,270 16,500,309
Increase (decrease) in other borrowings (2,601,542) (2,598,458) 2,250,000
Dividends paid to shareholders (8,866,148) (7,699,035) (6,287,822)
Purchases of treasury stock (3,213,376) (1,708,663} (15,930,336)
Comumon stock issued for acquisition 28,603,793 - -
Other, net 1,071,630 1,005,913 3,962,487
Net cash provided (used) by financing activities 14,994,357 (11,000,243) (16,005,671)
Net increase (decrease) in cash in bank (35,818) 40,495 (31,520)
Cash at beginning of pericd 52,943 12,448 43,968
Cash in bank at end of pericd $17,125 $52,943 $12,448
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Report of Management

The management of First Federal Capital Corp has prepared the accompanying financial statements and is
responsible for their integrity and objectivity. The statements, which include amounts that are based on
management's best estimates and judgements, have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles and are free of material misstatement. Management also prepared the other information in the annual
report on Form 10-K and is responsibie for its accuracy and consistency with the financial statements.

The Corporation maintains a system of internal control over financial reporting, which is designed to
provide reasonable assurance to the Corporation's management and Board of Directors regarding the preparation of
reliable published annual and interim financial statements. The system contains self-monitoring mechanisms, and
actions are taken to correct deficiencies as they are identified. However, even an effective internal contro! system,
no matter how well designed, has inherent limitations--including the possibility of circumvention or overriding of
controis--and therefore can provide only reasonable assurance with respect t¢ financial statement preparation.
Further, because of changes in conditions, internal control system effectiveness may vary over time.

The Corporation assessed its internal control system as of December 31, 2001, in relation to criteria for
effective internal control over the preparation of its published annual and interim financial statements described in
"Internal Control—Integrated Framework" issued by the Committee of Spensoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission. Based on this assessment, the Corporation believes that, as of December 31, 2001, its system of
internal control over the preparation of its published annual and interim financial statements met those criteria.

/s/Thomas W. Schini /s/Jack C. Rusch /s/Michael W. Dosland

Thomas W. Schini Jack C. Rusch Michael W. Dosland

Chairman of the Board President and Chief Senior Vice President and
Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

Report of Independent Auditors

We have audited the accompanying consclidated statements of financial condition of First Federal Capital Corp as
of December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockhoiders' equity, and
cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2001. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Corporation's management. QOur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fzirly, in all material respects, the consolidated
financial position of First Federal Capital Corp at December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the consolidated resulis of its
operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2001, in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

Milwaukee, Wisconsin
January 17, 2002
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Supplementary Data

Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited)

Dee. Sept. June March Dee.  Sept.  Jume Mareh

Dollars in thousands, except for per share amounts 2001 2001 2001 2001 2000 2000 2000 2000
Interest on loans $35912 $36,474 $35,741 335,880 $35,518 $35,146 $33,135 $30,656
[nierest on mortgage-backed and related securities 6,163 5,290 6,005 6,602 7,087 6,033 5548 5,848
Interest and dividends on investments 1,248 628 851 738 687 647 556 576
Total interest income 43,323 42,391 42,597 43,221 43,292 41,826 39,239 37,079
Interest on deposits 20,087 20,911 21,147 21,440 20,933 19,686 17,313 15,656
Interest on borrowings _ 5,955 5,699 5,874 7,219 7,563 7,133 6,926 6,685
Total interest expense 26,042 26,609 27,021 28,659 28,496 26,819 24,240 22341
Net interest income 17,282 15,782 15,577 14,562 14,796 15,607 14,999 14,738
Provision for loan losses 578 355 437 394 402 302 112 192
Net interest income after provision 16,704 15,427 15,140 14,167 14,394 14,704 14,887 14,546
Gain on sale of loans 12,181 3,959 5,265 3,005 1,129 812 506 290
Gains (losses) from sales of real estate and investments (25) 18 - - 1,189 - - -
Other non-interest income 3,870 7,370 6,217 7,686 8,246 8244 7961 7,256
Total non-interest income 16,026 11,329 11,482 10,690 10,565 9,056 8467 7,545
Total non-inierest expense 18,199 16,439 16,767 15,714 14,991 14,765 14,565 13,930
Income before income taxes 14,531 10,316 9.855 9,144 9,968 8996 8,790 8,16l
Income tax expense 5,071 3,593 3,487 3,247 3,542 3,205 3,124 2,898
Net Income $9,460 $6,724 $6,367 $5,897 $6,426  $5,790 $5,665 $5,262
Diluied earnings per share $0.49 $0.36 30.34 $0.32 $0.34 3032  $0.30 %0.29
Dividends paid per share $0.12 $0.12 $0.12 $0.11 $0.11 30.11 $0.11 $0.09
Stock price at end of period $1570 31490 $1620 31400  $14.50 $1231 $11.06 31169
High stock price during period 81575 $16.35 $1620 $16.63 51488 $1244 $12.75 $14.63
Low stock price during pericd $14.27 $14.10 $13.16 $12.75 $10.88 $10.63 §10.13 $10.44

Item 9-Changes in 2nd Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Fingncial Disclosure

None.
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PART III
Item 10~Directors and Executive Officers of the Registramnt
The information required herein is incorpomﬁed by reference from the sections entitled "Matters to be
Voted on at the Annual Meeting--Matter 1. Election of Directors” and "Executive Officers Who Are Not Directors”
in the Proxy Statement of the Corporation dated March 185, 2002. ‘
Item 11-Executive Compensation
The information required herein is incorporated by reference from the section entitled "Compensation of
Executive Officers and Directors"” in the Proxy Statement of the Corporation dated March 15, 2002.
Item 12--Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management
The information required herein is incorporated by reference from the section entitled "Beneficial
Ownership of Common Stock by Certain Beneficial Owners and Management” in the Proxy Statement of the
Corporation dated March 15, 2002.
Item 13--Certain Relationships and Related Transactions
The information required herein is incorporated by reference from the section entitled "Indebtedness of
Management and Certain Transactions" in the Proxy Statement of the Corporation dated March 15, 2002.
PART IV
[tem [14-—-Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules and Reports on Form 8-K
(a) Documents filed as part of this report:

(1) The following financial statements are included herein under Part II, Item 8, "Financial Statemenis and
Supplementary Data":

Consolidated Statements of Condition at December 31, 2001 and 2000

Consolidated Statements oi_f Operations for each of the three years in the pericd ended December 31, 2001
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2001
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2001

Notes to Audited Consolidated Financial Statements

Report of Management

Report of Independent Auditors

(2) All financial statement schedules required under this item are omitted because the required information is either

not applicable or the required information is included in the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements or in the
notes therete.
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(3) Esxthibit Index.

No. Exhibit Description

3.1  Articles of Incorporation, as amended
3.2 Bylaws, as amended
4.1 Specimen stock certificate
4.2 Rights Agreement, dated as of January 24, 1995
10.1 1989 Stock Incentive Plan
10.2 1989 Directors’ Stock Option Plan, as amended
10.3 1992 Directors’ Stock Option Plan, as amended
10.4 1992 Stock Option and Incentive Plan
10.5 Rock Financial Corp. 1992 Steck Option and Incentive Plan
10.6 1997 Stock Option and Incentive Plan
10.7 Employee Stock Ownership Plan
10.8 Employment agreements, as amended, between the Corporation and the Bank and the following executive
officers:
2) Jack C. Rusch
b) Thomas W. Schini
¢) Joseph M. Konradt
d) Bradford R. Price
¢) Robert P. Abell
) Michael W. Dosland
g) Milne J. Duncan
10.9 First Federal of La Crosse Directors' Deferred Compensation Plan
10.10 First Federal of La Crosse Annual Incentive Bonus Plan
10.11 First Federal of La Crosse Incentive Bonus Plan for Group Life [nsurance
10.12 First Federal of Madison Deferred Compensaticn Plan for Directors
11.1 Computation of Earnings Per Share--Reference is made to Note 1 of the Corporation's Audited Counsoli-
dated Financial Statements, included herein under Part IT, Item 8, "Financial Statements and Supplementary
Data®
13.1 2002 President’s Message--Attached
21.1 Subsidiaries of the Registrant--Reference is made to Part [, [tem 1, "Business--Subsidiaries"
23.1 Consent of Ernst & Young LLP--Attached
99.1 2002 Proxy Statement--Attached

A copy of the exhibits listed herein can be obtained by writing Michael W. Dosland, Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer, First Federal Capital Corp, 605 State Street, La Crosse, Wisconsin, 54601.

(b) During the fourth quarter of 2001, First Federal Capital Corp filed the following report on Form 8-K:

Report filed November 1, 2001. The report included a press release announcing that First Federal Capital
Corp completed the acquisition of American Community Bankshares, Inc.

(c) Refer to item (2)(3) above for all exhibits filed herewith.

(@) Refer to items (a)(1) and (2) above for financial statements required under this item.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant
has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

FIRST FEDERAL CAPITAL CORP

February 26, 2002 By: /s/Jack C. Rusch
Jack C. Rusch
President and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by
the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

/s/ Thomas W. Schini February 26, 2002
Thomas W. Schini

Chairman of the Board

/s/ Dale A. Nordeen February 26, 2002

Dale A. Nordeen
Vice Chairman of the Board

/s/ Jack C. Rusch February 26, 2002
Jack C. Rusch
President, Chief Executive Officer, and

" Director (principal executive officer)

/s/ Marjorie A. Davenport February 26, 2002
Marjorie A. Davenport
Director

/s/ John F. Leinfelder February 26, 2002
John F. Leinfelder
Director

/s/ Richard T. Lommen February 26, 2002
Richard T. Lommen
Director

/s/ Parick J. Luby February 26, 2002
Patrick J. Luby
Director

/s/ David C. Mebane February 26, 2002
David C. Mebane
Director
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fs/ Phillip J. Quillin
Phillip J. Quillin
Director

/s/ Edwin J. Zagzebski
Edwin J. Zagzebski
Director

/s/ Michael W. Dosland
Michael W. Dosland
Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer
(principal financial and
accounting officer)

February 26, 2002

February 26, 2002

February 26, 2002
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EXHIBIT 23

Consent of Independent Auditors

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements (Forms S-§, File Nos. 33-98298,
33-54268, and 333-32855) pertaining to the Stock Option and Incentive Plans of First Federal Capital Corp of our
report dated January 17, 2002, with respect to the consclidated financial statements of First Federal Capital Corp
included in the Annual Report (Form 10-K) for the year ended December 31, 2001.

/s/ Ernst & Young

March 1, 2002
Milwaukee, Wisconsin
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brporate Headquarters
B5 State Street

b 1868
b Crosse, W1 54602-1868
SER03) 754-8000

biecutive Contacts

areholders, investors and security analysts interested in
additional information may contact the following at our
corporate headquarters: Jack C. Rusch, President and
Chief Executive Officer or Michael W. Dosland, Senior
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

[nnual Report on Form 10-K
opies of First Federal Capital Corp’s Annual Report on Form
” 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
are available without charge to shareholders upon
written request to Mr. Michael W. Dosland at our
corporate headquarters {address above).

ghareholder inquiries regarding transfer requirements,
dividend payments or reinvestment, lost certificates,
changes of address and account status should be
directed to:

gevells Fargo Shareowner Services

B$ox 64853

Bt. Paul, MN 55164-0853

800) 468-9716

Pividend Reinvestment Plan
il registered owners of First Federal Capital Corp common
i stock are eligible to participate in a convenient and
‘ economical method for automatically reinvesting their
cash dividends toward the purchase of additional shares
g of the Company's stock. The plan offers:
B Prompt reinvestment of dividends
y An option to purchase additional shares with cash
All service fees and purchase commissions company-paid
An easy-to-understand account statement, sent after each
reinvestment of dividends
booklet describing the plan, together with an enrollment
card, can be obtained by writing the transfer agent.

First Federal Shares

Trading: NASDAQ Stock Market

NASDAQ symbol: FTFC

Common shares outstanding (net of treasury stock):
20,163,241*

Shareholders of record:
1,620*

Estimated beneficial shareholders:
3,145%

Approximate total shareholders:
4,665*

*As of February 15, 2002

Annual Veeting

The annual meeting of shareholders will be held on
Wednesday, April 17, 2002 at 10:30 a.m. at the
Radisson Hotel, 200 Harborview Plaza, La Crosse,
Wisconsin.

Forward-Looking Statements

The discussions in this report include certain forward-
looking statements based on management’s
current plans and expectations. These statements
discuss areas such as expected growth, future
revenues and future performance. Various factors
could affect First Federal’s financial performance
and could cause actual results for future periods to
differ materially from those anticipated or
projected. Such factors include general economic
and competitive conditions, general market rates of
interest, interest rates on funding sources,
consumer demand for deposit and loan products
and services and changes in the quality or
composition of the loan and investment portfolios.
You may find additional information regarding
these factors in First Federal’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K.

SHAREHOLDER
INFORMATION
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